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ads of change. From its successful merger to
gressive thrust in product innovation and service
g the diverse banking needs of its clients with

a rich banking legacy, borne out of vision and
cesses and a genuine empathy for our clients.
and a promise of a greater PNB; these are the
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' CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
O =

December 31
2013 2012

D (In Thousand Pesos, Except Per Share Amounts) (As Restated)
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Gross Income 30,203,050 21,242,627

Total Expenses 24,980,989 16,524,236

k ’ Net Income 5,222,061 4,718,391

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Total Assets 618,065,516 330,190,751

, Loans and Receivables 274,276,083 144,230,665

® Total Liabilities 534,167,888 291,698,506

, Deposit Liabilities 462,365,448 240,854,377
Total Equity 83,897,628 38,492,245

PER SHARE

Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share 4.88 71
Book Value Per Share 74.41 56.30

V attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company
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PNB INTERNET BANKING

With PNB Internet Banking, we took advantage of the recent
developments in technology and produced state-of-the-art product and
service innovations to enhance your overall customer experience.












MESSAGE TO SHAREHOLDERS

he previous year marked a pivotal chapter in the long
and notable history of the Philippine National Bank.
On February 9, 2013, PNB with 98 years of banking
leadership, merged with an equally prestigious Allied
Banking Corporation (ABC) to further enhance
the longstanding formidability of your Bank. With this merger,
the bigger, better and stronger PNB now offers an even more
enhanced banking that features over 130 combined years of
resources, a solid base of loyal stakeholders, a joint roster of
competent and experienced professionals, and an unwavering
reputation as a beacon of integrity, reliability and consumer trust.

Moving forward, your Bank fully assures you that with the
transition of the merged Bank already ongoing, we are primed
and fortified to tackle the challenges of a highly-competitive
banking industry amidst global, domestic and even natural forces
that drive countries, economies and businesses like ours to
unexpected turns of growth or slowdown.

With the merger of two financial pillars providing a solid
backdrop for success and a commitment to develop customer-
centered solutions for a wider range of discerning clients, your
PNB is poised to move forward in the Philippine banking industry
to becoming a more dynamic, innovative and service-focused
bank.

One of Asia’s Rising Tigers

2013 was a year of sustained domestic growth with the
Philippine economy posting a full year Gross Domestic Product
(GDP) growth of 7.2%. The country’s robust growth was largely
driven by the strong performance of the services sector. The
primary drivers were remittances from overseas Filipinos,
developments in the business process outsourcing (BPO) industry,
and the operational adjustments in the BSP’s Special Deposit
Account (SDA) facility. The Philippines, seen by many as a rising
tiger of Asia, remains as one of the best performing economies in
the Asian region at the end of 2013, second only to China, which
grew by 7.7%. The National Economic Development Authority
(NEDA) reported that this is a remarkable turnout because the
economy grew better than the government target of 6.0% to 7.0%
for 2013 despite the uncertainties and difficulties the government
and private sectors faced after a series of natural disasters struck
Central and Southern Philippines in the fourth quarter. Indeed, a
stronger Philippine economy was able to withstand the negative
effects of natural and man-made calamities such as the Bohol
earthquake, the Zamboanga siege and Typhoon Yolanda of 2013.

Along with the country’s economy was the financial
sector which came stronger with a growth of 12.4% for the
year. Economists say that the stable business environment, a
manageable inflation rate of 3.0% - leaning towards the low end of
the target range - and low interest rates, as well as aid from other
countries for those affected by Typhoon Yolanda, have somehow
induced an increase in financial activity across the country.

A Bullish Banking Industry

Meanwhile, the Philippine banking system also maintained a
strong performance due to the country’s solid macroeconomic
fundamentals, a boost in customer confidence in the system,

network expansion of banks and improved services. The banks’
core balance sheets were marked by a steady growth in assets
and deposit liability accounts. Asset quality continued to improve
and solvency ratios remained in line with international standards.

The operating networks of the banks increased to 9,935 in
the fourth quarter from 9,410 during the same period last year,
due mainly to the increase in the branches/ agencies of both
universal/commercial and thrift banks.

The banking system’s total deposits as of end-December
2013 amounted to 6.1 trillion, a hefty 36.2% higher than the
year-ago level of P4.4 trillion while demand deposits expanded
y-0-y by 34.1% and time deposits increased by 44.2% from the
level posted a year ago.

Likewise, outstanding loans of commercial banks, inclusive
of Reverse Repurchase (RRP), expanded by 16.4% compared
to year-ago level. Commercial banks’ loans continued to grow
steadily at double-digit growth rates in the last three years. The
continued broad-based growth in bank lending supports the
sustained expansion of the productive sectors of the economy as
seen from the steady expansion in the agriculture, construction,
manufacturing and retail businesses across the country. However,
the growth in consumer loans eased slightly to 8.3%, reflecting
the slowdown of credit in auto and other loans.

The Philippine banking system’s gross non-performing loans
(GNPL) ratio sustained its downward path, easing to 2.8% as of
end-December 2013 from 3.4% in end-December 2012. Net NPL
ratio was also kept low at 0.6% of TLP from 0.7% during the
same period. Banks’ initiatives to improve asset quality along
with prudent lending regulations helped bring the NPL ratios to
below its pre-Asian crisis level of around 3.5%.

The Merged Bank as a Stronger Bank

For the year 2013, the Philippine National Bank emerged
as the 4th largest bank in the country with consolidated assets
expanding to P618.1 billion as of December 31, 2013, #2879
billion or 87.2% higher compared to £330.2 billion of PNB as
of December 31, 2012. The increase is inclusive of some ©198.2
billion assets of the former ABC at fair values of February 9,
2013, the effective date of the merger. With the increase in its
consolidated total assets, net loans and receivables, capital and
deposits, PNB’s merged entity became the fourth largest local
private commercial bank in the Philippines.

Loans and Receivables of the merged Bank increased by 90%
at P274.3 billion from $£144.2 billion in 2012 attributable mainly to
the £92.3 billion total loans brought in by the former ABC to the
merged Bank, of which 80% are corporate accounts. Likewise,
the Deposit Liabilities of the merged Bank which comprises 87%
of total liabilities have increased to P462.4 billion attributed to
ABC deposit balances compared to £240.9 billion in December,
2012. Demand, Savings and Time deposits increased by P97.2
billion, 92.7 billion and P31.6 billion, respectively.

PNB generated a net income of 5.2 billion in 2013 showing
an increase of 9.6% versus 2012 at 4.7 billion. More noteworthy,
your Bank earned a net interest income of 13.7 billion reaching
almost double the 7.0 billion accumulated in 2012. Interest
income was also up by 62% from ®11.4 billion in 2012 to P18.5
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Total Assets

PNB is poised to move forward in the Philippine banking industry
to becoming a more dynamic, innovative and service-focused bank.

MS. FLORENCIA G. TARRIELA, Chairman with
MR. OMAR BYRON T. MIER, President & CEO
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MESSAGE TO SHAREHOLDERS

billion in 2013. On the other hand, our cost efficiency ratio was at
70.6%. It should be noted, however, that PNB’s accrual reaching
£865.5 million on casualty losses due to Typhoons Yolanda and
Santi and the Bohol earthquake greatly affected the Bank’s net
income.

Fee-based and other income was higher by 0.6 billion at
8.4 billion for the year ended December 31, 2013. Increases were
registered in Net Gain on Sale of exchange of Assets, Foreign
Exchange Gains and Miscellaneous by 159 million, 62 million
and P1.2 billion, respectively. However, we experience decline of
P746 million in Trading and Investment Securities Gains due to a
heightened degree of volatility in the financial markets brought
about primarily by external factors.

The Bank’s consolidated capital adequacy ratio (CAR)
for combined credit, market and operational risks computed
based on the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) Circular No.
538 improved at 19.7% for 2013 versus 18.1% in 2012 exhibiting
better improvement and stability well above the minimum 10%
requirement of the BSP.

Return on equity (ROE) was at 8.5% while return on assets
(ROA) was at 1.1%. Net interest margin (NIM) ratio of the merged
bank for December 2013 is at 3.4% based on net interest margin
of P13.7 billion and total average interest-earning assets of
P403.4 billion, 0.8% point higher compared to the 2.6% NIM ratio
of the previous year.

PNB’s non-performing loans (NPL) increased to £10.7 billion
as of December 31, 2013 compared to 6.5 billion as of December
31, 2012, mainly attributed to ABC balances transferred in line
with the merger. NPL ratio of the merged bank (based on new
BSP guidelines) is 1.39% (net of valuation reserves) and 4.26%
(at gross).

We continue to be in compliance with the liquidity and legal
reserve requirements of BSP for deposit liabilities with the ratio
of liquid assets to total assets at 45.3% as of December 31, 2013
which was higher as of same date in 2012 at 44.7% but lower in
2011 at 46.4%. The ratios of total operating expenses (excluding
provision for impairment and credit losses) to total operating
income were 70.6%, 61.0%, and 60.9% for 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

First Year of Merged Operations

The Bank concluded its planned merger with Allied Banking
Corporation (ABC) as approved and confirmed by the Board of
Directors of the Bank and of ABC on January 22 and January 23,
2013, respectively. The respective shareholders of the Bank and
ABC, representing at least two-thirds of the outstanding capital
stock of both banks, approved the amended terms of the Plan
of Merger of the two banks on March 6, 2012. The original Plan
of Merger was approved by the affirmative vote of ABC and the
Bank’s respective shareholders on June 24, 2008, representing
at least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock of both banks.

On our first year as a merged bank, we undertook long-term
fund generating initiatives to support our growth and expansion
plans. We redeemed our high cost subordinated notes and
replaced these funds through the issuance of lower cost, long-
term term negotiable certificates of time deposits (LTNCDs).

On March 6, 2013, we exercised our call option and redeemed
£4.5 billion (713%) Subordinated Notes due in 2018 issued by
ABC. Likewise on June 30, 2013, we exercised our call option
on our 6.0 billion (8.5%) Unsecured Subordinated Notes due
on June 2018. Subsequently, we successfully undertook two
tranches of five-year peso denominated LTNCD offerings, viz:
(1) a 5 billion LTNCDs at 3% which will mature on February 5,
2019 issued at the lowest yield in its asset class; and (2) another
P4 billion LTNCDs at 3.25% which will mature on April 22, 2019
issued at the lower end of yields of its asset class. Both issuances
were successfully accepted by the investing public, a testament
to the long term credit acceptability of the Bank.

After the merger, we improved the delivery of our services
by relocating selected PNB and former ABC branches to more
strategic and accessible locations based on market potential
and growth and renovating ABC branches using the new
branch design. With the network of the former ABC and the
new branches, your Bank now operates a total of 626 branches
and four extension offices. We have also deployed additional 38
ATMs nationwide in strategic, mostly off-site, locations with high
pedestrian traffic bringing the total to 833 ATMs nationwide.

We remained a strong player in the consumer finance as
PNB’s consumer loan portfolio grew to 19.4 billion, up 18% from
£10.3 billion in 2013, registering a cumulative annual growth rate
of 43% over the last three years. Moreover, PNB’s new business
acquisitions registered a 37% growth to 7.8 billion in total loan
bookings from®5.7 billion in 2012. The impressive rapid expansion
in consumer finance was due to increased sales productivity
with the introduction of newly modified housing loan programs,
improved relationships with partner developers now reaching a
total of 72 and a host of marketing promotions which continue
to attract new and existing customers. The substantial growth
was also due the participation in the cross selling activities of
the expanded branch network that the Bank has. The conscious
effort in tapping the branches as a distribution network of the
customer lending business that was put in place demonstrated to
be one of the success factors in achieving the consumer lending
loan level. Meanwhile, our internal referral incentive program
which ran for the third straight year proved to be an effective
campaign in encouraging employees to cross-sell consumer
products in conjunction with the other products and services of
the Bank.

Your Bank also stayed at the forefront of debt capital
markets as the Bank led seven corporate finance deals worth
more than 75 billion in the power, infrastructure and real estate
industries. PNB also was involved in 13 big ticket deals with large
corporate institutions which generated a total booking amount
of P140 billion. And as a testament to the Bank’s commitment to
nation building, we were also actively involved in Public-Private
Partnership Projects (PPPs) like the 6.7 billion syndication for
the Public School Infrastructure Projects in CALABARZON and
the 7.5 billion syndication for the NAIA Expressway Project.

Your Bank displayed utmost diligence and steadfast
resourcefulness in the face of industry challenges in 2013. Among
these challenges was the BSP limitation on PNB'’s Special Deposit
Account (BSP-SDA) facility. To minimize the impact of the Bank’s
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phase-out of the investment management account (IMA-SDA)
facility due to aforementioned BSP mandate, PNB ingeniously
converted these accounts into Money Market Unit Investment
Trust Funds (UITFs). As a result of this initiative, PNB’s Money
Market funds impressively grew from £82.45 million in 2012 to
£8.93 billion; thus attesting to your Bank’s innate ability to adapt
to any uncertainty.

Service Innovation

Your Bank continues to introduce innovative technological
advances to further expand our extensive portfolio of products
and services. And, as the previous year is indeed an indication of
the shape of things to come, you can be assured that practicality
and convenience will remain at the forefront of PNB’s priorities.

Our Global Filipino Business, which has the widest overseas
footprint of any Philippine banking institution, further displayed
its commitment to service innovation by providing unique
remittance channels like the PNB Phone Remit and PNB Web
Remit services for US-based clients. The Bank continued to make
headway in deepening its relationship with its Global Filipino
customers by offering other products and services such as
personal, home and auto loans including credit cards. Your Bank
has always had a strong affinity with the Global Filipino market
and we will perpetually enrich the lives of Filipinos worldwide in
the years to come.

To further enhance the credit process and improve
processing and approval turnaround times for consumer loans,
your Bank also invested in a Loan Organization and Collection
System. This automated loan system is supported by various
credit scoring models and analytics.

PNB focused on being customer-centered as it continues
to offer “tailor-fit” banking products and services to the Bank’s
high-net worth clients through the Pinnacle Club. By year end,
the Pinnacle Club generated a total outstanding volume of 41%
year-on-year from P11.05 billion in 2012.

During the last quarter of the year, in partnership with PNB
Life, we introduced the Healthy Ka Pinoy (HKP) Emergency Card,
the only low-cost insurance product in the country that provides
emergency room treatment and accidental death and disability
benefits. For an annual premium of only 750, cardholders are
covered for up to P140,000 per year and can seek emergency
treatment at any of the 890 accredited hospitals and clinics
nationwide.

A Tradition of Business Excellence

In affirmation of the Bank’s well-managed operations, the
Bureau of Treasury (BTr) of the Republic of the Philippines
recognized your Bank as one of the top ten (10) Best Performing
Government Securities Eligible Dealers. For the second year in a
row, PNB was bestowed the Top Commercial Bank in Generating
Remittances from Overseas Filipinos by the BSP in recognition
of the strong remittance business across the globe. Furthermore,
two of the products and services of the Bank’s Retail Banking
Group garnered accolades from industry peers in 2013. Healthy
Ka Pinoy (HKP) Emergency Card won the award for Excellence in
Business Model Innovation in the 2013 Asian Trailblazer Awards

THE SHAPE OF THINGS TO COME

of Retail Banker International while ATMSafe won the Best in
Innovation Award in the 2013 Philippine Insurers and Reinsurance
Association, Inc. (PIRA) Awards.

As a testament to the Bank’s zealous observance to
existing and new AML laws, rules, regulations, and implementing
guidelines issued by both Philippine and foreign regulators,
PNB’s Board of Directors approved the AML/CFT Policy
Guidelines and Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing
Prevention Manuals last December 2013.

Shape of Things to Come

In 2013, we ensured that your bank adopted a stronger
policy on corporate social responsibility shared by each officer
and employee as it embraces a corporate culture that begins
with the exercise of sound and fair corporate practices in serving
the community. In partnership with its volunteer employees, the
Bank engaged in empowering the youth through education
and promotion of financial literacy, protecting the environment
through tree planting activities and conducting social and
philanthropic activities to uplift the lives of the Filipino people,
especially in the aftermath of series of calamities.

And as a good corporate citizen, PNB aspires to live up to
the trust and regard it has been bestowed upon by the Filipino
people. For almost 100 years, PNB has been a solid partner in
nation building and a trailblazer in providing the most innovative
and technology-driven products and services to millions of
clients here and beyond.

In the coming years, you can be assured that your Bank
will always try to be ahead in providing excellent products
and innovative solutions to the diverse banking needs of both
clientele and community it is committed to serve.

To our stakeholders, thank you for your continued trust and
patronage. To our employees, our heartfelt gratitude for staying
loyal and committed to our organization. To our Board of
Directors, our deep appreciation for your guidance and support
over the years.

ot

Florencia G. Tarriela Omar/z)n T. Mier
Chairman President & CEO
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RETAIL BANKING GROUP
The Retail Banking Group embarked on
three major thrusts for the year: expansion of
market reach, intensified account acquisition and
enhancement of the overall customer experience.
The Group expanded the Bank’s reach by
opening three new branches during the year:
Navotas - Fish Port, Ubay, Bohol and Uratex- East
Service Road; thus bringing the Bank’s already
extensive branch network to 626 branches and 4
extension offices by the year’s end. Meanwhile, 288
former Allied Bank branches were rebranded to
feature PNB’s progressive look and feel while 24
branches were renovated and 25 were strategically
relocated to cater to a wider range of clients. The
Group also further ensured the accessibility of
PNB’s ATM network by installing 38 more units,
bringing its total to 833 ATMs nationwide.
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ATM Network
Expanded by

The consistent adherence to sales discipline was also
stressed to branch front-liners in order to provide

the Bank’s highly diverse clientele with a top-notch
customer service experience.

Capturing Both Big and
Small Retail Clients

Total Branches by
End Of 2013

38 Units
RETAIL BANKING
PERFORMANCE ATM ‘1007' - B
n2013 v
833
| | — ]

To further boost its deposits business, the
Group implemented a broad-based acquisition
strategy aimed at acquiring both small and big retail
clients to complement the simultaneous processing
of big ticket deposit accounts. On the other hand,
the Group utilized cash management solutions to
secure commitments for corporate accounts. Cross
selling was also undertaken by the Group to improve
account profitability. With such a strong focus on
sales, the Bank enjoyed another banner year in
terms of funds generation for Tier 2 Tranche 1and 2
as branches persistently delivered in 2013.

The consistent adherence to sales discipline
was also stressed to branch front-liners in order to
provide the Bank’s highly-diverse clientele with a
top-notch customer service experience. This was
successfully achieved through training interventions,
mystery shopping and the perpetual fine-tuning

THE SHAPE OF THINGS TO COME

of branch processes. These improvements

have definitely transformed PNB branches into
comfortable banking hubs where transactions are
promptly and efficiently done.

Two of the Retail Banking Group’s products and
services garnered accolades from industry peers
in 2013, thus attesting to their status as sources of
customer satisfaction. ATMSafe won the Best in
Innovation Award in the 2013 Philippine Insurers
and Reinsurance Association, Inc. (PIRA) Awards.
Meanwhile, PNB’s Healthy Ka Pinoy (HKP) Card
won the award for Excellence in Business Model
Innovation in the 2013 Asian Trailblazer Awards of
Retail Banker International.
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CONSUMER FINANCE GROUP

PNB’s consumer loans portfolio - which is

mainly comprised of housing loans (76%) and motor
vehicle loans (22%) - experienced an impressive
growth in 2013 due to rapid business expansion
supplemented by increased sales productivity,
improved relationships with partner developers and
dealers, various marketing campaigns and efficiency
in operations,. The portfolio likewise expanded with
the consolidation of the consumer loans business
of PNB and Allied Bank following the merger of the
two banking titans in February 2013.

The Consumer Finance Group further
strengthened its hold on the developer market
by accrediting 27 of the industry’s top property
developers during the previous year, thus
bringing PNB’s total developer network to 72.
This partnership has consistently produced
favourable returns with 44% of the Bank’s home
loan acquisitions coming from referrals from

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT



PNB’s consumer loans portfolio - which is mainly
comprised of housing loans (76%) and motor vehicle
loans (22%) experienced an impressive growth in 2013
due to rapid business expansion supplemented by
increased sales productivity, improved relationships

with partner developers and dealers, various marketing

campaigns and efficiency in operations.

CONSUMER
FINANCE GROUP 18%
PERFORMANCE increase from

n2013

PNB’s partner developers. Such an acquisition
channel also served as a fitting complement to the
Bank’s extensive branch network. Branches were
responsible for 43% of the Bank’s total home loans,
while generating a notable 83% in total motor vehicle
loans. To further propel consumer loans growth, the
Group also opened up its dealer-generated channel
for motor vehicle loans to select dealers.

The Group developed and modified two
programs that emphasize practicality and
convenience in 2013. The Home Flexi Loan Program,
a variant of PNB Home Loan designed to finance
asset acquisition and personal-related expenditures,
was launched offering competitive rate schemes
and flexible loan terms. The Group’s 2nd Hand Car
Financing Program was also enhanced to expand its
market base and improve product mix and yields.

THE SHAPE OF THINGS TO COME

Consumer Loans Portfolio

$19.48 Billion in 2012

New Business Acquisitions

—

P7.8 B

loan bookings

A number of marketing campaigns aimed
at generating business and increasing product
awareness were successfully promoted the Bank’s
consumer loans business and reinforced PNB’s
status as a major player in the consumer finance
market. Among them were: the Home Flexi
Promo; Home Blockbuster Deal; Amazing Cool
(Home Loan) Rates; the 2nd Hand Car Financing
Roadshow; and Party on Us, an incentive promotion
for partner developers and dealers. Moreover, the
Book-A-Loan, Bag-A-Gift referral program ran on its
3rd straight year to continually tap into the cross-
selling potential of consumer loans in conjunction
with the other products and services of the Bank.

The Bank also invested in a Loan Origination
and Collection System to further expedite the credit
process and improve processing and approval
turnaround times. This automated loan system is
supported by various credit scoring models and
analytics.
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The Group played major roles in 13 landmark deals which comprise
a total deal size in excess of 140 Billion. Aside from expanding
long-standing and multi-level relationships with top Philippine
conglomerates, the Group established partnerships with multinational
companies through the Bank’s participation in numerous fund raising
activities. The Group also successfully diversified its portfolio by
incorporating other high-growth industries and pursuing various Public-
Private Partnership (PPP) projects. Meanwhile, the Group’s government
banking segment undertook a fast-tracked implementation of the
existing facility portfolio in excess of #13 Billion.

Given the squeeze in spreads brought by the prolonged low-
interest rate environment, the Group embarked on a more proactive
approach in building corporate relationships. In order to acquire more
businesses and new customers, the Group implemented a “total
solutions” approach in addressing all the potential requirements
and stipulations of a corporate customer, particularly within the
spectrum of supply chain management. This transformation of Bank
services resulted in an increase of take-up in the Bank’s pool of
cash management products: collections, disbursement and account
management solution.
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This was the first time that a debt instrument was
issued at the lowest yield in its asset class and at

the fastest pace to be sold out in the market.

TREASURY
GROUP
PERFORMANCE

n2013

TREASURY GROUP

Treasury Group was able to take advantage
of the bullishness in the market place at the start
of the year as it realized trading gains from the
bank’s investment portfolio. In the 2nd half of the
year, similar to other market players, the bank
threaded cautiously in its trading activities due to
the increase in uncertainty in the capital markets
imported from the developments in the USA.

With the level of its activities, the Domestic
Trading Desk was again given recognition as
one of the top ten eligible government securities
dealer. This was achieved with the support of the
Treasury Marketing Group that is continuing to gain
headway in the distribution of the fixed income
securities in the secondary market. They expanded
their sales reach and offered other products to
corporate, institutional and retail clients.

Another milestone for the bank was the
issuance of a 5.0 B Long Term Negotiable

THE SHAPE OF THINGS TO COME

Issuance Of Long Term
Certificate Of Deposits

[\
£9.0

Billion

Testament of Trust
and Confidence

Certificate of Deposits (LTNCD) in August with a
coupon rate of 3.00% p.a. This was the first time that
a debt instrument was issued at the lowest yield in its
asset class and at the fastest pace to be sold out in
the market. With the guidance of Treasury Marketing
Dealers, the Branch Sales force,
which sold most of the LTNCDs to
their investors, has proven once
again their strong relationship

with their clients. Further, this

was a testament to the trust and
confidence given by the client
investors to the long term credit
standing of PNB as an issuer of a 5
year debt instrument. This LTNCD
was followed by another 4.0 B
LTNCD issuance in October with a
coupon rate of 3.25% p.a., still at the
lowest range of the interest rates
paid in the same asset class.
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Trust Banking Group exercised utmost
diligence and steadfast ingenuity to overcome
industry challenges in 2013. Among them was the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) limitation on
its Special Deposit Account (BSP-SDA) facility.

To minimize the effect of the Bank’s phase-out

of the investment management account (IMA-
SDA) facility due to BSP’s mandate, the Group
continuously worked with the Bank’s branches to
convert these accounts into Money Market Unit
Investment Trust Funds (UITFs). As a result of this
initiative, PNB’s Money Market funds impressively
grew from £82.45 Million in 2012 to #8.93 Billion;
thus attesting to the Group’s successful handling of
the situation.

The Group supplemented these efforts by
launching the country’s first comprehensive UITF
Online facility in June. The facility offered clients
the convenience of investing in and redeeming

18 PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT



PNB'’s total UITF volume leaped by 806% to P12.45
Billion from only P1.73 Billion in 2012. The UITF
facility alone generated P81.66 Million in volume with
corresponding revenues of P1 Million from more than

a thousand enrolled clients since its launch on June
2013 to December 2013.

TRUST BANKING
GROUP
PERFORMANCE

n2013

from their UITFs, as well as managing and
monitoring their investments, via the internet. As
a result of this pioneering innovation, PNB’s total
UITF volume leaped by 806% to #12.45 Billion
from only P1.73 Billion in 2012. The UITF facility
alone generated £81.66 Million in volume with
corresponding revenues of 1 Million from more
than a thousand enrolled clients since its launch on
June 2013 to December 2013.

Similarly, the full implementation of the
Bank’s e-Collect cash management facility at the
beginning of the year resulted in a remarkable
5700% increase in actual collections amounting
from 878 thousand in 2012 to £51.5 Million in 2013.
Meanwhile, PNB’s Fiduciary Services business grew
to P14.58 Billion, riding on a robust 38% growth of
the Bank’s escrow volume to 5.4 Billion. And on
another note, the Group opened 6 Corporate Notes
Facilities accounts in the capacity of agent for a
total amount of over P53 Billion.

THE SHAPE OF THINGS TO COME

Total Assets
Under Management

e

P56.33B

Gross Income UITF Online
Generated Income
) 4 P81.66M

Now on its second year, the Pinnacle Club has
definitely proven to be a winning formula for both
PNB and Pinnacle Club members. The Pinnacle,
which offers first-class financial services and
privileges to PNB’s high-net worth clientele, ended
the year with 276 new members - 214 of which
were former Allied Bank clients - bringing its total
client list to 849. As a testament to the growing
confidence and satisfaction of its members, the
Pinnacle generated a total outstanding volume
of P15.57 Billion excluding treasury figures, an
impressive 41% growth from #11.05 Billion in 2012.
In addition, placements of members from former
Allied Bank branches amounted to £3.06 Billion.
Meanwhile, a second Pinnacle Hub was inaugurated
at West Avenue, Quezon Avenue to complement
the Ayala Branch Hub and cater to more Pinnacle
members.
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SPECIAL ASSETS

The Special Assets Management Group continuously ensures the

dynamic management of the Bank’s diverse acquired asset portfolio.
The Group successfully disposed an average of P2.49 Billion in sales of
the Bank’s Real and Other Properties Acquired (ROPA) - which yield a
weighted average of 28% premiums to book value - each year for the

H

..-f?:"L-‘r'-ﬁ".i'.u.‘..- ot 3 & 1 past three years. A total income of P1.12 billion was likewise generated
Eacatidd L e L
5 01 0

during this three-year span.

To complement the traditional sales channels of negotiated sales
& property auctions, the Group developed marketing initiatives for
small and medium ROPAs and conducted public sealed biddings
in various towns and provinces across the country. The Group also
enhanced its broker and referrer relations to expedite sales.

In 2013, the Group directed its efforts on scrubbing its asset
inventory in preparation for the eventual portfolio sale of the Bank’s
ROPA.

HUMAN RESOURCE

The Human Resource Group facilitated merger integration and
effectively developed a business environment wherein both existing
PNB and formerly Allied Bank personnel are able to effectively
respond to the twin challenges of fortifying institutional strengths
while responding to the call of new and diverse opportunities.

The Group’s training teams conducted 227 training sessions
featuring various technical, behavioral, sales, management and
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The Group’s total collections amounted to 1.8
Billion while the income generated from its total

portfolio amounted to P1.2 Billion.

CREDIT &

PERFORMANCE

n2013

leadership topics. With a total training attendance
of 7,267, this meant that more than half of the
merged Bank’s employees attended at least one
training program that enhanced their knowledge
and expertise in 2013. The innovative Coaching for
Performance program, which combined training and
on-the-job monitoring, was also launched within the
year. And on another note, employees who joined
the Bank’s fast-tracked Officer’s Training Program
(OTP) increased from 53 in 2012 to 349 in 2013.

The Bank remained committed to recognize
exemplary conduct and reward outstanding
contributions to the Bank through recognition
programs such as the Service Excellence Awards,
the Heroes Program and the Mystery Shopper
Program. Meanwhile, the Pulong Ng Bayan, the
Bank’s quarterly townhall meeting, continued to
serve as a fitting venue for Management to share
important updates and announcements to the
rest of the PNB community. The Bank has also
sustained its harmonious working relationship
with representatives of its labor force and has
perpetually enjoyed industrial peace.

THE SHAPE OF THINGS TO COME
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REMEDIAL
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Total Portfolio
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CREDIT & REMEDIAL

The Credit Management Group remained
steadfast in its role as guardian of credit quality
and partner in business growth. The Group
streamlined its policies and processes to address
business challenges and regulatory matters. To
further enhance processes and address volume
requirements, extensive technical trainings for
its personnel were given and third party service
providers were contracted.

Meanwhile, the Remedial Management
Group continued to utilize strategies that focus
on efficiency during the year: implementation
of realistic payment arrangements to avoid
undertaking costly foreclosures, rehabilitation for
profile-specific accounts, assignment of dedicated
lawyers for the immediate handling of collection
and documentary issues, and closer coordination
with the various business and marketing groups
for the early detection of problematic accounts
requiring timely remedial actions. The Group’s
total collections amounted to £1.8 Billion while the
income generated from its total portfolio amounted
to P1.2 Billion.
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GLOBAL FILIPINO BUSINESS
e ercen 4t PNB further strengthened its distinct franchise over the Global
i Filipino market segment. For the second year in a row, the Banko
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) awarded PNB as the Top Commercial Bank
in Generating Remittances from Overseas Filipinos.

To date, PNB has the widest footprint overseas with branches
and offices still serving as primary contact point for overseas Filipinos.
PNB has expanded its reach even further into non-traditional contact
channels in the form of partner agent agreements, distribution thru
convenience stores and other similar retail outlets. PNB continues to
innovate its product and services with the launch of Phone Remit,

a 24/7 toll free phone remittance platform servicing the Europe and
US market. In addition, the launching of PNB Web Remit in the last
quarter of 2013 allowed customers to conduct online remittance
transactions anywhere and anytime. With these products, combined
with our Global presence contributed significantly to the growth of
beneficiaries deposit accounts in the Philippines.

The bank continued to make headway in deepening its
relationship with its Global Filipino Customers by making personal,
home and auto loans including credit cards available. PNB has a
strong affinity with the OFW and continues to enrich the lives of
Filipinos worldwide.
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The Department gave away a total of 10 Million
Mabuhay Miles to cardholders as part of the
Travel the World promo in order to further
increase marketing mileage for the Mabuhay

Miles MasterCard, which remains to be one
of the best rewards programs in the industry.

CREDIT CARD
GROUP
PERFORMANCE

n2013

CREDIT CARDS

The Credit Card Department strategically
utilized various promotions and media outlets
like print, billboard, radio and digital to effectively
market their first-class products. The Department
gave away a total of 10 Million Mabuhay Miles to
cardholders as part of the Travel the World promo
in order to further increase marketing mileage for
the Mabuhay Miles MasterCard, which remains to be
one of the best rewards programs in the industry.
Meanwhile, to introduce the new look of PNB
MasterCard Credit Cards, the Department launched
the Miles & More campaign which offers Mabuhay
Miles and other rewards choices, as well as gifts,
freebies and discounts. On another note, to boost
credit card usage, the Swipe and Be Rewarded
promo allowed cardholders to exchange credit card
receipts for freebies and discounts from partner
merchants.

THE SHAPE OF THINGS TO COME

Best Rewards Program
in the Industry
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The Department also launched two new

products in 2013. The PNB-Jewelmer Joaillerie
Platinum MasterCard is a credit card that features
exclusive rewards and benefits like discounts,
loyalty rewards and affordable installment payment
offers from Jewelmer jewelry. Meanwhile, the PNB
Pang-Bayani Card was introduced to specifically
cater overseas Filipinos and their families in
recognition of their hard work and sacrifices. The
card offers affordable installment programs and
insurance features like free credit shield, free travel
insurance and free purchase protection insurance.
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PNB continued to exercise
its fervent corporate
social responsibility (CSR)
initiatives by building
sustainable communities,
improving lives of
Filipinos, empowering the
youth and protecting the
environment. The Bank
revisited its CSR policy
with the end goal of
imbuing various programs
that contribute to the
country’s sustainable
development and create
value to all stakeholders.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Empowering the Filipino Youth
PNB focused on empowering the
youth through educational programs
that help prepare them for their roles
as future leaders of the country. The
Bank partnered with the Tan Yan Kee
Foundation, the CSR arm of the Lucio
Tan Group of Companies, and various
other institutions in providing an
abundance of scholastic opportunities
for promising young students
nationwide. The Bank continued its
Global Filipino Scholar program, which
benefitted the children of PNB clients
who are Overseas Filipino via payment
of actual tuition fees, allowance
for books and school supplies, and
monthly stipends. Under the program,
PNB also extended cash assistance
to scholars who study at any of the
prestigious partner universities.

Another major CSR initiative was
the Bank’s participation in the 12th
Voice of Our Youth (VOY) Impromptu
Speaking Competition. In partnership
with the Department of Education
(DepEd), the 10 Rotary Districts, and
the Rotary Club of Bagumbayan -
Manila, the VOY competition sought to
provide a forum for the Filipino youth
to showcase effective spoken English
and comprehensive public speaking
skills.

PNB also continued its mission
to bring inspiration and provide hope
for a brighter future to students
nationwide through the Books Across
The Seas (BATS) Project, a program
that aims to provide tools for learning
through book donations to public
schools and libraries.
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Caring for the Environment
Committed to preserve and
protect the environment, PNB
embarked on tree planting activities
under the Branches Grow Greener
Program. More than 5,000 seedlings
were planted by Philnabankers
nationwide. This program also led
to the inception of other Bank-wide
projects that aim to conserve energy
such as the Switch Off (power) and Go
Paperless Campaigns.

Bringing Hope to the Nation

The Bank continued to instill
the spirit of volunteerism among its
employees through the Pagtutulungan
Ng Bayan, a CSR-inspired initiative
of PNB employees to raise funds and
collect basic necessities for victims of
calamities and other emergencies.

THE SHAPE OF THINGS TO COME
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On November 8, 2013, Typhoon
Yolanda hit hard on Visayas and
left a trail of destruction, most
severely in the cities of Samar and
Leyte. PNB, through the concerted
efforts of Philnabankers under the
Pagtutulungan Ng Bayan program,
reached out and heeded the call to
help rebuild Visayas.

A personification of these efforts
is PNB Guiuan’s Branch Manager
Jorge Agnes, Jr. As a testament to the
strong bayanihan spirit exercised by all
Philnabankers, Mr. Agnes and his team
reopened the said branch three weeks
after Yolanda despite likewise being
devastated by the typhoon in order
to earnestly attend to the banking
needs of his compatriots. This noble
undertaking was featured in no less
than the Wall Street Journal, a well-

Pagtutulungan ng Bayanar

known international daily newspaper.

PNB was also quick to respond
and extend assistance to those who
were affected by other disasters and
calamities that brought destruction
to several parts of the country in
2013 like the flooding in Compostela
Valley, Typhoon Maring, the Habagat
flooding, the Zamboanga siege and
the Bohol earthquake. Through it all,
the Pagtutulungan Ng Bayan was
successful in delivering timely aid and
relief to all the victims.
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

PNB as the Top Commercial Bank

in Generating Remittances from
Overseas Filipinos for 2013

PNB was cited by the Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas (BSP) as the 2013 Top
Commercial Bank in Generating
Remittances from Overseas Filipinos.
Having the largest overseas footprint
among Philippine banks, PNB has built a
very strong franchise in the remittance
business to cater to the needs of Global
Filipinos. In addition, PNB was also
distinguished as one of the Hall of Fame
Awardees, having been recognized as
the Best Commercial Bank Respondent
on Overseas Filipino Remittances.

Best in Innovation Award for the
ATMSafe 911 in the Philippine
Insurers and Reinsurance
Association, Inc. (PIRA) Awards
PNB General Insurance Co., Inc. (PNB
Gen) and Alliedbankers Insurance Corp.
(ABIC) won the Best in Innovation
Award for their entry, ATMSafe 911,

in the 2013 Philippine Insurers and
Reinsurance Association, Inc. (PIRA)
Awards. With the theme, “Breaking
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New Ground”, the 2013 PIRA

Awards recognized outstanding
non-life insurance companies which
implemented innovative solutions in
their business operations.

ATMSafe 911 is the country’s first
innovative card benefits program that
ensures the safety and protection of
PNB ATM cardholders. The program,
in partnership with Global Benefits
Group (GBG), replaces a percentage of
the money stolen from a cardholder’s
account during an ATM robbery
committed in the Philippines or
overseas, wherever PNB ATM cards
are accepted. For only P12 per month,
clients can also receive other benefits
such as replacement of cash in the
event of accidental death, hospital
confinement or identity theft.

Excellence in Business Model
Innovation for the Healthy Ka
Pinoy Emergency Card in the
Retail Banker International Asia
Trailblazer Awards

PNB, in partnership with PNB Life
Insurance, Inc. (PNB Life), won

the Excellence in Business Model
Innovation for their entry, the Healthy
Ka Pinoy (HKP) Emergency Card, in
the 2014 Retail Banker International
Asia Trailblazer Awards in Singapore.
The award giving body recognized
Asian banking institutions and credit
the outstanding financial institutions
that have exhibited a high degree of
innovation and enterprise in product
development, service delivery and
process improvement for the year 2013.
The HKP Emergency Card is the only
low-cost insurance product in the
country that provides emergency
room treatment and accidental death
and disability benefits. For an annual
premium of only 750, cardholders are
covered for up to 140,000 per year
and can seek emergency treatment

at any of the 890 accredited hospitals
and clinics of East West Healthcare,
HKP’s hospital network and emergency
service provider. PNB Life, PNB’s life
insurance subsidiary, is HKP’s insurer.
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Florencia G. Tarriela
Chairman

THE SHAPE OF THINGS TO COME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PNB espouses the philosophy of integrity, accountability and transparency in the manner of
doing business between its management, its board, its shareholders, including its stakeholders and
various publics. The PNB Group, its subsidiaries and affiliates, regularly facilitate regular monitoring,
putting in place full transparency and a degree of checks and balances to ensure a structured
approach in the operating processes with effective corporate governance system.

Annually, the Bank reviews its Corporate Governance structure and practices to align with
regulatory guidelines and new reportorial disclosures for entities within the group structure
and significant transactions among related parties. In 2013, PNB Group adopted a Related Party
Transaction (RPT) Policy in accordance with the Revised Code of Corporate Governance and
Securities Regulation Code issued by SEC and BSP Circular No. 749.

The PNB Board comprised of 15 directors has had the responsibility to foster the long-
term success of the PNB Group and to secure its sustained competitiveness and profitability in
accordance with its fiduciary responsibility. The members are prominent businessmen belonging
to a large conglomerate, former bank presidents, individuals with distinct finance, audit and legal
competencies who are highly esteemed in their respective profession.

We have three directors inducted “fellow” by the Philippine Institute of Corporate Directors
namely, Chairperson Florencia G. Tarriela, Directors Florido P. Casuela and Leonilo G. Coronel.

PNB Parent Bank recognizes the important role of independent directors in the Board and
fully conforms to the law mandating at least 20% to be represented by them. We have three
independent directors represented by Chairperson Florencia G. Tarriela and Directors Felix Enrico
R. Alfiler and Deogracias N. Vistan. Notably, our Bank plans to include two more independent
directors in the coming year.

The relationship of the Chairperson of the Board and the President & Chief Executive Officer
provides appropriate balance of power, increased accountability, independent decision making by
the Board and the management responsibility to execute strategic plans of the Bank.

PNB has nine Board Committees instrumental in setting the tone for the corporate governance
practices namely: Corporate Governance/Nomination/ Remuneration Committee, Board Credit &
Policy Committee, Board Credit Committee, Board Auditand Compliance Committee, Risk Oversight
Committee, Board ICAAP Steering Committee, Board Overseas Offices Oversight Committee,
Trust Committee and the a new Board Committee created in 2013, the Board Oversight Related
Party Transaction Committee. The newly formed Committee was created to assist the Board in
performing its oversight functions in monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of
management, board members, and shareholders.

The management of the day-to-day banking operations rest on the President and Chief
Executive Officer supported by fourteen management committees. Our management committees
are focused on implementing the business plans working closely with the Board as part of a strong
culture of accountability and transparency embedded in the entire organization.

We promote the safety and soundness of our operations through a compliance system
managed by the Global Compliance Group. The group has five divisions and is headed by the
Chief Compliance Officer. In 2013, the newly created Corporate Governance Monitoring Division
provides support to the Corporate Governance/Nomination/Remuneration Committee and the
Board Oversight Related Party Transaction Committee thru the Chief Compliance Officer as the
designated Corporate Governance Executive.

The Corporate Governance / Nomination / Remuneration Committee exercises prudence in
the selection of the Bank’s senior management to ensure the judicious execution of the Bank's
objectives, strategies, and policies approved by the Board, taking into account its risk tolerance and
appetite, yet ensuring robust governance and financial stability of the bank.

The bank’s organizational structure facilitates effective decision making, transparency, and
good governance which is fully supported by various training programs that enhance performance
of each employee towards achieving best practices in the light of emerging risks that are relevant
to the challenges posed by changes in global corporate governance.

We believe that a strong corporate governance framework is crucial in achieving our goal of
preserving the long-term viability of the franchise licenses of the PNB Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank adheres to the highest principles of good corporate
governance as embodied in its Amended By-Laws and Articles of
Incorporation, Code of Conduct and Corporate Governance Manual.
It subscribes to the philosophy of integrity, accountability and
transparency in its manner of doing business; dealing fairly with its
clients, investors, stockholders, the communities affected by the Bank's
activities and its various publics. The Bank espouses professionalism
among its Board of Directors, executives and employees of the Bank
in managing the company, its subsidiaries and affiliates; and respect
for laws and regulations. The Bank practices a philosophy of rational
checks and balances and adopts a structured approach to its operating
processes.

The Bank operations is managed through an established
organizational structure with adequate policies and procedures
embodied in manuals approved by management and board committees
and the Board. These manuals are subjected to periodic review and
update to be consistent with the new laws, regulations and generally
conform to international best practices. The Bank has adopted the
Revised Corporate Governance Manual aligned with recently issued
regulatory guidelines and new reportorial disclosures for entities within
the group structure and significant transactions among related parties
with particular focus on the Related Party Transaction (RPT) Policy. This
is in accordance with the Revised Code of Corporate Governance and
Securities Regulation Code issued by SEC.

The Bank is a recipient for two consecutive years (2011-2012) of
the Silver Award for good corporate governance from the Institute of
Corporate Directors (ICD), in recognition of the institution’s existing
organization composed of dedicated corporate directors and senior
management committed to the professional practice of corporate
directorship in line with global principles of modern corporate
governance.

Board of Directors

PNB is led by its Board of Directors consisting of fifteen directors.
The Board is primarily responsible for approving and overseeing the
implementation of the Bank’s strategic objectives, risk management
strategy, corporate governance, and corporate values.

Compliance with the highest standards in corporate governance
principally starts with the Board of Directors which has the responsibility
to foster the long-term success of the Bank and secure its sustained
competitiveness and profitability in accordance with its fiduciary
responsibility. In the same manner, every employee of the entire
organization is expected to embrace the same degree of commitment
to the desired level of corporate standards.

The Board of Directors is elected annually by the stockholders and
comprised of fifteen members including three Independent Directors.
The Board represents a combination of highly qualified business
professionals, former bank presidents, individuals with distinct finance,
audit and legal competencies, with each director adding value and
exercising independent judgment.

The Board of Directors undergo continuing training in corporate
governance and collectively hold a broad range of expertise and
related banking experience that provide value to the strengthening
and upholding of good corporate governance practices in the bank.
In the Board, three directors were inducted “fellow” by the Philippine
Institute of Corporate Directors in recognition of their distinguished
reputation and commitment to the highest standards of corporate
governance principles, ethics and social responsibility.
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Independent Director

In carrying out their responsibilities, the directors must act
prudently and exercise independent judgment while encouraging
transparency and accountability.  The Bank conforms to the law
mandating at least 20% of the Board to be represented by independent
directors. Thus, in 2013, we had three Independent Directors. And
moving forward to 2014, our Bank plans to include two more.

Recognizing the importance of the role of independent directors,
the Board has elected the independent directors to act as Chairman of
the Board, Board Credit & Policy Committee, Corporate Governance/
Nomination/Remuneration  Committee, Board ICAAP  Steering
Committee, Board Overseas Offices Oversight Committee, Board Audit
and Compliance Committee, Trust Committee and Board Oversight
Related Party Transaction Committee. The independent directors are
also members of the Risk Oversight Committee wherein the Chairman
is a non-executive director and former president of a government
bank with universal banking license. In these Board Committees, the
five independent directors play an active role in the formulation of the
business strategies and priorities of the Bank as stipulated in the Board
approved Five Year Strategic Business Plan of the Bank, its subsidiaries
and affiliates. The Board and the Committees continue to review and
strengthen the corporate governance policies to adopt consistency in
the corporate governance framework in the Bank, its subsidiaries and
affiliates.

Chairperson of the Board

Chairperson of the Board Florencia G. Tarriela assumed the
position in 2005 and as Independent Director in 2006.  As an
Independent Director, she is also the Chairperson of the Board
Committee on Corporate Governance/Nomination/Remuneration
and the Board ICAAP Steering Committee; Vice-Chairperson of the
Board Credit and Policy Committee and seats as a member of the Risk
Oversight Committee, Board Audit and Compliance Committee, Board
Overseas Oversight Committee and the Board Oversight Related Party
Transaction (RPT) Committee.

The Chairperson of the Board and the President & Chief Executive
Officer are complimentary. This relationship provides appropriate
balance of power, increased accountability, independent decision
making by the Board and the management responsibility to execute
strategic plans of the Bank.

Board Committees
The nine (9) Board Committees have been instrumental in setting

the tone for the corporate governance practices of the bank. In 2013,

a new Board Committee was established to provide focus on related

party transactions.

. The Board Credit & Policy Committee was created to perform
the functions and duties as the Board may confer upon it in
accordance with law and the By-Laws of the bank.

. The Board Credit Committee was created to review, discuss,
endorse and/or approve management recommendations,
updates and report on credit matters and to provide flexibility
to respond to time-sensitive matters as well as to facilitate the
approval of certain corporate actions within the authority limits
determined by the Board.

« The Board Oversight RPT Committee, was created in August
2013 to assist the Board in performing its oversight functions in
monitoring and ensuring transparency to eliminate potential
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conflicts of interest of management, board members and

shareholders.

. The Board Audit and Compliance Committee has oversight
responsibility relating to the integrity of the Bank's financial
statements, internal controls and compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

. The Board Overseas Offices Oversight Committee was created
in provides oversight on the international operations and to
preserve the long-term viability of the overseas franchise licenses.

. The Risk Oversight Committee has the primary task to assist the
Board in the management of the risks the bank is exposed to and
development of risk management strategies to prevent losses
and minimize financial impact of losses.

. The Corporate Governance/Nomination/Remuneration
Committee ensures the board’s effectiveness and adherence
to corporate governance principles and guidelines and the
selection of members of the Board and senior executives of
the bank, as well as the appointment in the respective Board
committees.

. The Board ICAAP Steering Committee provides active oversight
on the consistent adoption of the Bank’s ICAAP Program and
performs periodic evaluation and approval of the capital
planning, risk assessment policies and procedures.

. The Trust Committee provides direction for the trust business
and management of trust assets, fiduciary accounts, investments
and trust services.

The Board Committee meetings are held generally on monthly
basis or special board committee meetings are called as often as
necessary. The Board Committee Secretariats are responsible to
ensure regular agenda of the meetings, attendance of members and
resource persons are communicated prior to meetings and ensure
that discussions are properly recorded and endorsed to the Board for
approval.

Operations Management

The responsibility of managing the day-to-day operations of the
Bank and implementing the major business plans rest on the President
and Chief Executive Officer. Critical issues, policies and guidelines
are deliberated in the pertinent management committees: Senior
Management Committee, Asset and Liability Committee, Senior
Management Credit Committee, IT Management Committee, Non-
Performing Assets Committee, Acquired Assets Disposal Committee,
Promotions Committee, Operations Committee, Product Committee,
Bids and Awards Committee, Information Technology Evaluation
Committee, Senior Management ICAAP Steering Committee, AML
Review Committee and the Integration Monitoring Committee.
Committee meetings are conducted in a manner that ensures open
communication, meaningful participation and timely resolution of
issues.

The business plans, significant issues and its resolutions are
escalated to the level of the Board as part of a strong culture of
accountability and transparency embedded in the entire organization.

Most of the management committees have the President as
the Chairman with the members comprised of senior management
of the Bank and key officers of the various business segments, the
Risk Management Group, Office of the Chief Legal Counsel, Internal
Audit Group and Global Compliance Group. The composition
and appointment of senior officers in the different management
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committees are assessed periodically and reorganized as necessary in
line with the business priorities.

Compliance System

The Bank actively promotes the safety and soundness of its
operations through a compliance system that fully adheres to banking
laws, rules and regulations and to maintain an environment that is
governed by high standards and best practices of good corporate
governance. Thisis achieved primarily through the formulation of policies
and procedures, an organizational structure and an effective compliance
program that will support the bank’s compliance system.

The Global Compliance Group which reports directly to the Board
Audit and Compliance Committee is primarily responsible for promoting
compliance with the laws and regulations of the different jurisdictions,
corporate policies and procedures and international best practices.

The Chief Compliance Officer has direct responsibility for the
effective implementation and management of the enterprise compliance
system covering the Parent Bank, its subsidiaries and affiliates. To further
strengthen good corporate governance, the Board of Directors appointed
the Chief Compliance Officer as the Corporate Governance Executive
tasked to assist the Board and the Corporate Governance/Nomination/
Remuneration Committee in the discharge of their corporate governance
oversight functions.

Global Compliance Group continues to evolve the bank's
Compliance System with the complement of five major divisions, namely:
Global AML Compliance Division, Regulatory Compliance Division,
Business Vehicle Management Compliance Division, Global Compliance
Testing Review Division and the newly upgraded Corporate Governance
Division.  The new division provides support to the Corporate
Governance/Nomination/Remuneration Committee and the Board
Related Party Transaction Committee thru the Chief Compliance Officer
as the designated Corporate Governance Executive.

The Bank's existing Compliance Program defines the seven (7)
key elements of an effective compliance framework. With a proactive
Board and executive level oversight, effective compliance organizational
structure, standardized policies and procedures across all businesses,
periodic monitoring and assessment, robust MIS and compliance
reporting, comprehensive compliance and AML awareness training and
independent compliance testing reviews. The Compliance Program also
incorporates the new policies, laws and regulations and enhancements
to corporate standards of which Philippine National Bank, as the Parent
Bank, its local and foreign subsidiaries and affiliates are required to be fully
aware of the Compliance Program has been implemented consistently in
the various bank units, branches and business vehicle entities.

The Bank's AML/CFT Policy Guidelines and Money Laundering and
Terrorist Financing Prevention Manuals are two major manuals approved
by the Board in December 2013.  The revised AML/CFT Manuals has
incorporated FATCA compliance in preparation for the US regulatory
reportorial requirements effective 2015. The bank is fully committed to
adheretoexistingand new AML laws, rules, regulations,andimplementing
guidelines issued by both Philippine and foreign regulators.

The bank has updated policies and procedures embracing the
compliance framework, the corporate governance guidelines and
the AML Risk Rating System issued by Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas and
foreign regulators on AML/CFT as well as FATCA laws and regulations.
With a comprehensive compliance system effectively implemented
enterprise-wide, there has been no material deviation noted by the Chief
Compliance Officer.
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RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

MESSAGE FROM THE RISK OVERSIGHT
COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN

At PNB, we place a high priority on risk management and are taking steps to
continue to refine our framework for risk management, including the identification
and control of the risks associated with our operational activities.

The Risk Oversight Committee, as mandated by the bank’s Board of Directors,
operates as the highest level of PNB’s risk governance. The bank continues to
implement risk governance via a structured hierarchy of committees both in the
executive and the board level. The flow of information between the board level
committees is constant and allows consistent evaluation of the risks inherent in the
business, raise the alarms, if any and manage the business effectively with strong
adherence to process management guidelines and control.

In 2013, Risk Oversight Committee is tasked to cover the primary risk areas of
Credit, Market, Liquidity, Interest Rate in Banking Books, Technology and Information
Security. The year also marks the harmonization of the risk management processes
for the merged bank - of PNB and Allied Bank. The bank submitted its harmonized
ICAAP reports in August 2013, and in January 2014 in compliance to BSP’s merger
incentives. There were also marked improvements in the increase coverage of risk
management for Trust, Treasury and the overseas units. Scenario analysis and stress
testing were also conducted thru Post Event Review to assess the impact of the
major natural & man-made disasters that hit the nation, i.e. super typhoon Yolanda,
earthquake in Cebu-Bohol and siege in Zamboanga. Results of the stress testing
showed that there were only few borrowers affected and there were no significant
impact on the Bank’s NPL and Capital Adequacy ratios. The bank also formalized
its Information Security Management System Program through the approval and
implementation of the Tier 3 and Tier 4 policies for the enterprise information
security management.

The bank’s Enterprise Data Warehouse (EDW) and Business Intelligence (BIl)
System, in Production for more than two (2) years now, has been enhanced to
provide more relevant reports and analytics to the various business units of the Bank.
To date, there are more than 25 Dashboards and 500 reports/analytics available in
the EDW-BI system covering the following major subject areas of: customer insights
and views, customer information and data quality, deposit and loan information
analytics, credit risk analytics, regulatory reports compliance and loss events

The bank’s risk management functions is also regularly evaluated through a
system of measurements to cover the areas of: organizational culture and support,
risk management structure of the bank, where board and executive level involvement
are measured, business unit commitment to a control governance framework is
continually improved, as well as the bank’s compliance to regulatory guidelines.

The year 2014 presents the challenges of completing the bank’s harmonization
and the implementation of our new core banking system. Risk Management is
expected to be in the forefront of the bank’s programs to support its ongoing 5-year
mission and vision of optimal use of the bank’s domestic and international footprint.

Ftrntd . Yoy
Florido P. Casuela
Director
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Introduction

Among the primary objectives of risk management is to limit adverse gaps in earnings and equity though managing risk exposures and
capital within agreed limits. This ensures attainment of the bank’s growth plans in a controlled environment. Managing and controlling risk,
minimizing undue concentrations of exposures and limiting potential losses from stress events are among the essential elements of the Bank’s
risk management and control framework. This framework ultimately ensures the protection of the Bank’s reputation and is consistent with our
objective of increasing shareholder value.

The merger of Allied Banking Corporation and Philippine National Bank was finalized in Feb 9, 2013, as approved by BSP (Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas) and SEC (Securities and Exchange Commission). Harmonization activities commenced in 2008 when the respective Board of
Directors of PNB and Allied Banking Corporation (ABC) passed resolutions approving the plan to merge the two banks. The activities involved
the areas of bank policies, processes and systems together with the merged organizational structure. For the risk management function, the
various risk management tools are now applied to the new bank with data sourcing as one of the bigger challenges to hurdle. Further the
bank submitted its merged ICAAP (Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process) document in August 2013 in time to comply with the
merger incentives set by the BSP.

At PNB, we place a high priority on risk management and are taking steps to continue to refine our framework for risk management,
including the identification and control of the risks associated with our operational activities.

The Board and its Risk Oversight Committee operate as the highest level of PNB's risk governance. At management level, risk governance
is undertaken by a structured hierarchy of committees each with specified accountabilities. The continues flow of information between the
board and board-level committees and the corresponding management committees; allow for consistent evaluation of the risks inherent
in the business, raise the alarms, if any, and manage the business effectively with strong adherence to process management guidelines and
controls. Figure 1 below provides a list of the board level committees and management committees. Their corresponding functions, roles
and responsibilities are highlighted in the Corporate Governance discussion in this annual report.

Board of Directors President & CEO

+ Credit & Policy Committee - Senior Management Committee

+ Corporate Governance / Nomination Committee + Asset Liability Committee

+ Board Audit and Compliance Committee « Senior Management Credit Committee

+ Risk Oversight Committee +Information Technology Governance Committee
+ Board ICAAP Committee « Non-Performing Assets Committee

« Trust Committee « Acquired Assets Disposal Committee

- Board Overseas Oversight Committee - Promotions Committee

+ Board Oversight RPT Committee + Operations Committee

+ Product Committee

+ Bids and Awards Committee

+Information Technology Evaluation Committee

+ Senior Management ICAAP Steering Committee

« AML Review Committee

- Integration Monitoring Committee

« Accreditation of Overseas Remittance Agent Committee

Figure 1. Board & Management Committees
Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Bank’s philosophy is that responsibility for risk management resides at all levels within the Bank and therefore uses the three lines of
defense model:

*  The first line of defense rests with business units who are responsible for risk management. Assessment, evaluation and measurement of
risk are ongoing processes and are integrated in the day to day activities of the business unit. The process includes the setting up of a
proper system of internal control, identifying issues and taking remedial actions where required.

*  The second line of defense comes from the risk management function of the Bank, which is independent of business operations. The risk
management unit implements the risk management framework, provides independent oversight over specific board directives and is
responsible for regular reporting to the Risk Oversight Committee

*  The third line of defense is the internal audit function which provides an independent assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the overall risk management framework and governance structures. The internal audit function reports directly to the Board Audit
Committee & Compliance Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

The PNB Board Risk Oversight Committee is created by the PNB Board of Directors to assist the board to oversee the risk profile and
approves the risk management framework of PNB and its related allied subsidiaries and affiliates. It is mandated to set risk appetite, approve
frameworks, policies and processes for managing risk, and accept risks beyond the approval discretion provided to management.

The risk management policy includes:

« acomprehensive risk management approach;
a detailed structure of limits, guidelines and other parameters used to govern risk-taking;
a clear delineation of lines of responsibilities for managing risk;
an adequate system for measuring risk; and
effective internal controls and a comprehensive risk-reporting process.

Risk Categories and Definitions
We broadly classify and define risks into the following categories, and manage the risks according to their characteristics. These are

monitored accordingly under the enterprise ICAAP program:

Risk Definition

Risk Category

Risk Monitoring Process

Risk Management Tools

the current and prospective risk to
earnings or capital arising from an Fl's
inability to meet its obligations when
they come due.

Liquidity Ratios
Large Fund Providers
MCO

Liquid Gap Analysis

Market Risk Market risk is the risk to earnings Value at Risk Utilization VAR Limits
or capital arising from adverse Results of Marking to Market Stop Loss Limits
movements in factors that affect the Risks Sensitivity/Duration Report Potential Loss Alerts
market value of financial instruments, Exposure to Derivative/Structured ROP Exposure Limit
products and transactions in an Products Limit to Structured Products
institution’s overall portfolio, both on 30-day AFS Holding Period
or off balance sheet and contingent Traders’'Limit
financial contracts. Market risk arises Exception Report on Rate
from market-making, dealing and Tolerance
position taking in interest rate, foreign
exchange, equity, and commodities
market.

Liquidity Risk Liquidity risk is generally defined as Funding Liquidity Plan MCO Limits

Liquid Assets Monitoring
Stress testing

Large Fund Provider Analysis
Contingency Planning

Interest Rate
Risk in the
Banking Books
(IRBB)

Interest rate risk is the current and
prospective risk to earnings or capital
arising from movements in interest
rates. The amount at risk is a function
of the magnitude and direction of
interest rate changes and the size and
maturity structure of the mismatch
position. (BSP Circ 510, dated 03 Feb
2006)

Interest Rate Gap Analysis
Earnings at Risk Measurement

EAR Limits

Stress Testing

Balance Sheet Profiling
Repricing Gap Analysis

Credit Risk
(including
Credit
Concentration
Risks and
Counterparty
Risks)

Credit risk is the risk to earnings or
capital that arises from an obligor/s,
customer/s or counterparty’s failure
to perform and meet the terms of its
contract.

Loan Portfolio Analysis
Credit Dashboards

Trend Analysis (Portfolio / Past
Due and NPL Levels
Regulatory and Internal Limits
Stress Testing

Rapid Portfolio Review

CRR Migration

Movement of Portfolio
Concentrations and
Demographics Review

Large Exposure Report
Counterparty Limits Monitoring
Adequacy of Loan Loss
Reserves Review
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Risk Category

Country Risks

Risk Definition

Country risk refers to uncertainties
arising from economic, social and
political conditions of a country which
may cause obligors in that country to
be unable or unwilling to fulfill their
external obligations.

Risk Monitoring Process

= Risk Identification

= Risk Measurement

= Risk Evaluation (i.e. Analysis of Risk)

= Risk Management (i.e. Monitor,
Control or Mitigate Risk)

Risk Management Tools

Country Risk Limits against
benchmarks

Limits to Exposures to ROPs
Limits to exposures on CLNs
and Structured Products

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the current and
prospective risk to earnings or capital
arising from fraud, error, and the
inability to deliver products or services,
maintain a competitive position, and
manage information. It encompasses:
product development and delivery,
operational processing, systems
development, computing systems,
complexity of products and services,
and the internal control environment.

= Risk Identification

= Risk Measurement

= Risk Evaluation (i.e. Analysis of Risk)

= Risk Management (i.e. Monitor,
Control or Mitigate Risk)

Monitoring of Pillar Il Risks fall under
the purview of Operational Risk
Management:
1. Risk Identification — Risk Maps
2. Risk Measurement and Analysis —
ICAAP Risk Assessment

Major Integration Factors considered:
1. Products

Technology

People

Policies and Processes
Stakeholders (including customer
and regulators

CEFNEWEN

Internal Control

Board Approved Operating
Policies and Procedures
Manuals

Board Approved Product
Manuals

Loss Events Report (LER)
Risk and Control Self-
Assessment (RCSA)

Key Risk Indicators (KRI)
Business Continuity
Management (BCM)
Statistical Analysis
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Risk Category

Risk Definition

Risk Monitoring Process

Risk Management Tools

Included in the Operational Risks:

Technology
(including
Information
Security Risks)

Information Technology Risk is a
business risk associated with the use,
ownership, operation, involvement,
influence and adoption of IT within

the Bank (ISACA Risk IT Framework). IT
Risk results to Information Security Risk
since the risk would somehow result
to non-preservation of any or all of the
domains of information security; that is,
confidentiality, integrity and availability
of information asset (NIST IR 7298
Revision 2).

Strategic Risks

Strategic business risk is the current
and prospective impact on earnings or
capital arising from adverse business
decisions, improper implementation of
decisions, or lack of responsiveness to
industry changes.

Legal Risk

Legal risk is the current and prospective
impact on earnings or capital arising
from legal sanctions against the Bank.
It includes the risk of exposure to
litigation, arbitration, mediation and
other non-litigious courses of action.

Customer
Franchise
(including
Reputational
Risks)

Reputational risk is the current and
prospective impact on earnings or
capital arising from negative public
opinion. Customer franchise risk is
defined as the failure to find, attract,
and win new clients, nurture and
retain those the Bank already has, and
entice former clients back into the fold
as well as the failure to meet client’s
expectation in delivering the Bank's
products and services.

Human
Resources Risk

Human resource risk covers the Bank's
risk of financial loss due to risks in
human capital acquisition, losses due
to inadequate training, inexperience or
illegal activities of risk-taking and other
personnel.

= Risk Identification

= Risk Measurement

= Risk Evaluation (i.e. Analysis of Risk)

= Risk Management (i.e. Monitor,
Control or Mitigate Risk)

Monitoring of Pillar Il Risks fall under

the purview of Operational Risk

Management:

1. Risk Identification — Risk Maps

2. Risk Measurement and Analysis —
ICAAP Risk Assessment

Major Integration Factors considered:
Products

Technology

People

Policies and Processes
Stakeholders (including customer
and regulators

uhwnNPE

= Risk Asset Register
= Incident Reporting

Management
Information Security Policy
Formulation

Management Profitability
Reports

Benchmarking vis-a-vis
Industry, Peers

Economic Forecasting

Status of Legal Cases >Ph50MM
at risk

Review of pending tax
assessment/s

Adequate provisioning for
probable losses

Issuance of circulars, tax
guidelines and procedures

Account Closures Report
Service Desk Customer Issues
Report

Evaluation/ Risk Mitigation of
negative media coverage
Review of Stock Price
performance

Attrition Analysis

Internal Fraud Analysis
Training Needs Programs
Recruitment Turnaround and
Fit Analysis
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Risk Definition

Risk Category

Risk Monitoring Process

Risk Management Tools

are actually met. PNBTBG has to
contend with a variety of risks as it
engages in investment management,
rust and other fiduciary activities.

Merger Risk Merger risk is the current and Integration Progress Reporting
prospective negative impact on Approvals for major policy
quantifiable and non-quantifiable changes
benefits expected from the integration Risk Assessment for new/
of the 2 banks — Allied Bank and PNB. upgrade of information /
These are: automated systems

Harmonization Timeline
1. Delays in the implementation of Tracking
integration activities as planned
which can be caused by foreseen
and unforeseen events
2. Non-achievement in the planned /
targeted cost synergies
3. Delays in the integration of
products, processes, technology
and non-technology systems
4. Attrition of key personnel which
may result in delays or targets not
achieved
5. Overruns in the planned integration
costs
Trust / Fiduciary | Fiduciary risk is the measure of = Independent risk oversight, checks Investment Studies
Risks uncertainty that fiduciary requirements and balances, written procedures Target Market

and

= controls founded on board-
approved Trust Policies

= |dentification and understanding of
key risks

Product Programs

Setting of risk limits

VaR & Stop Loss Limits

Loss Alert Volume Limits
Liquidity Limits

Exposure Limits

Exceptions / Breaches to Limits
Reporting to ROC

Stress testing

Compliance Risk

Compliance risk is the current and
prospective risk to earnings or
capital arising from violations of, or
non-conformance with, laws, rules,
regulations, prescribed practices,
internal policies and procedures, or
ethical standards.

= structured AML policies and
procedures
= seven (7) elements of the board-
approved Compliance Program
= Risk Assessment
= Monitors sub-risks as follows:
o  Clientrelated
o Employee conduct
o Organizational conduct
o  Service conduct

Circularization of new laws,
regulatory agencies'circulars
Compliance Training for
employees, BOD & officers
Compliance testing
Enhanced quarterly
certification

Monitoring of Corrective
Actions on Excepted items

Acquired Assets
Disposal Risk

Acquired Assets Disposal Risk is the
current and prospective negative
impact to the bank because of the
inability or delay in the disposal of the
Bank's acquired assets.

Monitoring of Pillar Il Risks fall under

the purview of Operational Risk

Management:

1. Risk Identification — Risk Maps

2. Risk Measurement and Analysis —
ICAAP Risk Assessment

utilizes the following

marketing outlets to promote
and advertise (publications,
auctions, mailers, social media,
etc.

Performance Management
Reports

ROPA Risk Dashboard (monthly)
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RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

Risk Management Major Milestones for 2013:

MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT (includes Liquidity Risk and Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Books)

The Market Risk and ALM Division of the Risk Management Group supports the ALCO and Risk Oversight Committee with the independent
assessment and reporting of the market risk profile as well as the liquidity profile of the Bank. The market risk framework comprises of market
risk policies and practices embodied in the Market Risk Management Manual and the control structure with the appropriate delegation of
authority through the risk limits. In addition, the Division is fully engaged in the new product program which ensures that identified risk
issues are adequately addressed prior to the launch of Treasury products. Linkage between risk and capital is reviewed through the monthly
validation of the computation of the market risk weighted exposures.

Market Risk

»  Additional controls for the Available for Sale (AFS) portfolio were set up by implementing AFS Observation VaR limit. Further, the Group
made use of additional tool for fixed income monitoring which is the Duration Sensitivity measure or the Present Value of a Basis Point
("PV01"), which measures the change in value of interest rate sensitive exposures resulting from one basis point increase across the entire
yield curve. This was done considering that the main market risk exposure of the Group comes from interest rate risk.

»  Stress testing program and scenario analysis for the trading portfolio were improved to identify the Bank's vulnerability to event risk.

»  Full Involvement in the review and improvement of the risk management framework of derivatives risks particularly on
interest rate swap and NDF to ensure that the risk identified are appropriately measured, controlled/mitigated and reported.

Liquidity Risk and Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Books

» Implementation of the merged behavioral assumption of the merged Bank core and volatile deposits in the Maximum Cumulative
Outflow Report (MCO) using an improved statistical model and analysis.

»  Establishment of the Long-Term Interest Gaps to supplement the Earnings at Risk (EAR) which covers the one-year exposure in interest
rate risks.

»  Support to the ALCO through the conduct of various simulations and computation of the Transfer Pool Rate of the Bank for presentation
to the regular meeting of the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO).

»  Stress testing program and scenario analysis for liquidity were improved to identify the Bank’s vulnerability to event risk.

»  Creation of merged liquidity and interest rate risk dashboards of the Bank.
TRUST RISK MANAGEMENT

»  Adapted the risk management process, as applicable, to incorporate the changing landscape of the Trust Banking Group operations. The
fiduciary industry lost tax exemption privileges on its clients'long-term investments except for bank-issued investment assets, and as well
had to ensure that investment securities that are still eligible to claim tax exemption must comply with the holding period requirement
onan overlying and underlying basis. In addition, the industry’s agency accounts lost its access to the BSP-issued Special Deposit Account
facility. This comprised a significant portion (about 40%) of PNB-Trust Banking Group’s Assets under Management. Further, risk reporting
was done for the merged PNB entity as early as for the period covering March 2013.

»  Enhanced the risk monitoring process for the bank’s Trust Banking Group operations by increasing the granularity of the risk reports.
Bank counterparty line availments were previously monitored on the basis of aggregate and long-term line limits. In line with the
change in the landscape of the Trust Banking Group operations, bank counterparty line limits and availments were separated according
to exposures that have impact on the overall bank’s Single Borrower Limit and those that are exempt in accordance with the provisions
of the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB) issued by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas. Concentration monitoring of investments that
previously monitored exposures by group, individual entities/ issuers, credit rating, liquidity, industry, asset class included currency level
for additional information about potential foreign exchange risk exposure of its clients.

» Increased coverage of risk monitoring for the Trust Banking Group operations. Additional counterparty exposures were monitored versus
limits. Exposure in equity investments were monitored for accounts that had specific special investment mandates as embodied in the
investment policy statements. This may include restrictions of certain equity investments in the funds or a concentration
limit with regard to a specific issuer.

»  Coordinated with concerned Trust Banking Group divisions and assisted them in the preparation of RCSA, ICAAP and any other risk related
matters.

» Active involvement in the review and enhancement of Trust Banking Group policies, as well as procedural and product manuals.

»  Oriented newly hired employees and other training participants on Trust Risk Management framework for a better appreciation of the
subject matter.
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CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

>

>

Immediately after the merger, harmonized the risk monitoring processes, dashboard reports, risk limits, credit risk ratings methodology
and most of the credit risk policies and procedures. Reviewed the reports and data sources to ensure a better data integration.

Incorporated additional “red flags” on the Credit Risk dashboard reports (e.g. country risk limits, SME limits, Agricultural and Agrarian
Reform limits, Expanded Real Estate Exposure, Non-performing Sales Contracts Receivables, related party transactions, credit cards, and
overseas past due loans).

Focused on rapid response to information requirements of seniors and board of directors whenever there is a disaster or economic/
financial event that could lead to the credit portfolio degradation.

Scenario analysis and stress testing were conducted thru Post Even Review to assess the impact of the major destructions that hit the
nation i.e. super typhoon Yolanda, earthquake in Cebu-Bohol and siege in Zamboanga. Results of the stress testing showed that there
were only few borrowers affected and there were no significant impact on the Bank’s NPL and Capital Adequacy ratios.

Active involvement in the review and enhancement of credit policies, credit manuals, procedural manuals, credit scoring, credit risk
ratings and proposed loan origination system to ensure that all credit risk issues were mitigated.

Assisted the Subsidiaries and Overseas Branches in enhancing their risk review and monitoring process.
Robust monitoring of large exposures of the merged bank and scenario stress testing to assess their impact to capital.

Ensured that regulatory requirements for loan loss reserves and impairment were adhered

OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT

YV V V

>
>

Successful implementation of Operational Risks Tools to re-clustered Branch Banking, under the merged bank
Continuous identification of High Risk Areas for efficient monitoring of critical risks across the organization
Completion of Risk Education and Awareness Program (REAP) Roadshow to all Domestic Branches and Regional Centers

Completion of Business Continuity Awareness Training to Domestic Branches Area Heads, Branch Managers, Sales & Services
Heads and Sales & Service Officers and to Regional Centers personnel for cascading to their own teams as a Table Top Test
in 1Q of 2014

Completed product demonstration by several vendors for our Operational Risks Management solution

Completed Procedural Manual of Operational Risks procedures/processes

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND INFORMATION SECURITY RISK MANAGEMENT
Theyear 2013 saw the harmonization of the manuals, policies and procedures in the ongoing journey of [T/ IS Risk Assessment and Management.

RMG-Information Security & Technology Risk Division

>
>
>

vV V V V

Issued the Enterprise Information Security Policy for the merged Bank and created sub-policies to supplement the Enterprise policy.
Coordinated with IT to identify the gaps on IT policies / guidelines and procedures.

Prepared the [T/IS risk register that was used in the preparation of ICAAP risk assessment, risk map, RCSA and other risk assessment
activities / projects.

Identified scenarios that will be used for stress testing in coordination with ITG personnel.
Coordinated with concerned business units and assisted ITG in the preparation of RCSA, ICAAP and Risk Map.
Active involvement in the review and enhancement of bank policies & procedures where IT/IS risk is involved.

Performed the compliance checking / monitoring of BISOs, activities of privileged users and identification / implementation of security
patches due to system vulnerabilities.

Performed the bi-monthly classroom orientation for newly hired employees, email blasts/advisories, issuance of posters and website
updates to educate employees and clients.

Ensured that regulatory requirements (e.g., EMV, 3DES migration, etc.) are monitored and complied with.

Engagement of third party to perform external Vulnerability Assessment and Penetration Testing (VAPT) for the merged
Bank
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RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

ITG - Information Technology Security & Control Division

>

>

Institutionalization of reporting of IT updates and risk issues to the IT governance Committee and the Risk Oversight
Committee

Availability of updated and approved IT Policies, Guidelines, Service Level Agreements & other IT documentations in
alignment with business requirements, regulatory requirements, best practices and global standards. Alignment of bank
policies with regulatory requirements to include overseas units host country regulators.

Due diligence follow through on activities to resolve audit findings and compliance to regulatory requirements;

Participation, quality assurance review of IT projects to ensure compliance to controls and policies; continuous review of
outsourced service in compliance to IT Managed Outsourcing Services

Continuous [T risk assessment and compliance checking to IT Security and Controls for, among others: Vulnerability
Assessment; Review of Security Baseline for servers, database, network devices, desktops; logical and password administration,
patch management, application security, and physical security

Management and assurance of support and strict Implementation of Change Management Controls, Processed Change
Request, Pre/Post Checking of Deliverables, Impact Assessment, Deployments to Development, User Acceptance Testing,
Production and Business Recovery Center

BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE ANALYTICS AND ENTERPRISE DATA WAREHOUSE INITIATIVES
The Business Intelligence and Data Warehouse Division (BIDWD) under the Risk Management Group is tasked to manage the design and
implementation of the EDW Programs (stream of concurrent projects) as defined in the Bl roadmap.

The Enterprise Data Warehouse (EDW) and Business Intelligence (Bl) System has been in Production for more than two (2) years now and is
continually being enhanced to provide more relevant reports and analytics to the various business units of the Bank. To date, there are more
than 25 Dashboards and 500 reports/analytics available in the EDW-BI system covering the following major subject areas:

>

38

Customer Insight/View: The Bank users are able to view the total business relationship (e.g. total loans and deposits) at the
conglomerate or group of companies with the ability to drill down to the details of the portfolio of the member companies.
The Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) has mandated all Banks to monitor the total credit exposure at the conglomerate level.

Customer Information Data Quality Monitoring System: The bank’s Customer Information File (CIF) Data Quality/
Exceptions Monitoring system managed by the CIF unit under Global Operations Group, to monitor on a regular basis, data
exceptions pertaining to CIF. With the system in place, data quality on customer information has significantly improved thru
the regular reporting and monitoring of progress on data exceptions.

Deposit Information and Analytics: Decision support analytics on deposit clients to enable Performance Monitoring
by region, branch, product, etc,; Profiling of Customers, Branches, Products, Interest Rates; Monitor Deposit Levels and
Movements/Changes (by Area, Region, Branch, Product Type, Product Class)

Loan Portfolio Reports and Analytics: Decision support analytics on loan clients to provide information on loan levels
and historical trends, performance monitoring by geographical location centers, product, industry, customer type and
account status (particularly on past due and NPL accounts)

Credit Risk Rating and Migration Reports and Analytics: Decision support analytics on Report on Rated Accounts
by Industry, by Customer Type; Analysis of Account Migration including the Reasons for the Change; Analysis on the
Effectiveness of the Credit Rating Model used by the Bank

Compliance to Regulatory Reporting Requirements: enable the bank to provide quick information for regulatory and
internal reports on Expanded Real Estate Exposure (EREE), Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR), , Value at Risk (VaR) Calculations,
Maximum Cumulative Output (MCO) Reports

Credit Facility/Loan Collateral Reports and Analysis: Support for the monthly credit dashboard via Monitoring of
Approved Facility vs. Loan Utilizations, Tracking maturity dates and renewals of each facility/line, Actionable Information (e.g.
Excess Utilization, Due for Renewal, Un-renewed Facility, Track Collateral by Pool and Facility and Report Data Exceptions,
Monitor Collateral Cover against Total Outstanding Portfolio
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» Loss Events Reporting (LER) for Operational Risk Management: automation of the data entry and reports creation for
LER (from collation of reports from the 500+ branches), with realized savings of around 15 to 18 man-days per month with
the automation of the data entry and reports creation.

With the EDW & Bl System in place for Loans, Deposits, GL, Treasury, Credit Facility, Collateral and other source systems, the following benefits
continue to be gained: Single Source of Truth/Single Point of Access to Information; Improved Data Quality and Accuracy; Improved availability
of Consistent Data; Empowered End-Users; Improved Productivity and Operational Efficiency; Timely Answers to Business Questions/New
Insights; Improved Speed of Reports Delivery; Strengthened Portfolio Management & Performance Monitoring; More Informed and Strategic
Decision Making; Facilitated Compliance to BSP Requirements and Audit Findings; Data Foundation for Decision Support Systems.

ICAAP IMPLEMENTATION AND COMPLIANCE

The Bank complies with the required annual submission of updated Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) document under
BSP Circular 639. Post-merger, the bank submitted the ICAAP Document covering 2013-2015 on August 2013. Further, in compliance with the
above circular appointed timeline, the bank also submitted the ICAAP Document covering 2014-2016 on January 2014.

The Bank's Board-approved ICAAP Policy is the “backbone”of the ICAAP Document serving as the ‘guide map'of the Bank's various stakeholders.
The Bank’s ICAAP aims to provide stakeholders with a risk profile on an ongoing basis and ensures that the risks-taking business units are
equally aware of the effects of these risks against the Bank'’s profitability and capital position.

The Board of Directors (BOD), Board ICAAP Steering Committee and Senior Management ICAAP Steering Committee have been responsible in
reinforcing the need to integrate capital planning/management and regular risk assessment into the Group's overall management culture and
approach. Further, the ICAAP oversight bodies mentioned above recognized that ICAAP is beyond compliance, i.e. it is about how to effectively
run the Bank's operations by ensuring that the Bank maintains at all times an appropriate level and quality of capital to meet its business
objective and commensurate to its risk profile. The ICAAP process highlights close integration of capital planning/strategic management
with risk management. The Bank has in place a risk management framework that involves a collaborative process for assessing and managing
identified Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 risks.

The merged banks capital level is more than sufficient to meet the BSP minimum CAR requirement and cover for the 14 materials risks that
the bank monitors.

Risk Management Group (RMG) plays a major role (in coordination with Corporate Planning Group and the Controllership Group) in the
development, generation and deployment of the ICAAP program in the bank. In particular, RMG has created a special division — ICAAP & Basel
Division — to channel the enterprise wide execution of the ICAAP activities of the PNB Group.

The major milestones for the August 2013 and January 2014 submissions are highlighted below:

I. August 2013 Merged ICAAP Document

*  Conducted Merged ICAAP Workshop to ICAAP Coordinators and Risk Overseers as part of the roll-out of the ICAAP program on an
enterprise wide basis.

*  Coordinated the harmonization of Risk Maps for the Merged Bank 13 Material Risks
*  Spearheaded the harmonization of the ICAAP risk assessment and aggregation process

*  Coordinated the bank-wide ICAAP risk assessment and quantification process; provided feedback, comments and suggestions,
including the individual stress tests for use by the Primary Risk Owners, ICAAP and Risk Coordinators of the 13 Material Risks

e Consolidated the risk assessment results, prepared write-ups and annexes for the 2013 Merged ICAAP Document
e  Together with Corporate Planning Group and with the approval of the SM ICAAP Steering Committee and the Board ICAAP Steering
Committee, finalized the Merged ICAAP Document for submission to BSP

1. January 2014 ICAAP Document

e Conceptualized, designed and prepared the Interview Questionnaire for the Subsidiaries' risk profiling for the 2014 ICAAP
implementation

e Conducted Risk Assessment Workshops for Subsidiaries, Internal Audit Group and various Groups and Working Teams
*  Enhanced the RCSA templates for Parent and Subsidiaries for the 2014 ICAAP roll-out

*  Rolled-out the following 2014 ICAAP RCSAs on different levels and dates: (1) ICAAP RCSA for the Subsidiaries ;(2) Part 1 ICAAP RCSA
for the Business and Support Units and (3) Part 2 ICAAP Quantification for the Primary Risk Owners
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Implemented down-the-line risk assessment to Business units and Subsidiaries
Reviewed, evaluated and provided feedback on the following risk assessments:

(@) Part 1 ICAAP RCSA from Business Units and Support Units; (b) ICAAP RCSA of Subsidiaries and; (3) Part 2 ICAAP Quantification
from Primary Risk Owners

Applied STATA (statistical analytics tool) for the consolidation of Part 1 Part 2 ICAAP RCSA results, and disseminated to the Primary
Risk Owners for their respective ICAAP quantifications

Consolidated the risk assessment results, prepared write-ups and annexes for the 2014 Merged ICAAP Document
Facilitated submission of completed 2013 Merged ICAAP RCSAs and Risk Maps
Finalized the January 2014 ICAAP Document for submission to BSP

Other ICAAP/Basel-related items

Assisted PNB Europe PLC (PNBE) in their risk assessment relative to their ICAAP, ILA & RRP submission to FSA in compliance with host
country regulations and requirements.

Regulatory Capital Requirements under BASEL Il - Pillar 1
The Bank’s total regulatory requirements as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Consolidated (Amounts in £0.000 million) Weighted Exposures
Total Credit risk-weighted assets 327919.714
Total Market risk-weighted assets 9,337.189
Total Operational risk-weighted assets 40,938.779
Total Risk-Weighted Assets 378,195.682
PNB's Risk-based Capital Adequacy Ratio 19.684%

Credit Risk ~-Weighted Assets

The Bank still adopts the standardized approach in quantifying the risk weighted assets. Credit risk exposures are risk weighted based on third
party credit assessments of Fitch, Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s and Phil rating agencies. The ratings of these agencies are mapped in accordance
with the BSP. Following are the consolidated credit exposures of the Bank and the corresponding risk weights:

Exposures
Exposure, Net | covered by
of Specific Credit Risk
Provision Mitigants* | Net Exposure 0% 20% 50% 75% 100% 150%
Cash & Cash Items 10,940 10,940 10,539 401
Due from BSP 153,271 153,271| 153,271
Due from Other Banks 17,143 17,143 6,377 3,337 7,429
Financial Asset at FVPL 2 2 2
Available for Sale 79,775 18,908 60,867 30,025 3,182 11,172 16,488
Unquoted Debt Securities 9,308 9,308 4,120 5,188
Loans & Receivables 257,139 28,843 228,296 6,868 13418 20,657| 184,057 3,296
Sales Contracts Receivable 3,519 3,519 2,564 955
Real & Other Properties

Acquired 15,552 15,552 15,552
Other Assets 34,507 34,507 34,507
Total On-Balance Sheet Asset 581,156 47,751 533405| 193835| 16,828| 27,927| 20,657| 249,167| 24,991
Risk Weighted Asset - On-

Balance Sheet 319475 0 3,366 13,964 15493| 249,167 37485
Total Off-Balance Sheet Asset 10,648 171 172 4662 693 4,950 0
Total Risk Weighted Off-Balance

Sheet Asset 7835 0 34 2,331 520 4,950 0
Counterparty Risk Weighted

Asset in Banking Book 600 2 428 170
Counterparty Risk Weighted

Asset in Trading Book 10 10
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Credit Risk Mitigants used are cash, guarantees and warrants.

Market Risk -Weighted Assets

For market risk, the Bank's regulatory capital requirements uses the standardized approach (“TSA") under which a general market risk charge
for trading portfolio is calculated based on the instrument’s coupon and remaining maturity with risk weights ranging from 0% for items with
very low market risk (i.e., tenor of less than 30 days) to a high of 12.5% for high risk-items (i.e., tenor greater than 20 years). Further, capital
requirements for specific risk are also calculated for exposures with risk weights ranging from 0% to 8% depending on the issuer’s credit rating.

Capital Requirements by Market Risk Type under Standardized Approach

(Amounts in £0.000Million) Capital Charge Adjusted Market Risk
Capital Charge Weighted Exposures
Interest Rate Exposures 200.627 250.784 2,507.836
Foreign Exchange Exposures 506.741 633426 495.090
Equity Exposures 39.607 49.509 6,334.263
Total 746.975 933.719 9,337.189

The following are the Bank’s exposure with assigned risk weights held for trading (HFT) portfolio:

Interest Rate Exposures

Specific Risk
Specific Risk from the held for trading (HFT) portfolio is P43.296M. ROPs compose 51% of the portfolio with risk weight ranging from 1.0%

and 1.6%, 45% of the portfolio are peso government bonds with zero risk weight and 6% are unrated corporate bonds with attracts 8.00% risk
weight.

Part IV.1a

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURES - SPECIFIC RISK Risk Weight

(Amounts in £0.000 million)

0.00% 0.25% 1.0% 1.60% 8.00% Total

PHP-denominated debt securities issued by the Philippine 1,441.747 = -1 1,441.747
National Government (NG) and BSP

FCY-denominated debt securities issued by the Philippine = 9.997 210.155| 1,445.776 - 1,665.928
NG/BSP

Debt securities/derivatives with credit rating of AAA to BBB- = = 35.707 = 35.707
issued by other entities

Subtotal 1,441.747 9.997 210.155] 1,481.483 218320 3,361.702

Specific Risk Capital Charge for Credit Default Swaps - - - -

SPECIFIC RISK CAPITAL CHARGE FOR DEBT SECURITIES - 0.025 2.102 23.704 17.466 43.296
AND DEBT DERIVATIVES

General Market Risk —Peso

The Bank's exposure to Peso General Market Risk is 260.182M, contributed mostly by debt securities with average remaining maturity ranging
from 5 to 10 years with risk weight at 3.25% to 3.75%. The Bank’s portfolio under the Over 20 years' time band attracts 6% risk weight or

£ 18.643M representing 21% of the total Peso General Market Risk.

Currency: PESO
PART IV.1d GENERAL MARKET RISK (Amounts in £0.000 million)
Zone Times Bands Individual Positions Risk Weight Weighted Positions
Coupon 3% or more Coupon less than 3% Total
Long Short Long short
1 1 month or less 1 month or less 1.538 = 0.00% = =
Over 1 month to 3 months Over 1 month to 3 months = = 20% = =
Over 3 months to 6 months Over 3 months to 6 months 0.024 = 0.40% = =
Over 6 months to 12 months Over 6 months to 12 months 12.498 = 0.70% 0.087 =
2 Over 1 year to 2 years Over 1.0 year to 1.9 years 25631 = 1.25% 0.320 =
Over 2 years to 3 years Over 1.9 years to 2.8 years 50.357 = 1.75% 0.881 =
Over 3 years to 4 years Over 2.8 years to 3.6 years 22.778 = 2.25% 0.513 =
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RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

Currency: PESO

PART IV.1d GENERAL MARKET RISK (Amounts in £0.000 million)

Zone Times Bands Individual Positions Risk Weight Weighted Positions
Coupon 3% or more Coupon less than 3% Total
Long Short Long short
3 Over 4 years to 5 years Over 3.6 years to 4.3 years 9434 - 2.75% 0.259 -
Over 5 years to 7 years Over 4.3 years to 5.7 years 407.539 - 3.25% 13.245 -
Over 7 years to 10 years Over 5.7 years to 7.3 years 434.965 - 3.75% 16.311 -
Over 10 years to 15 years Over 7.3 years to 9.3 years 90.942 - 4.50% 4.092 -
Over 15 years to 20 years Over 9.3 years to 10.6 years 111.032 - 5.25% 5.829 -
Over 20 years Over 10.6 years to 12 years 310717 - 6.00% 18.643 -
Over 12 years to 20 years - - 8.00% - -
Over 20 years - - 12.50% - -
Total 1,477 455 - 60.182 -
Overall Net Open Position 60.182 -
Vertical Disallowance - -
Horizontal Disallowance - -
TOTAL GENERAL MARKET RISK CAPITAL CHARGE 60.182 -

General Market Risk - USD

The Bank’s exposure on General Market Risk of the dollar denominated HFT portfolio is P96.801M caused by debt securities, forward contracts
and dollar-denominated interest rate swaps. Approximately 82% of dollar denominated debt securities have an average remaining maturity
ranging from 5 years to over 20 years thus attracting a risk weight of 3.25% to 6%. On the other hand, the IRS attracts risk weight of 3.25%
under the over 5 to 7 years bucket while the Bank'’s forward contracts have less than one year remaining maturity, thus, attracting a risk weight

of less than 1%.

PART IV.1d GENERAL MARKET RISK (Amounts in P0.000 million)
Currency: USD
Maturity Method 1/
Zone Times Bands Individual Positions Risk | Weighted Positions
Coupon 3% or more | Coupon less Debt Securities & Interest Rate Total Weight
than 3% Debt Derivatives Derivatives
Long Short Long Short Long Short Long Short
1 1 month or less 1 month or less 9.997 . 11,080.514| 1473.098| 11,090.511| 1,473.098 | 0.00% . =
Over 1 month to 3 Over 1 month - - 2,426.187 - 2,426.187 - 0.20% 4852
months to 3 months
Over 3 monthsto 6 |Over 3 months - - 1,876.845 - 1,876.845 0.40% 7.507
months to 6 months
Over 6 months to 12 | Over 6 months = = 221975 = 221975 = 0.70% 1.554
months to 12 months
2 Over 1 yearto 2 Over 1.0yearto | 210.155 = = = = = 1.25% 2627
years 1.9 years
Over 2 yearsto 3 Over 1.9 years 94.013 = = = = = 1.75% 1.645
years to 2.8 years
Over 3 years to 4 Over 2.8 years 25446 = = = = = 2.25% 0.573
years to 3.6 years
3 Over4yearsto5 Over 3.6 years = = = = = = 2.75% =
years to 4.3 years
Over 5yearsto 7 Over 4.3 years 170453 = 1,452.086| 1444295 1,622.539| 1444295 | 3.25% 52733] 46.940
years to 5.7 years
Over 7 years to 10 Over 5.7 years 417.258 - - - 417.258- - 3.75% 15.647
years to 7.3 years
Over 10yearsto 15 |Over 7.3 years 224.347 = = = 224.347- = 4.50% 10.096
years to 9.3 years
Over 15 years to 20 | Over 9.3 years 285461 - - - 285461 - 5.25% 14.987
years to 10.6 years
Over 20 years Over 10.6 years 447118 = = = 447118 = 6.00% 26.827
to 12 years
Over 12 years to = = = = = = 8.00%
20 years
Over 20 years = = = = = = 12.50%
Total = 17,057.607 | 2,917.393| 18,941.855| 2,917.393 139.047| 46.940
Overall Net Open Position 92.107
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PART IV.1d GENERAL MARKET RISK (Amounts in P0.000 million)
Currency: USD
Maturity Method 1/
Zone Times Bands Individual Positions Risk | Weighted Positions
Coupon 3% or more | Coupon less Debt Securities & Interest Rate Total Weight
than 3% Debt Derivatives Derivatives
Long Short Long Short Long Short Long Short
Vertical Disallowance 4.694
Horizontal Disallowance -
TOTAL GENERAL MARKET RISK CAPITAL 96.801
CHARGE

General Market Risk - AUD
The Bank's exposure on General Market Risk- AUD is at P0.261M representing forward contracts under the Over 1 months to 6 months category.

PART IV.1d GENERAL MARKET RISK (Amounts in P0.000 million)
Currency: AUD
Maturity Method 1/
Zone Times Bands Individual Positions Risk Weighted Positions
Coupon3%or | Coupon lessthan 3% | Debt Securities & Interest Rate Total Weight
more Debt Derivatives Derivatives
Long Short Long Short Long Short Long Short
1 1 month or less 1 month or less - - 886.850 11.000 886.850| 11.000 0.00% - -

Over 1 monthto 3 |Over 1 month to 3 - - 43359 - 43539 - 0.20% 0.087

months months

Over 3 months to 6 |Over 3 months to 6 - - 43539 - 43539 - 0.40% 0.174

months months
Total - - 973.928 11.000 973.928| 11.000 0.261
Overall Net Open Position 0.261
Vertical Disallowance -
Horizontal Disallowance -
TOTAL GENERAL MARKET RISK CAPITAL CHARGE 0.261

General Market Risk — HKD
The Bank’s exposure on General Market Risk- HKD is minimally at P0.087M representing forward contracts under the 1 month to 3 months
category.

PART IV. 1d GENERAL MARKET RISK (Amounts in P0.000 million)
Currency: HKD
Maturity Method 1/

Zone Times Bands Individual Positions Risk | Weighted Positions
Coupon 3% or | Coupon less than 3% | Debt Securities & Interest Rate Total Weight
more Debt Derivatives Derivatives
Long Short Long Short Long Short Long Short
1 1 month or less 1 month or less = = = 870.853 = 870.853 0.00% = =

Over 1 monthto 3 |Over 1 month to 3 = = = 43.544 = 43544 0.20% = 0.087

months months
Total - - - 914.397 - 914.397 - - 0.087
Overall Net Open Position = 0.087
Vertical Disallowance = =
Horizontal Disallowance - -
TOTAL GENERAL MARKET RISK CAPITAL CHARGE - 0.087
Equity Exposures

The Bank’s exposure to Equity Risk attracts adjusted capital charge of P49.509M or Risk weighted equity exposures of P495.09M. The Bank’s
holdings are in the form of common stocks traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange, with 8% risk weight both for specific and general market
risk.
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PART 14.2. EQUITY EXPOSURES (Amounts in £0.000 million)

Item Nature of [tem Positions Stock Markets Total
Philippines
Al Common Stocks Long 247.545 247.545
Short
Short
A.10 TOTAL (SUM of A.1 to A.9) Long 247.545 247.545
Short
B. Gross (long plus short) positions (A.10) 247545 247545
C. Risk Weights 8% 8%
D. Specific risk capital (B. times C.) 19.804 19.804
E. Net long or short positions 247.545 247.545
F. Risk Weights 8% 8%
G. General market risk capital charges (E. times F) 19.804 19.804
H. Total Capital Charge For Equity Exposures (sum of D. and G.) 39.607
I Adjusted Capital Charge For Equity Exposures (H. times 125%) 49.509
J. TOTAL RISK-WEIGHTED EQUITY EXPOSURES (I. X 10) 495.090

Foreign Exchange Exposures

The Bank's exposure to Foreign Exchange (FX) Risk carries an adjusted capital charge of P633.426M or Risk Weighted FX Exposures of 6.334B
based on 8% risk weight. The exposure arises mostly from FX assets and FX liabilities in USD/PHP. The Bank also holds third currencies in JPY,

CHF, GBP, EUR, CAD, AUD, SGD and other minor currencies.

Part IV. 3 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURES
‘ ‘ Closing Rate USD/ : 44398
Item Nature of Item Currency In Million USD Equivalent In Million
Pesos
Net Long/(Short) Position Net Delta- Total Net Total Net
(excluding options) Weighted Long/(Short) | Long/(Short)
Banks Subsidiaries Positions of Positions Position
/Affiliates FX Options
1 2 3 4=1+2+3 5
A.10 |Sum of net long positions 6,334.263
A.11  |Sum of net short positions (42.533)
B. |Overall net open positions 6,334.263
C.  |Risk Weight 8%
D. |Total Capital Charge For Foreign Exchange Exposures 506.741
(B.times C.)
E. |Adjusted Capital Charge For Foreign Exchange 633.426
Exposures (D. times 125%)
F.  |Total Risk-Weighted Foreign Exchange Exposures, 6,334.263
Excluding Incremental Risk-Weighted Foreign
Exchange Exposures Arising From NDF Transactions
(E. times 10)
G. |Incremental Risk-Weighted Foreign Exchange -
Exposures Arising From NDF Transactions (Part IV.3a,
Iltem F)
H. |Total Risk-Weighted Foreign Exchange Exposures 6,334.263
(Sum of F.and G.)

Operational Risk - Weighted Assets

The Bank adopted the Basic Indicator Approach in quantifying the risk weighted asset for Operational Risk. Under the Basic Indicator Approach,
the Bank is required to hold capital for operational risk equal to the average over the previous three years of a fixed percentage (15% for this
approach) of positive annual gross income (figures in respect of any year in which annual gross income was negative or zero are excluded).

(amounts in £0.000 Million) Gross Income Capital Requirement

(15% x Gross Income)
2010 22,498.508 3374776
2011 19,969.805 2,995471
2012 (last year) 23,033.734 3,455.060
Average for 3 years 3,275.102
Adjusted Capital Charge Ave x 125% 4,093.878
Total Operational Risk weighted Asset 40,938.779
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BOARD AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT

Board Audit and Compliance Committee Report
The Board Audit and Compliance Committee (Committee) of the Philippine National Bank
(PNB) is a standing Committee of the Board of Directors. The purpose of the Committee is to:

Assist the Board of Directors in the performance of its oversight responsibility relating to
financial reporting process, systems of internal control, audit process and monitoring of
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations;

Monitor and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank's internal control
system.

Review the quarterly, half-year and annual financial statements focusing particularly
on: a) Any change/s in accounting policies and practices; b) Major judgmental areas;
) Significant adjustments resulting from the audit; d) Going concern assumptions; e)
Compliance with accounting standards; and f) Compliance with tax, legal, regulatory
and stock exchange requirements.

Provide oversight over compliance functions and/or oversee the compliance program;

The engagement of the External Auditors and the evaluation of the External Auditor’s
qualifications, independence and performance;

The Committee operates under a written Charter adopted by the Board of Directors. The
Charter empowers the Committee to:

Have explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms and reference, full
access to and cooperation by Management and full discretion to invite any Director
or Executive Officer to attend its meetings, and adequate resources to enable it to
effectively discharge its functions.

Have the sole authority to select, evaluate, appoint, and replace the External Auditors
(subject to stockholder ratification) and shall approve in advance all audit engagement
fees and terms and all audit related, and tax compliance engagements with the External
Auditors. It may recommend to the Board of Directors to grant the President authority
to negotiate and finalize the terms and conditions of the audit engagement as well as
the audit fees, and sign, execute and deliver the corresponding contract and all non-
audit engagement with the External Auditors subject to the confirmation/approval of
the Committee members.

Have the authority, to the extent it deems necessary or appropriate, to retain special
legal, accounting, or other consultants to advise the Committee. The Bank shall provide
funding, as determined by the Committee, for payment of compensation to the External
Auditors and to any advisors employed by the Committee.

i

Deogracias N. Vistan
Director
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« Form and delegate authority to subcommittees, comprised
of one or more members of the Committee, as necessary or
appropriate. Each subcommittee shall have the full power and
authority of the Committee.

+ Ensure that a review on the effectiveness of the institution’s
internal controls, including financial, operationaland compliance
controls, and risk management, is conducted at least annually.

« Establish and maintain mechanisms by which officers and staff
may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties
or malpractices in matters of financial reporting, internal control,
auditing or otherissues to persons or entities that have the power
to take corrective action. It shall ensure that arrangements are
in place for the independent investigation, appropriate follow-
up action and subsequent resolution of complaints.

The Committee shall review and assess the adequacy of its Charter
annually and recommend any proposed changes for approval of the
Board of Directors.

The Committee is composed of seven (7) members consisting of five
(5) Non-Executive Directors (NED) and two (2) Independent Directors
(ID), including the Committee Chairman who are highly qualified
business professionals with excellent educational credentials.
Members of the Committee undergo continuing training and
collectively hold a broad range of expertise and related banking
experiences that provide value to the strengthening and upholding
good governance practices in the bank.

Activities for the calendar year 2013

The Committee had 16 meetings during the year — twelve (12) regular
monthly meetings and four (4) special meetings with an average
attendance of 81.18%. Accomplishments and work-in progress are
monitored to ensure the full discharge of all its functions. For the
calendar year 2013, the Committee:

+ Reviewed and discussed the unaudited consolidated quarterly
financial statements and the audited consolidated annual
financial statements of the Bank, including management’s
significant judgments and estimates. While the Committee has
the responsibilities and powers as set forth in this Charter, it is
not the duty of the Committee to determine that PNB's financial
statements and disclosures are complete and accurate and are in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable rules and regulations. These are the responsibilities of
Management and the External Auditors;

« Assessed the independence and effectiveness of the external

auditors, tax preparers and consulting companies, and endorsed
them to the Board of Directors;
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« Reviewed the scope of work and fees of the external auditors,
tax preparers and consulting companies, assessed their
independence and effectiveness, and endorsed them to the
Board of Directors;

. Reviewed the performance of the Internal Audit Group and
Global Compliance Group;

. Reviewed and approved the annual plans of the Internal Audit
Group and Global Compliance Group for 2013, and the audit
plan of the external auditors for the consolidated financial
statements of the Bank for the period ending December 31,
2013;

. Reviewed the results of audits and recommendations of the
internal and external auditors and their assessment of the
Company’s internal controls and the overall quality of the
financial reporting process;

+ Reviewed the applicable reports of the Internal Audit Group
and Global Compliance Group, ensuring that management
takes timely and appropriate corrective actions, including those
involving internal control and compliance issues;

«  Performed self-assessments and reviewed the overall
effectiveness of the Committee as against its Charter, following
the guidelines set by the Securities and Exchange Commission;

. Enhanced the Committee Charter by adopting leading good
governance practices.

Based on the above responsibilities, authority and activities, the
Board Audit and Compliance Committee recommended to the
Board of Directors the approval of the Audited Consolidated Financial
Statement of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2013 and
their consequent filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission
and other regulatory bodies.
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DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF BOARD AUDIT AND
COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Board Audit and Compliance Committee shall have the following
duties and responsibilities:

On Financial Statements

- Review the quarterly, semi-annual, annual and any periodic financial
statement signed by the CEO and CFO prior to submission to the Board,
with particular focus on the following:

« Any change/s in accounting policies and practices

- Major judgmental areas

- Significant adjustments

- Going concern assumptions

- Compliance with accounting standards

- Compliance with tax, legal, and stock exchange requirements
- Oversight of the Bank's External Auditors:

- Review/approve the Audit Program of the External Auditors prior to any
audit undertaking, the scope among which includes the nature, coverage,
expenses of the audit, and ensure proper coordination if more than one
audit firm and/or internal independent review/external examination
is involved in the activity to secure proper coverage and minimize
duplication of efforts.

- Evaluate and determine non-audit work/services by External Auditor and
keep under review the non-audit fees paid to the External Auditor both in
relation to their significance to the auditor and in relation of the Bank's total
expenditure on consultancy and whether provision of non audit services
is compatible with maintaining the External Auditor's independence. The
non-audit work should be disclosed in the annual report.

- Ensure that the external auditor/auditing firm shall be changed or the
lead or concurring partner shall be rotated every five years or earlier. The
rotation of the lead and concurring partner shall have an interval of at
least 2 years.

- Review and discuss with management and the External Auditors the
annual audited financial statements and disclosures and matters such as,
but not limited to, accounting policies and practices, management letter,
significant disagreement with management.

Oversight of the Bank’s Internal Auditor

- Responsible for the establishment of the Internal Audit Group and the
appointment and replacement of the Chief Audit Executive (who will
report directly to the BACC functionally) including annual performance
review of the CAE, accepting the resignation and/or dismissal subject to
due process.

- Review, evaluate and approve the Annual Audit Plan to include the audit
scope, frequency and prioritization of high risk business units/entities as
well as approve any significant change to the Annual Internal Audit Plan.

- Ensure that the Internal Audit Group has adequate resources in terms of
manpower, budget and training to effectively fulfill its independent duties
in the expedient implementation of the Annual Audit Plan.

- Review and approve audit reports to the extent that BACC Chairman may
issue directives to Senior Management to develop and implement the
necessary corrective actions in a timely manner and/or require submission
of a Project Plan to address promptly any significant weaknesses in internal
controls, non-compliance with corporate policies and standards, potential
violations to laws and regulations and recommendations by Internal Audit
Group to align the bank with global or industry best practices.

- Review and evaluate the adequacy of the work performed by the CAE
and Internal Audit Group.

THE SHAPE OF THINGS TO COME

The Committee shall ensure that the internal auditors shall have free and
full access to all the Bank’s records, properties and personnel relevant
to the internal audit activity and that the internal audit activity should
be free from interference in determining the scope of internal auditing
examinations, performing work, and communicating results.

Oversight of the Bank’s Chief Compliance Officer

- Review and approve the Global Compliance Organizational Structure
including the appointment of the Compliance Officers/Compliance
Designates across all business units and recommend appointment of the
designated Compliance Officers to the respective Board of the subsidiaries
and affiliates.

- Evaluate and recommend to the Board the appointment of the Chief
Compliance Officer who shall report directly to the Chairman of the Board
through the BACC.

- Review and approve the Annual Compliance Program/Plan submitted
by the Chief Compliance Officer and significant amendments to the
Annual Compliance Plan including accomplishments vs. the approved
Compliance Plan every January.

- Oversee the Board approved Compliance Programs across all businesses
and ensure compliance recommendations are addressed by the
President/ CEO and Senior Management and/or the respective Board of
the bank subsidiaries/affiliates on a timely basis.

- Oversee the AML Compliance Framework through the Global Compliance
Group to ensure effective senior management oversight, coordination,
monitoring and escalation of significant weaknesses in AML policies and
procedures and potential violations with AML implementing rules and
regulations issued by the resident country regulators of the Parent Bank
and its subsidiaries and affiliates.

- Review and approve AML Compliance Testing Review reports to the
extent that the BACC Chairman may issue directives to the President/CEQ,
Senior Management and notify the respective Board of the subsidiaries
and affiliates to implement corrective actions or provide Project Plans
primarily to address significant weaknesses in AML Compliance by Parent
Bank and its subsidiaries and affiliates.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
The Committee shall -

- Monitor and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s
internal control system including financial reporting control and
information technology security.

- Receive and review reports of internal and external auditors, compliance
and regulatory agencies, where applicable and ensure that Management
is taking appropriate corrective actions, in a timely manner.

- Conduct self-assessment of the performance of the Parent Bank BACC
as a whole as well as the individual performance of each committee
member annually. The results of the self-assessment shall be validated by
the Board Corporate Governance Committee and endorsed to the Board
for approval. The entire assessment process should be documented and
should form part of the records of the bank that may be examined by the
regulators from time to time.

- Review and evaluate the self-assessment of the performance of the
Compliance and Audit Committees of the bank subsidiaries and affiliates
to ensure that the respective Compliance and Audit Committee policies
and activities are aligned with Parent Bank.

- Review and assess the adequacy of this Charter annually and recommend
any proposed changes for approval of the Board of Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MANUEL T. GONZALES Board of Advisor
LEONILO G. CORONEL Director
FLORIDO P. CASUELA Director
REYNALDO A. MACLANG Director
FELIX ENRICO R. ALFILER Director
REYNALDO A. MACLANG Director
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7 DEOGRACIAS N. VISTAN Director
HARRY C. TAN Director

9 FLORENCIA G. TARRIELA Chairman

10 LUCIO C. TAN Director

11 OMAR BYRON T. MIER President

12 LUCIO K. TAN, JR. Director
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CHRISTOPHER J. NELSON Director
ATTY. DORIS S. TE Corporate Secretary
WILLIAM T. LIM Board of Advisor
WASHINGTON Z. SYCIP Director
ESTELITO P. MENDOZA Director
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PROFILE OF PNB DIRECTORS

FLORENCIA G. TARRIELA

67, Filipino, first elected as a Director on May 29, 2001, has been serving as
Chairman of the Board of the Bank since May 24, 2005, and as Independent
Director since May 30, 2006. She also serves as an Independent Director
of PNB Capital and Investment Corporation, PNB Life Insurance, Inc, PNB
(Europe) Plc and LT Group, Inc. She is also a member of the Board of Advisors
of PNB Remittance Centers, Inc. She obtained her Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration degree, Major in Economics, from the University of
the Philippines and her Masters degree in Economics, from the University
of California, Los Angeles, where she topped the Masters Comprehensive
Examination. Ms. Tarriela is currently a columnist for “Business Options” of the
Manila Bulletin. She is a Life Sustaining Member of the Bankers Institute of the
Philippines (BAIPHIL), and Trustee of Finex and TSPl Development Corporation.
She was formerly an Independent Director of the Philippine Depository and
Trust Corporation, the Philippine Dealing and Exchange Corporation and the
Philippine Dealing System Holding Corporation. Ms. Tarriela was also former
Undersecretary of Finance, and an alternate Member of the Monetary Board
of the BSP, Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP) and the Philippine Deposit
Insurance Corporation (PDIC). She was formerly Deputy Country Head,
Managing Partner and the first Filipino lady Vice President of Citibank N. A,
Philippine Branch. Ms. Tarriela is a co-author of several inspirational books -
"Coincidence or Miracle? Books |, II, Il ("Blessings in Disguise”), and IV ("Against
All Odds"), and gardening books - “Oops-Don't Throw Those Weeds Away!”
and“The Secret is in the Soil”. She is an environmentalist and practices natural
ways of gardening.

OMAR BYRON T. MIER

67, Filipino, was first appointed as the Bank's President and Chief Executive
Officer on May 25, 2005 up to May 24, 2010. He was reappointed on February
9,2013 after serving as Acting President since July 17, 2012. He has previously
served as Chairman of the Executive Committee and has been a Director
of the Bank since May 25, 2005. Mr. Mier, a Certified Public Accountant,
obtained his degrees in Bachelor of Science in Business Administration,
Major in Accounting, and Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the University
of the Philippines. He is currently Chairman of PNB Capital and Investment
Corporation, Japan-PNB Leasing and Finance Corporation, Japan-PNB
Equipment Rentals Corporation, PNB (Europe) Plc. and PNB International
Investments Corporation. He is also a Director of PNB Forex, Inc,, PNB General
Insurers Co, Inc, PNB Securities, Inc, PNB Management and Development
Corporation, Bulawan Mining Corporation, PNB Global Remittance and
Financial Co. (HK) Ltd, PNB RCl Holdings Co,, Ltd.,, PNB Remittance Company
(Canada) and LGU Guaranty Corporation. He was formerly the Chairman of
Victorias Milling Company, Inc. and a Director of Citra Metro Manila Tollways
Corporation and Credit Information Corporation. Prior to his election as
a member of the Board of the Bank, he served as Executive Vice President
and Chief Credit Officer from August 16, 2002 to April 10, 2005, then was
appointed as Acting President on April 11, 2005. He worked with Citibank N.A.
(Manila and Malaysia) for 24 years where he held the positions of Country
Risk Manager/Senior Credit Officer and Head of the Risk Management Group
and World Corporation Group. Before joining the Bank in 2002, he served as
Deputy General Manager & Corporate Banking Department Head of Deutsche
Bank, Manila from 1995 to 2001.
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FELIX ENRICO R. ALFILER

64, Filipino, was elected as Independent Director of the Bank effective January
1,2012. He completed his undergraduate and graduate studies in Statistics at
the University of the Philippines in 1973 and 1976, respectively. He undertook
various continuing education programs, including financial analysis and
policy, at the IMF Institute of Washington, D.C.in 1981 and on the restructured
electricity industry of the UK in London in 1996. He has published articles
relating to, among others, the globalization of the Philippine financial
market, policy responses to surges in capital inflows and the Philippine
debt crisis of 1985. He is currently an Independent Director of Japan-PNB
Leasing and Finance Corporation, Allied Savings Bank, PNB International
Investments Corporation and PNB Global Remittance & Financial Co. (HK)
Ltd. where he also sits as Chairman. He is also a member of the Board of
Advisors of PNB Remittance Company (Nevada) and PNB Remittance Centers,
Inc. He previously held various distinguished positions, namely: Philippine
Representative to the World Bank Group Executive Board in Washington,
D.C, Special Assistant to the Philippine Secretary of Finance for International
Operations and Privatization, Director of the BSP, Assistant to the Governor
of the Central Bank of the Philippines, Advisor to the Executive Director at
the International Monetary Fund, Associate Director at the Central Bank and
Head of the Technical Group of the CB Open Market Committee. Mr. Alfiler
was also the Monetary Policy Expert in the Economics Sub-Committee of the
1985-1986 Philippine Debt Negotiating Team which negotiated with over 400
private international creditors for the rescheduling of the Philippines'medium-
and long-term foreign debts. In the private sector, Mr. Alfiler served as Advisor
at Lazaro Tiu and Associates, Inc, President of Pilgrims (Asia Pacific) Advisors,
Ltd, President of the Cement Manufacturers Association of the Philippines
(CeMAP), Board Member of the Federation of Philippine Industries (FPI), and
Vice President of the Philippine Product Safety and Quality Foundation, Inc.
and Convenor for Fair Trade Alliance.

FLORIDO P. CASUELA

72, Filipino, has been serving as a Director of the Bank since May 30, 2006. A
Certified Public Accountant, he obtained his degree in Bachelor of Science
in Business Administration, Major in Accounting, and his Masters in Business
Administration from the University of the Philippines. He took the Advanced
Management Program for Overseas Bankers conducted by the Philadelphia
National Bank in conjunction with the Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania. Mr. Casuela was one of the ten (10) awardees of the 2001
Distinguished Alumni Award of the UP College of Business Administration.
He is currently the Chairman of PNB Securities, Inc. and an Independent
Director of PNB Holdings Corporation. He is also a Director of Allied Savings
Bank, PNB Global Remittance & Financial Co. (HK) Ltd,, PNB RCI Holdings Co,,
Inc, PNB International Investments Corporation, PNB Remittance Company
(Canada) and Surigao Micro Credit Corporation. He is a Senior Consultant of
the Bank of Makati, Inc. and a Director of Sagittarius Mines, Inc. as well as its
subsidiaries, namely, Tampakan Mineral Resources Corporation, PacificRim
Land Realty Corporation and Hillcrest, Inc, where he is also the Chairman.
He is a Trustee of the LBP Countryside Development Foundation, Inc. He was
formerly the President of Maybank Philippines, Inc. from February 1992 to
July 1993, Land Bank of the Philippines from July 1998 to August 2000, and
Surigao Micro Credit Corporation from June 2001 to November 2004. He was
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formerly a BSP Consultant/Senior Adviser for the Philippine National Bank
and the Chairman of the National Livelihood Support Fund, LBP Countryside
Development Foundation, Inc, LBP Insurance Brokerage, Inc, LBP Leasing
Corporation, LBP Realty Development Corporation, Masaganang Sakahan,
Inc.,, LBP Financial Services SpA, and Republic Planters Bank Venture Capital. He
served as Vice Chairman of the Land Bank of the Philippines, People’s Credit
Finance Corporation and Westmont Forex. Mr. Casuela was also a Member
of the Board of Directors of the Cotton Development Authority, National
Food Authority, Philippine Crop Insurance Corporation, Asean Finance
Corporation, Ltd. (Singapore), Manila Electric Company, All Asia Capital and
Trust Corporation, Petrochemical Corporation of Asia Pacific, Pacific Cement
Corporation, EBECOM Holdings, and Westmont Securities, Inc.

LEONILO G. CORONEL

67, Filipino, was elected as a Director of the Bank on May 28, 2013. He
obtained his Bachelor of Arts, Major in Economics degree from the Ateneo
de Manila University in 1967 and finished the Advance Management Program
of the University of Hawaii in 1977. He became a Fellow of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors in 2002. Presently, he is an Independent
Director of the following PNB subsidiaries: Japan-PNB Leasing and Finance
Corporation, Japan-PNB Rentals Corporation, PNB General Insurers Co, Inc,
and PNB Global Remittance and Financial Co. (HK) Ltd. He is an Independent
Director of Megawide Construction Corporation, DBP-Daiwa Capital Markets
Phil, and Electronic Network Cash Tellers. He is also a Director of Software
Ventures International, the Executive Director of RBB Foundation and a
Managing Director of the BAP-Credit Bureau, Inc. Prior to his present positions,
Mr. Coronel was Executive Director of the BAP. He also previously served as
the Treasurer of Philippine Depository & Trust Corporation, a Director of the
Philippine Clearing House Corporation, the Philippine Dealing System and the
Philippine Depository &Trust Corporation, a Trustee/Treasurer and member of
the Capital Market Development Council Institute, a member of the Executive
Committee of the Philippine Business for Social Progress and the President
of Cebu Bankers Association. He previously worked with Citibank, Manila for
twenty (20) years, occupying various positions.

REYNALDO A. MACLANG

75, Filipino, was elected as a Director of the Bank on February 9, 2013. He
holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Ateneo de Manila University. He
was previously a Director of Allied Banking Corporation (Allied Bank), PNB Life
Insurance, Inc. and Eton Properties, Inc. He is currently a member of the Board
of Directors of Allied Leasing and Finance Corporation, Allied Savings Bank,
PNB Holdings Corporation, PNB Global Remittance and Financial Co. (HK) Ltd.
and an Independent Director of PNB Securities, Inc. He has been with Allied
Bank since 1977 and was formerly the President of Allied Savings Bank from
1986 to 2001. He then became the President of Allied Bank from 2001 up to
2009. Previous to that, he was connected with other commercial banks and
practiced law.

ESTELITO P. MENDOZA

84, Filipino, was elected as a Director of the Bank effective January 1,2009. He
obtained his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines
and Master of Laws degree from the Harvard Law School. A practicing lawyer
for more than sixty years, he has been consistently listed for several years as

THE SHAPE OF THINGS TO COME

a"Leading Individual in Dispute Resolution”among lawyers in the Philippines
in the following directories/journals: “The Asia Legal 500" “Chambers of Asia”
and “Which Lawyer?" yearbooks. He was also a Professional Lecturer of law
at the University of the Philippines and served as Solicitor General, Minister
of Justice, Member of the Batasang Pambansa and Provincial Governor of
Pampanga. He was the Chairman of the Sixth (Legal) Committee, 31st Session
of the UN General Assembly and the Special Committee on the Charter of
the United Nations and the Strengthening of the Role of the Organization.
He currently serves as a member of the Board of Directors of Philippine
Airlines, Inc,, San Miguel Corporation, Meralco, and Petron Corporation. He is a
recipient of the Presidential Medal of Merit as Special Counsel on Marine and
Ocean Concerns on June 28,2010 and he was also awarded by the University
of the Philippines Alumni Association (UPAA) its 2013 “Lifetime Distinguished
Achievement Award’

CHRISTOPHER J. NELSON

54, British, was elected as a Director of the Bank on March 21, 2013. He holds
Bachelor of Arts and Masters of Arts degrees in History from Emmanuel
College, Cambridge University, UK, and a Diploma in Marketing from the
Institute of Marketing, Cranfield, UK. He is currently a member of the Board
of PNB Holdings Corporation and PNB Global Remittance and Financial Co.
(HK) Ltd. Prior to joining the Bank, he was President of Philip Morris Fortune
Tobacco Corporation, Inc. (PMFTC, Inc) for 2 years and concurrently Managing
Director of Philip Morris Philippines Manufacturing, Inc, a position he held for
10 years. He has an extensive 31 years of experience in the tobacco business,
25 years of which were with Philip Morris International holding various
management positions including Area Director for Saudi Arabia, Kuwait,
Gulf Cooperation Council, Yemen, and Horn of Africa. Mr. Nelson is actively
involved in various business and non-profit organizations that work for the
social and economic upliftment of communities. He is a member of the Board
of Trustees of American Chamber Foundation Phils,, Inc,, Philippine Band of
Mercy and Tan Yan Kee Foundation. He is also a Director of the American
Chamber of Commerce of the Philippines, Inc. and serves as Adviser to the
Board of the Federation of Philippine Industries.

WASHINGTON Z. SYCIP

92, American, has been serving as a Director of the Bank since December 8,
1999. He is the founder of SGV Group, the Philippines’ largest professional
services firm. He is also one of the founders and Chairman Emeritus of the
Asian Institute of Management; a member of the Board of Overseers of the
Graduate School of Business at Columbia University; Honorary Chairman of
the Euro-Asia Centre of INSEAD in Fontainebleau, France; and Honorary Life
Trustee of The Asia Society. He is presently an Independent Director of Belle
Corporation, Lopez Holdings, Commonwealth Foods, Inc, First Philippine
Holdings Corp,, Highlands Prime, Inc, Philippine Equity Management, Inc,
Philippine Hotelier, Inc,, Philamlife, Realty Investment, Inc., the PHINMA Group,
Stateland, Inc. and Century Properties, Inc. He is the Chairman of Cityland
Development Corporation, Lufthansa Technik Philippines, Inc, MacroAsia
Corporation, STEAG State Power, Inc. and State Properties Corporation. He is a
member of the Board of Directors of a number of other major corporations in
the Philippines and other parts of the world. Mr. SyCip has served as President
of the International Federation of Accountants (1982-1985), a member of
the International Advisory Board of the Council on Foreign Relations (1995-
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2010), Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees of The Conference Board
(2000-2004), and Chairman of the Asia Pacific Advisory Committee of the
New York Stock Exchange (1997-2004). He also served on the International
Boards of the American International Group, AT&T, Australia & New Zealand
Bank, Caterpillar, Chase Manhattan Bank, Owens-lllinois, Pacific Dunlop and
United Technologies Corporation, among others. He was a member of the
Board of Trustees of Ramon Magsaysay Award Foundation (2005-2008) and
Eisenhower Exchange Fellowship (1999-2010). Among his awards are the
Order of Lakandula, Rank of Grand Cross, conferred by Philippine President
Benigno S. Aquino, lll on June 30, 2011; Lifetime Achievement Award given
by Columbia Business School in 2010 and Asia Society in 2012; Ramon
Magsaysay Award for International Understanding in 1992; the Management
Man of the Year given by the Management Association of the Philippines in
1967; the Officer’s Cross of the Order of Merit given by the Federal Republic
of Germany in 2006; Star of the Order of Merit Conferred by the Republic of
Australiain 1976; and the Officer First Class of the Royal Order of the Polar Star
awarded by H.M. the King of Sweden in 1987.

HARRY C. TAN

68, Filipino, was appointed as a Director of the Bank on February 9, 2013
after serving as a Director of Allied Banking Corporation since November
1999. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical Engineering
from Mapua Institute of Technology. Mr. Tan is currently the Chairman of
Director of Bulawan Mining Corporation and a Director of PNB Management
Development Corporation, Allied Savings Bank, Allied Commercial Bank
and Allied Banking Corporation (HK) Ltd. He is also the President of Century
Park Hotel and Landcom Realty Corporation. He is the Vice Chair of Lucky
Travel Corp, and Vice Chairman/Director of Eton Properties Philippines, Inc,,
Eton City Inc, and Belton Communities, Inc. He is also the Vice Chairman/
Director/Treasurer of LT Group, Inc. (formerly Tanduay Holdings, Inc). He
is the Managing Director/Vice Chair of The Charter House Inc. and is a
member of the Board of Directors of various private firms which include Asia
Brewery, Inc, Dominium Realty and Construction Corporation, Progressive
Farms, Inc, Shareholdings Inc, Himmel Industries, Inc, Tobacco Recyclers
Corporation, Basic Holdings Corporation, Pan Asia Securities Inc, Absolut
Distillers, Inc, Allied Bankers Insurance Corporation, Asian Alcohol Corp,
REM Development Corporation, Tanduay Brands International Inc,, Foremost
Farms, Inc, Grandspan Development Corp,, Manufacturing Services and Trade
Corporation, Philippine Airlines, Inc,, PAL Holdings, Inc,, Philip Morris Fortune
Tobacco Corporation, Inc. (PMFTC), and Tangent Holdings Corporation where
he is also the Treasurer. He is also a Director/Chairman for the Tobacco Board
of Fortune Tobacco Corporation.

LUCIO C. TAN

80, Filipino, has been serving as a Director of the Bank since December 8, 1999.
He studied at Far Eastern University where he earned his degree in Chemical
Engineering. In 2003, he earned the degree of Doctor of Philosophy, Major
in Commerce, from the University of Santo Tomas. From humble origins,
Dr. Tan became the Chairman of Allied Banking Corporation from 1977
to 1999. He is presently the Chairman and CEO of LT Group, Inc. (formerly
Tanduay Holdings, Inc), Philippine Airlines, Inc, and PAL Holdings, Inc. He
is the Chairman of Asia Brewery, Inc, Basic Holdings Corporation, Himmel
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Industries, Inc,, Eton Properties Philippines, Inc., Fortune Tobacco Corporation,
Grandspan Development Corporation, Tanduay Distillers, Inc, PMFTC, Inc,
PNB Life Insurance, Inc, Allied Leasing and Finance Corporation, Allied
Commercial Bank and Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Ltd. Dr.Tan
is also the Chairman/President of Tangent Holdings Corporation and Lucky
Travel Corporation. Despite Dr. Tan's various business pursuits, he continues
to share his time and resources with the community. In 1986, he founded the
Tan Yan Kee Foundation, Inc, of which he is the Chairman and President. He
is likewise Chairman Emeritus of the Federation of Filipino-Chinese Chambers
of Commerce and Industry, Inc. (FFCCCII). He is also the founder and Vice
Chairman of the Foundation for Upgrading the Standard of Education, Inc.
(FUSE). He is the Adviser/Benefactor of the medical scholarship program of
Asia Brewery, Inc. and Benefactor/Honorary Adviser of other professional and
socio-civic groups. For his outstanding achievements and leadership, Dr. Tan
received the following honorary degrees: Doctor of Humane Letters, University
of Guam (Guam, USA); Doctor of Applied Agriculture, Central Luzon State
University (Mufioz, Nueva Ecija); Doctor of Technology Management, Western
Visayas College of Science and Technology (La Paz, lloilo), Doctor of Science in
International Business and Entrepreneurship, Cavite State University (Cavite);
Doctor of Humanities, Western Mindanao State University (Zamboanga);
Doctor of Business Management, St. Paul University Philippines (Tuguegarao,
Cagayan); Doctor of Institutional Development and Management, Isabela
State University (Cauayan, Isabela); Doctor of Humanities, University of
Mindanao (Davao City); Doctor of Business and Industrial Management
Engineering, Central Philippine University (lloilo City); Doctor of Humanities in
Business and Entrepreneurship, Lyceum-Northwestern University (Dagupan
City, Pangasinan); and Doctor of Humanities, San Beda College (Manila). He
was chosen as a Lifetime Achievement Awardee by the Dr. Jose P.Rizal Awards
for Excellence, adopted to the Ancient Order of the Chamorri and designated
Ambassador-at-Large of the U.S. Island-territory of Guam, and conferred the
Diploma of Merit by the Socialist Republic of Vietnam, one of the highest
honors conferred by the Vietnamese Government on foreign nationals. Dr. Tan
was named Outstanding Manilan for the year 2000 by the City Government
of Manila and conferred the UST Medal of Excellence in 1999, the highest
award given by the Pontifical and Royal University of Santo Tomas. Aside from
being named Most Distinguished Bicolano Business Icon in 2005, Dr. Tan
was also conferred the following awards: “2003 Most Outstanding Member
Award” by the Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry (PCCl) in
recognition of his altruism and philanthropy, business acumen, hard work
and perseverance in his numerous business ventures; Award of Distinction
by the Cebu Chamber of Commerce and Industry; Award for Exemplary
Civilian Service of the Philippine Medical Association; Honorary Mayor and
Adopted Son of Bacolod City; and Adopted Son of Cauayan City, Isabela. He
was named Entrepreneurial Son of Zamboanga, awarded as distinguished
fellow during the 25th Conference of the ASEAN Federation of Engineering
Association, and conferred the 2008 achievement award for service to the
chemistry profession during the 10th Eurasia Conference on Chemical
Sciences. In recognition of his achievements, the City of San Francisco, US.A.
declared May 11 of each year as Dr. Lucio Tan's Day in the Bay area. The island-
territory of Guam also celebrates Lucio Tan Day on November 2 of every year.
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LUCIO K. TAN, JR.

47, Filipino, has been serving as a Director of the Bank since September 28,
2007. He obtained his degree in Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering
(Minors in classical Chinese Mandarin and Mathematics) from the University
of California Davis in 1991. He completed the academic requirements for his
MBA at the J.L. Kellogg School of Management of Northwestern University
and the School of Business and Management of the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology in 2006. He also attended courses in Basic and
Intermediate Japanese Language. He works with MacroAsia Corporation
where he held the rank of President and Chief Executive Officer for 7 years.
Mr. Tan is currently the President of Tanduay Distillers, Inc. He is a member
of the Board of Directors of Bulawan Mining Corporation, PNB Capital
and Investment Corporation, PNB Forex, Inc, PNB Management and
Development Corporation, Allied Commercial Bank, Phillip Morris Fortune
Tobacco Corporation (PMFTC), Inc, Philippine Airlines, Inc, PAL Holdings, Inc,
Air Philippines Corporation, MacroAsia Corporation, LT Group, Inc. (Tanduay
Holdings, Inc.), Allied Bankers Insurance Corporation, Foremost Farms, Inc. and
Eton Properties Phils, Inc, where he is also the OIC. He is an Executive Director
of Dynamic Holdings Limited, and Executive Vice President (EVP) and Director
of Fortune Tobacco Corporation.

MICHAEL G. TAN

47, Filipino, was elected as a Director of the Bank on February 9,2013. Heis the
President/Director of LT Group, Inc, the holding firm of the Lucio Tan Group of
Companies. He also served as a Director of Allied Banking Corporation (ABC)
from January 30, 2008 until the ABC's merger with PNB on February 9, 2013.
He is the Chairman of PNB Holdings Corporation and a Director of PNB Forex,
Inc., Allied Savings Bank and Allied Banking Corporation (HK) Ltd. He is also
the Director/Chief Operating Officer of Asia Brewery, Inc.and a member of the
Board of Directors of the following companies: Bulawan Mining Corporation,
PNB Management and Development Corporation, Allied Commercial Bank,
Abacus Distribution Systems Phils, Inc,, Allied Bankers Insurance Corporation,
Absolut Distillers, Inc,, Air Philippines Corporation, Philippine Airlines, Inc,
Philippine Airlines (PAL) Foundation, Inc, PAL Holdings, Inc, Lucky Travel
Corporation, Eton Properties Philippines, Inc, Grandway Konstruct, Inc,, Eton
City, Inc, PMFTC Inc, Shareholdings, Inc, Tangent Holdings Corporation, and
Victorias Milling Company, Inc. He holds a Bachelor of Applied Science in Civil
Engineering degree from the University of British Columbia, Canada.

DEOGRACIAS N. VISTAN

69, Filipino, was elected as Independent Director of the Bank on August
1, 2011. He obtained his AB and BSBA degrees from the De La Salle
University and earned his MBA from Wharton Graduate School, University of
Pennsylvania. A seasoned banker, Mr. Vistan's extensive banking experience
includes being Chair of United Coconut Planters Bank (2003-2004), Vice
Chair of Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (2000-2001), and President
of Equitable-PCl Bank (2001-2002), Solidbank Corporation (1992-2000) and
Land Bank of the Philippines (1986-1992). He also served as President of FNCB
Finance (1979-1980). Mr. Vistan likewise held various management positions
in Citibank Manila, Cebu and New York (1968-1986). He is a former Presidential
Consultant on Housing (2002-2003) and President of the Bankers Association
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of the Philippines (1997-1999). He is currently an Independent Director of
PNB Capital and Investment Corporation, PNB (Europe) Plc, PNB International
Investments Corporation, and Lorenzo Shipping Corporation. He is also a
member of the Board of Directors of U-Bix Corporation and is a member of
the Board of Advisors of PNB Remittance Centers, Inc. and PNB Remittance
Company (Nevada). He is the Chairman of Creamline Dairy Corporation,
Landbank Countryside Development Foundation, Inc. and Pinoy Micro
Enterprise Foundation, Inc. He is currently a member of the Board of Trustees
of the Ramon Magsaysay Award Foundation.

DORIS S. TE

33, Filipino, was appointed as Corporate Secretary of the Bank on January
20, 2012. She obtained her degree in Bachelor of Science in Business
Management in 2001 and earned her Juris Doctor in 2005 from the Ateneo
de Manila University. She began her law career as a Junior Associate in
Zambrano & Gruba Law Offices and in Quiason Makalintal Barot Torres Ibarra
& Sison Law Office. She joined the Bank in 2009. Prior to her appointment,
she was Assistant Corporate Secretary and later Acting Corporate Secretary of
the Bank. Presently, she also serves as a Director and Corporate Secretary of
Valuehub, Inc, a family-owned distribution company.

BOARD OF ADVISORS

MANUEL T. GONZALES

77, Filipino was appointed as Board Advisor of the Bank on October 1,2013. At
present, Mr. Gonzales is a Director of Allied Leasing and Finance Corporation
and Allied Bankers Insurance Corporation. Previous to this, he was a Director
of Allied Banking Corporation from March 26, 1986 until the PNB-Allied
Banking Corporation merger on February 9, 2013. He has been with Allied
Banking Corporation since 1977 where he served as Senior Executive Vice
President from 1997 to 2009 and as Executive Vice President from 1981 to
1997. Mr. Gonzales is a graduate of De La Salle University and holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Commerce. He continued his postgraduate studies on
Master in Arts in Economics at the Ateneo De Manila University.

WILLIAM T. LIM

74, Filipino, was appointed as Board Advisor of the Bank on January 25, 2013.
Previous to that, he served as a Consultant of Allied Banking Corporation on
credit matters since 1995. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Chemistry
from the Adamson University. From 1985 to 1994, he was a Director of
Corporate Apparel, Inc, Concept Clothing, and Freeman Management and
Development Corporation, President of Jas Lordan, Inc. and an importer/
distributor of Chinese, Australian and New Zealand apples. He also worked
with Equitable Banking Corporation for 28 years, rising from the ranks to
becoming a Vice President of the Foreign Department.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

OMAR BYRON T. MIER

EVP JOVENCIO D. HERNANDEZ
FSVP ZACARIAS E. GALLARDO JR.
EVP CHRISTOPHER C. DOBLES

FSVP EMMANUEL GERMAN V. PLAN Il
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SVP AIDA M. PADILLA

SVP JOHN HOWARD D. MEDINA
SVP CARMELA LETICIA A. PAMA
SVP ALICE Z. CORDERO

10 FSVP BENJAMIN S. OLIVA

6
7
8
9
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EVP HORACIO E. CEBRERO Il
FSVP CENON C. AUDENCIAL JR.
SVP SOCORRO D. CORPUS

VP CONSTANTINO T. YAP

SVP DIOSCORO TEODORICO L. LIM

SVP EMELINE C. CENTENO

SVP MARIA PAZ D. LIM

FVP MANUEL C. BAHENA JR.

FSVP MIGUEL ANGEL G. GONZALEZ
FVP JOSEPHINE E. JOLEJOLE
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1

2
3
4
5
6
7

ALBERTO E. BIENVENIDA - PNB Capital and Investment Corporation
ELFREN ANTONIO S. SARTE - Allied Savings Bank

EDGARDO T. NALLAS - PNB Leasing and Finance Corporation
FREDDIE G. VILLADELGADO - Allied Leasing and Finance Corporation
ESTHER C. TAN - PNB Life Insurance, Inc.

FRANCISCO P. RAMOS - PNB General Insurers Co. Inc.

RAMON L. LIM - PNB Securities, Inc.
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ALLIED BANK PHILIPPINES (UK) PLC

Allied Bank Philippines (UK) PLC (ABUK) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNB
by virtue of the merger of PNB with Allied Banking Corporation. It commenced
operations in 1992 after functioning as ABC's representative office in the
1970s and as a branch in the mid-1980s. ABUK was the first Philippine private
commercial bank in London to be granted the status of licensed deposit taker
by the Bank of England under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. It
provides remittance services, deposit taking, and lending and trade financing.

ALLIED BANKING CORPORATION (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited (ABCHK) is a majority-
owned (51%) subsidiary of PNB as a result of the merger of PNB and Allied
Banking Corporation. ABCHK, a private limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong in 1978, is the first majority-owned overseas subsidiary of ABC. It
is a restricted license bank under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. ABCHK
provides commercial banking services such as deposit taking, lending and
trade financing, documentary credits, participation in loan syndications and
other risks, money market and foreign exchange operations, money exchange,
investment and corporate services. It is also licensed and acts as an insurance
agent. ABCHK has a wholly-owned subsidiary, ACR Nominees Limited, a private
limited company incorporated in Hong Kong, which provides management
and corporate services. ABCHK has a branch office in Tsimshatsui, Kowloon.

ALLIED COMMERCIAL BANK

Allied Commercial Bank (ACB) is a majority-owned (90.41%) subsidiary of
PNB as a result of the merger of PNB and Allied Banking Corporation. ACB
was formerly known as Xiamen Commercial Bank. It obtained its commercial
banking license and opened in 1993. ACB is authorized to provide full banking
services in foreign currency such as deposit-taking, loans, remittances, fund
transfers and collections, trade finance, foreign exchange and related services
to resident and non-resident foreign enterprises and non-resident natural
persons including compatriots from Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. ACB is
also allowed to service the foreign trade and loan requirements of enterprises
owned by local residents. ACB maintains its head office in Xiamen, Fujian,
China. It has a branch in Chongging which was established in 2003.

ALLIED LEASING AND FINANCE CORPORATION

Allied Leasing and Finance Corporation is a majority-owned (57.21%) subsidiary
of PNB by virtue of the merger of PNB and Allied Banking Corporation. It offers
receivables financing, direct loans, and financing and leasing of various types
of equipment, machineries and vehicles.

ALLIED SAVINGS BANK

Allied Savings Bank (ASB) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNB as a result of
the merger of PNB and Allied Banking Corporation. ASB traces its roots from
First Malayan Development Bank which ABC bought in 1986 and renamed as
First Allied Savings Bank in 1996 following the grant of license to operate as a
savings bank. The latter was subsequently renamed as Allied Savings Bank in
1998. ASB offers deposit products, remittance service, loans and trade finance.

JAPAN-PNB LEASING AND FINANCE CORPORATION
Japan-PNB Leasing and Finance Corporation offers a full range of financial
services but specializes in financial leasing of various equipment, term loans
and receivable discounting. The company also arranges lease syndications
for big-ticket transactions and provides operating lease services of universal-
type equipment through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Japan-PNB Equipment
Rentals Corporation.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES

PNB CAPITAL AND INVESTMENT CORPORATION

PNB Capital and Investment Corporation is the wholly-owned investment
banking subsidiary of PNB. It provides a full range of corporate finance services
such as financial advisory, project finance and private placements for corporate
clients, debtand equity syndication and underwriting including assisting clients
in pre-IPO re-organizations. PNB Capital and Investment Corporation also
assists in structuring and packaging mergers and acquisitions, securitization
transactions and mezzanine financing.

PNB (EUROPE) PLC

PNB (Europe) PLC is a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in the United
Kingdom with a full banking license. It is also authorized to provide cross border
services to member states of the European Economic Area. PNB (Europe) PLC
operates a branch in Paris which is engaged only in remittance services.

PNB GLOBAL REMITTANCE AND FINANCIAL COMPANY (HK)
LIMITED

PNB Global Remittance and Financial Company (HK) Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of PNB which provides remittance services and grants retail loans
to Filipino overseas workers and professionals in Hong Kong. Its main office is
located in Wan Chai District while its six branches are situated in Shatin, Yuen
Long, Tsuen Wan, North Point and two in Worldwide House in Central Island.

PNB HOLDINGS CORPORATION

PNB Holdings Corporation is a wholly-owned holding subsidiary of PNB which
owns 100% of PNB General Insurers Co, Inc, a non-life insurance company
that offers fire, marine, motor car, surety, casualty, engineering and personal
accident insurance.

PNB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS CORPORATION

PNB International Investments Corporation is a non-bank holding subsidiary
and is the parent company of PNB Remittance Centers, Incorporated (PNB RCI).
PNB RCl has a network of 20 money transfer offices in 19 states of the United
States of America.

PNB RCl also owns PNB Remittance Company, Nevada (PNBRCN) and PNBRCI
Holding Company, Limited (PNBRCI Holding). PNBRCN provides money transfer
service in the State of Nevada, while PNBRCI Holding was established to be the
holding company of PNB Remittance Company (Canada) [PNBRCC]. PNBRCC
has eight offices servicing the remittance requirements of Filipinos in Canada.

PNB ITALY SPA

PNB Italy SpA is a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in Italy. Its principal
business is to service the remittance requirements of overseas Filipino workers
in Italy. It has offices in Rome and Milan.

PNB LIFE INSURANCE, INC.

PNB Life Insurance, Inc. is a majority-owned (80%) subsidiary of PNB by virtue
of the merger of PNB and Allied Banking Corporation. PNB Life Insurance, Inc.
traces its roots from New York Life Insurance Philippines, Inc. (NYLIP) which
became a majority-owned subsidiary of ABC in June 2007. NYLIP was renamed
as PNB Life Insurance, Inc. in May 2008 to reflect the change in ownership and
in anticipation of the merger of ABC and PNB. The company provides traditional
insurance, investment, group insurance and other special products.

PNB SECURITIES, INC.
PNB Securities, Inc. is a wholly-owned stock brokerage subsidiary which deals
in the trading of shares of stocks listed at the Philippine Stock Exchange.
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PNB MILESTONES

1916 On July 22, the Philippine National Bank formally
opened its doors to the public. The event was hailed
as “the beginning of a new financial life in the country.”
A year after PNB’s inauguration day, the vision unfolds
as the Bank’s total resources amounted to P57 million,
an amount which more than tripled in 1918 to P216
million. PNB then absorbed the First Agricultural

Bank and began setting up branches and agencies

in the provinces, funding sugar and coconut mills for
export during World War | which created a boom for
Philippine crop exports.

1917 PNB marked its entry in the field of international
banking as it opened its New York Branch. The
following year, the Bank established five more
domestic branches and another overseas branch in
Shanghai, China.

1948 The Central Bank was established in 1948,
welcoming an era of a managed currency system in
the Philippines. PNB continued to have a role in central
banking through its membership in the Monetary
Board which was charged with the responsibility of
carrying the monetary policy decisions and the general
supervision of Central Bank operations.

1950 PNB’s chain of local branches and agencies
allowed it to tap a rich source of capital which it
channeled to productive investment. The Bank
intensified its campaign for savings accounts even to
the extent of paying interest on deposits as small as
P50.

58

1966 On the commemoration of PNB’s Golden
Anniversary, the Bank took on great strides to expand
its business operations to result in total gross earnings
of P160 million translating to a high P17.7 million in net
operating profit. It was also this year that PNB unveiled
its modernized headquarters along Escolta, Manila.
The first Online Electronic Data Processing System in
the entire Far East was launched to automate the key
functions of the Bank.

1968 PNB'’s global presence and performance grew
further with the introduction of its Dollar Remittance
Program which was designed to channel the earnings
of Overseas Filipino Workers to the country’s foreign
exchange reserves.

1970 PNB makes history as it launches the Masagana
99 Financing Program. The program provided loan
assistance to more than 260,000 farmers across the
country.

1976 PNB organized the Bank on Wheels and Bank on
Wings programs that feature Philnabankers journeying
to the province on Toyota Land Rovers and helicopters
in an effort to promptly and ingeniously service the
Bank’s client-farmers.

1980 PNB launched the first Automated Teller
Machine in the country. This big leap to a brand new
phase of banking confirms PNB’s thrust in continuously
developing innovative products and services. PNB also
embarked on a marketing campaign that highlighted
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its pledge of being “the Bank that every Filipino can
lean on”. The tagline, “Sa PNB, Para Kang Nakasandal
Sa Pader!”, as reflected by the ad was used to deliver
the message.

1989 PNB’s privatization begins with the highly
successful initial public offering of its stock in 1989. The
listing of the PNB stock will always be remembered in
history of the stock market as an issuer’s dream.

1992 PNB became the first Philippine bank to have
reached the P100 billion mark in total resources.

1999 Dr. Lucio C. Tan started buying PNB shares
through the stock market in 1999. The agreement
between the Lucio Tan Group and the government
signed in May 2002 paved the way for PNB’s
rehabilitation.

2005 The Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP)
bestowed upon PNB the Commercial Bank of the Year
for the Highest Reported OFW Remittances Award for
the Bank’s outstanding performance as a medium of
foreign exchange remittances.

2006 PNB was awarded the highly-coveted Trusted
Brand Award in the Gold Category by the Reader’s
Digest for three years in a row. The award affirms the
public’s recognition of PNB as a trusted brand in the
Philippine banking industry.

THE SHAPE OF THINGS TO COME

2007 The complete divestment of the Government’s
remaining 12% stake in PNB ushered the Bank’s
transition into a fully private bank. PNB’s growth
performance in 2007 affirmed its objective of
strengthening the Bank’s core businesses and increasing
its profitability.

2010 An integral part of PNB’s transformation program
in 2010 is its rebranding initiative. The Bank committed
significant resources to upgrade its image and improve
perceptions and overall customer experience. PNB’s
rejuvenated logo was introduced in new branch
signages which sports a fresh color palette that retains
the original blue corporate color side by side with the
new colors: silver and aguamarine.

2011 PNB was given the Silver Award for Good
Corporate Governance from the Institute of Corporate
Directors (ICD). This is in recognition of the Bank’s
corporate directors and senior management who

are very committed to the professional practice of
corporate dictatorship in line with the global principles
of modern corporate governance.

2013 PNB has forged a splendid mark in the banking
history as it merges with Allied Banking Corporation
on February 9, 2013. PNB became the fourth largest
private domestic bank in terms of combined total
resources. The merger of the two banking institutions
further enhanced its domestic reach by having one of
the biggest networks with 630 branches and 833 ATMs
strategically located nationwide.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

DEPOSITS AND RELATED SERVICES

Peso Accounts

Current Accounts
Budget Checking Account
Regular Checking Account
PNBig Checking Account
Priority One Checking Account
Executive Checking Account
Combo Checking Account
Negotiable Order of Withdrawal (N.O.W.)
Advantage Account

Savings Accounts
Regular Passbook Savings Account
Superteller ATM Account/Debit
MasterCard ATM Savings Account
TAP MasterCard Savings Account
OFW Savings Account
Direct Deposit Program
SSS Pensioners Account
GSIS Pensioners Account
Prime Savings Account
Cash Card
Star Kiddie Club
Top Saver

Time Deposit Accounts
Regular Time Deposit Account
PNBig Savings Account
Wealth Multiplier Account
Treasury Nego
Market Savings Deposit Account
Top Provider Plus Time Deposit Account

Dollar Accounts

Current Accounts
Greencheck Account

Savings Accounts
OFW Dollar Savings Account
Dollar Savings Account
Direct Deposit Dollar Savings Account
Premium Dollar Deposit Account

Time Deposit Accounts
Greenmarket
Dollar M.LN.T. Account
Dollar Treasury Nego
Dollar Wealth Multiplier Account
Top Dollar Time Deposit Account

Other Foreign Currency Accounts
Savings Accounts
Euro Savings Account
Renminbi Savings Account
Time Deposit Accounts
Euro Time Deposit Account
Renminbi Time Deposit Account
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Cash Management Solutions
Account Management
Liquidity Management
Collections Management
e-Collect
Auto-Debit Arrangement (ADA)
PDC Warehousing
Deposit Pick-up Services
Cash Mover
Retail Cash Mover
Payments Management
Electronic Funds Transfer
Corporate e-Pay
Auto-Pay
Executive Checking Account (ECA)
Executive Check Online
Cash Over-the-Counter
Payroll Services
Paywise
Paywise Plus
Government Payments
BIR e-Tax
SSS Net (via Bancnet)
Philhealth
Electronic Banking Services
Internet Banking System (IBS)
Phone Banking
Mobile Banking (Proprietary)
BancNet POS
Automated Teller Machine

Other Services
Conduit Clearing Arrangement
Safety Deposit Boxes

BANCASSURANCE

Non-Life Insurance
Auto Protector Plan
House Protector Plan
Family Accident Protector Plan
PNBGen ATM Safe

Life Insurance
Premier Life Peso
Premier Life Dollar
Peso Intensify!
Milestone
Bidal
Hero
Achievers
Air Lite
Yearly Renewable and Convertible Term Plan
Vertex
Opulence
Optimal Power Peso
Optimal Power Dollar
Optimum Gold
Optimum Green
Diversify Peso
Diversify Dollar

Group Secure
Group Shield
Group Product
Healthy Ka, Pinoy

REMITTANCE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Global Filipino Card (PHP, USD)
Overseas Bills Payment System
Credit to Other Banks (PHP, USD)
Door-to-Door Delivery

Cash Delivery

Check Delivery

U.S. Dollar Delivery

(selected Metro Manila Areas)
Cash Pick-Up

Peso Pick-up (Domestic Branches and

Authorized Payout Outlets)

U.S. Dollar Pick-up (Metro Manila and
selected Provincial Branches only)
Remittance Cards (7-Eleven in Hong Kong)

Remittance Channels
Web Remittance
Phone Remittance
Mail-In Remittance
Agent Remittance System

Other Services
Remittance Tracker
Remittance Text Alert

FUND TRANSFER AND RELATED SERVICES

SW.ILET. Transfer — Incoming/Outgoing
FX Outward Telegraphic Transfer (FXOTT)
Gross Settlement Real Time (GSRT) - Incoming/
Outgoing - USD
Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) — Incoming/
Outgoing - PHP
Electronic Peso Clearing System (EPCS)
Philippine Domestic Dollar Transfer System
(PDDTS)
Demand Drafts
Cashier's/Manager’s Checks
Travel Funds
FX Currency Notes
Purchase/Sale of FX Currency Notes
Domestic Telegraphic Transfer
Regular Collection Service (Foreign and Domestic)
Wells Fargo Bank NA — USD Final Credit
Service (FCS)
Deutsche Bank NY — USD Preferred
Collection Service (PCS)
Allied Bank Philippines (UK) Plc - GBP
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce — CAD
National Australia Bank — AUD
PNB Singapore — SGD
PNB Hong Kong — HKD
Union Bank of Switzerland — CHF
Australia New Zealand Bank — AUD, NZD
Deutsche Bank Frankfurt — EUR
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Standard Collection Service
Deutsche Bank NY — USD
Wells Fargo Bank NA — USD Individual
Collection
PNB Singapore — USD
Deutsche Bank AG — Other currencies
Cash Letter
Deutsche Bank NY - USD
Wells Fargo Bank NA — USD
PNB Branches — Other Third Currencies for
collection only

TREASURY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Foreign Exchange in the Spot Currency Market
USD/PHP
USD/JPY
EUR/USD
USD/Other Currencies

Financial Hedging Instruments
Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts
USD/PHP
USsb/JPY
EUR/USD

Foreign Exchange Swap Contracts
USD/PHP
USD/IPY
EUR/USD

Cross Currency Swaps
USD/PHP

Philippine Peso Interest Rate Swaps
USD/PHP

Local (PHP) and Foreign Currency Denominated
Fixed Income Securities
Securities issued by the Republic of the
Philippines
Treasury Bills
Treasury Bonds
Retail Treasury Bonds
USDollar denominated ROPs
EUR denominated ROPs

Securities issued by Corporations and
Financial Institutions in the Philippines
Corporate Bonds
Long Term Negotiable Certificates of
Deposits
Unsecured Subordinated Debt

Securities issued by the United States of
America

Treasury Bills

Treasury Bonds

Local and Foreign Currency Denominated Short-

term Money Market Instruments
Certificates of Time Deposits
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EXPORT / IMPORT SERVICES

Export Services

Advising of Letters of Credit
Confirmation of Letters of Credit
Export Financing
Pre-Shipment Export Financing
Post Shipment Financing

Import Services

Issuance and Negotiation of Letters of Credit
(Foreign/Domestic)
Issuance of Shipside Bonds/Shipping
Guarantees
Trust Receipt Financing
Servicing of Importations and Sale of Foreign
Exchange (FX) for Trade in USD and major
third currencies including RMB/Chinese Yuan
Letters of Credit (LC)
Collection Documents — D/P, DA/OA
Direct Remittance (D/R)
Advance Payment
Forward Contracts for Future Import Payment
Servicing of Collection and Payment of
Advance and Final Customs Duties for all
ports in the Philippines covered under
the E2M project of the Bureau of Customs

Project Abstract Secure (PAS5)

Special Financing Services

BSP e-Rediscounting Facility for Export and
Import Transactions
Issuance of Standby Letters of Credit to serve
the following bank guarantee requirements:
Loan Repayment Guarantee
Advance Payment Bonds
Bid Bonds
Performance Bonds
Other Bonds
Issuance of Standby Letters of Credit
under PNB's "Own a Philippine Home Loan
Program”
Issuance and Servicing of Deferred Letters of
Credit as mode of payment for:
Importation or Local Purchase of Capital
Goods
Services Rendered (e.g., Construction/

Installation of Infrastructure Projects, etc.)

LENDING SERVICES

Corporate/ Institutional Loans

Credit Lines
Revolving Credit Line (RCL)
Non-revolving Credit Line
Omnibus Line

Export Financing Facilities
Export Advance Loan
Export Advance Line

Bills Purchased Lines
Domestic Bills Purchased Line
Export Bills/Drafts Purchased Line
Discounting Line

Import-Related Loans
Letters of Credit Facility
Trust Receipt Facility
Standby Letters of Credit — Foreign/Domestic
Deferred Letters of Credit — Foreign/Domestic
Term Loans
Medium-and Long-Term Loan
Short-Term Loan
Project Financing
Loans Against Deposit Hold Out
Time Loans
Agricultural
Commercial
Structured Trade Finance
Export Credit Agency Lines
US-EXIM Guarantee Program
Specialized Lending Programs
DBP Wholesale Lending Facilities
LBP Wholesale Lending Facilities
SSS Wholesale Lending Facilities
BSP Rediscounting Facility
Sugar Financing Program
Sugar Crop Production Line (SCPL)
Sugar Quedan Financing Line (SQFL)
Time Loan Agricultural (TLA)
Operational Loan (OpL)
Small Business Loans for SMEs
Domestic Bills Purchased Line

Term Loan

Local Guarantee Facilities

PhilEXIM Guarantee
SB Corp. Guarantee Program

Loans to Local Government Units (LGUs)

Term Loans

Import LC Facility Against Loan or Cash
Domestic Letters of Credit Against Loan or Cash
Loans Against Deposit Hold Out

Credit Facilities to Government-Owned and
Controlled Corporations/National Government

Agencies/Public Utilities (GOCCs/NGAs/PUs)

Project Financing
Term Loans
Credit Lines
Export Financing Facilities
Bills Purchased Lines
Import Letters of Credit/Documents Against
Acceptance/Documents Against Payment/
Trust Receipts Line
Standby Letters of Credit
Structured Trade Finance
Export Credit Agency Lines
Guarantee Program
LGU Bond Flotation (thru PNB Capital and
Investment Corp.)
Loans Against Deposit Hold Out
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Consumer Loans
Sure Home Loan (Housing Loan)
Sure Home Flexi Loan
Sure Wheels Loan (Motor Vehicle Loan)
Contract to Sell Financing

Global Filipino Auto Loan (Overseas Auto Loan)

Credit Cards
Essentials & Platinum MasterCard
Essentials, Platinum, and World Mabuhay
Miles MasterCard
Classic & Gold Visa
Platinum & Diamond UnionPay

TRUST PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Unit Investment Trust Funds (UITF)
Money Market Funds
PNB Prime Peso Money Market Fund
PNB Prime Dollar Money Market Fund
PNB Global Filipino Peso Money Market Fund
PNB Global Filipino Dollar Money Market
Fund

Intermediate-Term Bond Funds
PNB Plus Intermediate Term Bond Fund
PNB Profit Dollar Intermediate Term Bond
Fund
PNB Dream Builder Intermediate Term
Bond Fund
Allied Unit Performance GS Fund
Allied Unit Performance Dollar Fund

Balanced Funds
PNB Prestige Balanced Fund

Equity Funds
PNB Enhanced Phil-Index Reference Fund
PNB High Dividend Fund
Allied Unit Performance Equity Fund

Personal Trust Products
Living Trust/ Personal Trust Account
Investment Management Account (IMA)
Life Insurance Trust
Testamentary Trust
Personal Escrow
Custodianship/Safekeeping
Guardianship
Estate Planning
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Corporate Trust Products
Corporate Trust
Employee Enrichment Solutions (EES)
Corporate Investment Management Account
(IMA)
Corporate Escrow
Corporate Custodianship
Facility Agency
Mortgage Trust Indenture
LGU Bonds Trusteeship
Securitization
Stock Transfer/ Paying Agency

SUBSIDIARIES

Banking
Allied Bank Philippines (UK) PLC
Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong)
Limited
ACR Nominees Limited
Allied Commercial Bank
Allied Savings Bank
PNB (Europe) PLC

Holding Company
PNB Holdings Corporation
PNB International Investments Corporation

Investment Banking
PNB Capital and Investment Corporation

Leasing and Financing
Allied Leasing and Finance Corporation
Japan-PNB Leasing and Finance Corporation
Japan-PNB Equipment Rentals
Corporation

Lending
PNB Global Remittance and Financial
Company (HK) Limited

Life Insurance
PNB Life Insurance, Inc.

Non-Life Insurance
PNB General Insurers Co., Inc.

Remittance
PNB Remittance Centers, Inc.
PNB Remittance Company (Canada)
PNB Remittance Company (Nevada)
PNB Global Remittance and Financial
Company (HK) Limited
PNB Italy SpA'

Stock Brokerage
PNB Securities, Inc.

'Closed effective January 31,2014
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

The management of Philippine National Bank is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and parent company
financial statements as of December 31,2013 and 2012 and January 1,2012 and for each of the years ended December 31,2013,2012 and 2011,
including the additional components attached therein, in accordance with the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility
includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated and parent company
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated and parent company financial statements and submits the same to the
stockholders.

SyCip, Gorres, Velayo & Co,, the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has examined the consolidated and parent company
financial statements of the Philippine National Bank in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders,
has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination.

W
FLORENCIA G. TARRIELA OMAR BYRON T. MIER
Chairman of the Board President & Chjéf Executive Officer

—
ZACARIAS E. GALLARDO, JR.
First Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

APR 1 4 20t

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of April 2014 affiants exhibiting to me their Passport Nos., as follows:

Names Passport No. Date of Issue Place of Issue
Florencia G. Tarriela EB6620757 October 23,2012 DFA Manila
Omar Byron T. Mier XX3773388 May 21, 2009 DFA Manila
Zacarias E. Gallardo, Jr. EB1931075 February 16,2011 DFA Manila

Doc. No. 342 ATTY. M . LAMIRE?
Page no. 70 Commissict ! 8-14

Book No. | 2l N
Series of 2014. Notary Public for Pasay City untit 12/31/ -
9" Fir., PNG Financial Center
Pres. D. P. Macapa
PTR Mo, 2367617107 -04-14/Pasay Cily

IBP No, 843709/12-02-13/RSM-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
)

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Philippine National Bank

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Philippine National Bank and
Subsidiaries (the Group) and the parent company financial statements of Philippine National Bank
(the Parent Company), which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2013
and 2012, and the statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes
in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2013 and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Group and of the Parent Company as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 and their financial
performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013 in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in
Note 38 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal
Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of the management of Philippine National Bank. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Vb, Lo Lty

Vicky LegfSalas

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 86838

SEC Accreditation No. 0115 -AR-3 (Group A),
Febraury 14,2013, valid until February 13, 2016

Tax Identification No. 129-434-735,

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-53-2012
April 11,2012, valid until April 10, 2015

PTR No. 4225181, January 2, 2014, Makati City

February 28,2014
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

)
(In Thousands) Consolidated Parent Company
December 31, January 1, December 31, January 1,
2012 2012 2012 2012
December 31, (As Restated -  (As Restated -  December 31,  (As Restated - (As Restated -
2013 Note 2) Note 2) 2013 Note 2) Note 2)
ASSETS
Cash and Other Cash Items £11,804,746 £5,599,088 $£5,404,110 $£9,700,005 P5,548,325 P5,303,112
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
(Notes 17 and 35) 153,169,330 37,175,399 38,152,795 146,079,249 36,531,047 37,492,594
Due from Other Banks (Note 32) 14,881,541 4,042,769 6,423,981 6,146,134 3,293,782 4,906,698
Interbank Loans Receivable 8,405,250 11,498,756 17,097,648 8,405,250 11,498,756 17,097,648
Securities Held Under Agreements to Resell
(Note 34) - 18,300,000 18,300,000 - 18,300,000 18,300,000
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit
or Loss (Note 7) 11,709,348 4,023,065 6,875,665 3,845,673 3,965,098 6,873,208
Available-for-Sale Investments (Notes 8 and 16) 80,304,149 66,997,479 52,323,808 72,719,422 64,764,040 50,428,977
Loans and Receivables (Notes 9 and 32) 274,276,083 144,230,665 125,630,770 255,435,530 139,523,674 122,034,686
Property and Equipment (Note 10)
At cost 1,463,308 937,075 866,012 1,167,115 757,364 676,405
At appraised value 21,155,051 15,566,650 15,698,514 20,575,338 15,566,650 15,698,514
Investments in Subsidiaries and an Associate
(Note 11) - 2,391,255 2,896,718 13,479,418 6,399,163 7,300,582
Investment Properties (Notes 12 and 33) 21,452,962 15,493,026 18,519,723 21,224,934 15,425,877 18,449,813
Deferred Tax Assets (Note 29) 253,946 1,780,682 1,775,789 - 1,673,718 1,696,698
Intangible Assets (Note 14) 2,378,040 377,022 410,357 2,280,136 371,505 403,055
Goodwill (Notes 13 and 14) 13,375,407 - - 13,515,765 - -
Other Assets (Note 15) 3,436,355 1,777,820 1,175,530 2,810,178 1,464,683 778,288
TOTAL ASSETS £618,065,516  £330,190,751 P311,551,420  $577,384,147  P325,083,682  £307,440,278
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposit Liabilities (Notes 17 and 32)
Demand P£125,359,053 P£28,152,296 $£29,896,120  £118,010,984 P28,417,452 P£30,042,425
Savings 285,542,213 192,793,260 184,676,119 282,722,724 192,824,803 184,692,779
Time 51,464,182 19,908,821 22,961,698 47,698,807 20,164,420 23,726,483
462,365,448 240,854,377 237,533,937 448,432,515 241,406,675 238,461,687
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss (Note 18) 8,074,895 6,479,821 6,650,183 163,084 6,479,821 6,650,183
Bills and Acceptances Payable (Notes 19,
32 and 34) 13,171,997 13,076,901 8,458,425 13,484,476 12,718,811 7,318,358
Accrued Taxes, Interest and Other Expenses
(Note 20) 5,523,523 3,914,290 3,739,049 5,009,163 3,720,769 3,562,131
Subordinated Debt (Note 21) 9,953,651 9,938,816 6,452,473 9,953,651 9,938,816 6,452,473
Income Tax Payable 48,448 149,050 242,169 6,186 147,911 220,803
Other Liabilities (Note 22) 35,029,926 17,285,251 14,668,239 21,122,523 13,398,883 12,144,595
TOTAL LIABILITIES 534,167,888 291,698,506 277,744,475 498,171,598 287,811,686 274,810,230
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
COMPANY
Capital Stock (Note 25) 43,448,337 26,489,837 26,489,837 43,448,337 26,489,837 26,489,837
Capital Paid in Excess of Par Value (Note 25) 26,499,909 2,037,272 2,037,272 26,499,909 2,037,272 2,037,272
Surplus Reserves (Notes 25 and 31) 524,003 569,887 560,216 524,003 569,887 560,216
Surplus (Note 25) 12,432,838 7,266,067 2,567,178 10,688,812 5,288,941 734,043
Revaluation Increment on Land and
Buildings (Notes 10 and 25) 2,489,722 2,816,962 2,816,962 2,489,722 2,816,962 2,816,962
Remeasurement Losses on Retirement Plan
(Note 27) (1,278,372) (781,900) (1,004,057) (1,262,899) (773,837) (1,000,543)
Accumulated Translation Adjustment (Note 25) 291,371 (992,620) (451,708) 225,594 (61,752) 334,005
Net Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Available-for-
Sale Investments (Note 8) (3,581,865) 1,037,252 742,343 (3,400,929) 904,686 658,256
Equity in Net Unrealized Gain on
Available-for-Sale Investment of
an Associate (Note 11) - - 6,795 - - -
Parent Company Shares Held by a Subsidiary
(Note 25) — (4,740) (4,740) - — —
80,825,943 38,438,017 33,760,098 79,212,549 37,271,996 32,630,048
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Note 2) 3,071,685 54,228 46,847 - — —
TOTAL EQUITY 83,897,628 38,492,245 33,806,945 79,212,549 37,271,996 32,630,048
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P618,065,516 £330,190,751 P311,551,420  $577,384,147  P£325,083,682  £307,440,278

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME

)
(In Thousands Except Earnings Per Share) Consolidated Parent Company
Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011
(As Restated - (As Restated - (As Restated - (As Restated -
2013 Note 2) Note 2) 2013 Note 2) Note 2)
INTEREST INCOME ON
Loans and receivables (Notes 9 and 32) P13,118,464 £7,451,352 27,537,006 P12,558,709 £7,313,933 £7,402,800
Trading and investment securities (Notes 7 and 8) 3,756,195 3,235,754 4,260,736 3,409,591 3,140,385 4,174,992
Deposits with banks and others (Note 32) 1,585,522 659,295 659,210 1,361,825 633,710 637,112
Interbank loans receivable 19,852 14,207 30,685 18,101 14,207 30,684
18,480,033 11,360,608 12,487,637 17,348,226 11,102,235 12,245,588
INTEREST EXPENSE ON
Deposit liabilities (Notes 17 and 32) 3,655,381 3,099,782 4,011,455 3,569,034 3,112,516 4,010,841
Bills payable and other borrowings (Notes 19,
21 and 32) 1,076,113 1,285,120 1,257,249 1,027,124 1,227,690 1,215,128
4,731,494 4,384,902 5,268,704 4,596,158 4,340,206 5,225,969
NET INTEREST INCOME 13,748,539 6,975,706 7,218,933 12,752,068 6,762,029 7,019,619
Service fees and commission income (Notes 26
and 32) 3,341,136 2,130,663 2,343,990 2,548,182 1,596,950 1,682,802
Service fees and commission expense (Note 32) 906,719 254,447 207,387 380,154 146,341 127,188
NET SERVICE FEES AND COMMISSION
INCOME 2,434,417 1,876,216 2,136,603 2,168,028 1,450,609 1,555,614
OTHER INCOME
Trading and investment securities gains - net
(Notes 7 and 8) 4,618,233 5,364,809 3,590,993 4,421,504 5,273,217 3,561,370
Foreign exchange gains - net (Note 23) 1,236,189 1,173,823 1,198,393 1,007,721 978,554 892,784
Net gain on sale or exchange of assets (Note 26) 518,604 359,915 1,350,403 496,864 359,915 1,350,403
Miscellaneous (Note 26) 2,008,855 852,809 1,148,105 1,047,963 405,445 791,960
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 24,564,837 16,603,278 16,643,430 21,894,148 15,229,769 15,171,750
OPERATING EXPENSES
Compensation and fringe benefits (Notes 27
and 32) 5,988,167 3,710,029 3,858,157 5,144,506 3,214,496 3,264,868
Taxes and licenses (Note 29) 1,784,886 1,134,272 1,319,115 1,681,885 1,098,754 1,280,586
Depreciation and amortization (Note 10) 1,741,986 868,070 818,570 1,610,260 794,196 752,468
Occupancy and equipment-related costs (Note 28) 1,508,237 1,004,321 1,015,429 1,298,564 801,106 769,420
Provision for impairment, credit and other losses
(Note 16) 833,584 823,701 1,025,175 953,821 795,106 980,452
Miscellaneous (Note 26) 6,314,776 3,419,436 3,125,841 4,827,552 3,090,318 2,653,450
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 18,171,636 10,959,829 11,162,287 15,516,588 9,793,976 9,701,244
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 6,393,201 5,643,449 5,481,143 6,377,560 5,435,793 5,470,506
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 29) 1,171,140 925,058 849,457 1,023,573 871,224 808,388
NET INCOME £5,222,061 P4,718,391 P4,631,686 P5,353,987 4,564,569 P4,662,118
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity Holders of the Parent Company (Note 30) P£5,123,760 $4,708,560 P4,623,230
Non-controlling Interests 98,301 9,831 8,456
£5,222,061 P4,718,391 P4,631,686
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share Attributable to
Equity Holders of the Parent Company
(Note 30) P4.88 P7.11 P£6.98

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

)
(In Thousands) Consolidated Parent Company
Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011
(As Restated - (As Restated - (As Restated - (As Restated -
2013 Note 2) Note 2) 2013 Note 2) Note 2)
NET INCOME £5,222,061 P4,718,391 P4,631,686  P5,353,987 P4,564,569 P4,662,118

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS)
Items that recycle to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Accumulated translation adjustment 1,238,778 (540,912) 20,267 287,346 (395,757) 33,329
Net unrealized gain (loss) on
available-for-sale investments

(AFS) (Note 8) (4,413,053) 318,857 1,963,812 (4,314,548) 265,460 1,927,765
Share in equity adjustments of an
associate (Note 11) - (6,795) 752 - - -

Income tax effect of net unrealized
gain (loss) on AFS investment
(Note 8) 464 (23,948) (22,217) 8,933 (19,030) (15,048)
(3,173,811) (252,798) 1,962,614 (4,018,269) (149,327) 1,946,046

Items that do not recycle to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurement gains (losses) on

retirement plan (Note 27) (500,468) 222,157 (1,004,057) (489,062) 226,706 (1,000,543)
Revaluation increment on land and
building (467,486) - - (467,486) — -
Income tax effect of remeasurement
of'land and building (Note 29) 140,246 - - 140,246 - —
(827,708) 222,157 (1,004,057) (816,302) 226,706 (1,000,543)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF

TAX (4,001,519) (30,641) 958,557 (4,834,571) 77,379 945,503
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR £1,220,542 £4,687,750 P£5,590,243 £519,416 £4,641,948 £5,607,621
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Parent Company £964,922 £4,677,919 £5,581,787
Non-controlling Interests 255,620 9,831 8,456

P1220,542  P4687,750  P5,590,243

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

)
(In Thousands) Consolidated Parent Company
Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011
(As Restated - (As Restated - (As Restated - (As Restated —
2013 Note 2) Note 2) 2013 Note 2) Note 2)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax £6,393,201 P5,643,449 £5,481,143 £6,377,560 £5,435,793 P£5,470,506
Adjustments for:
Realized trading gain on available-for-sale
(AFS) investments (Note 8) 4,375,759)  (4,287,934)  (3,596,089)  (4,183,617)  (4,205,426)  (3,566,589)
Provision for impairment, credit and other
losses (Note 16) 833,584 823,701 1,025,175 953,821 795,106 980,452
Amortization of premium (discount) 1,166,368 (717,699) 47,419 1,167,834 (714,460) 59,323
Depreciation and amortization (Note 10) 1,741,986 868,070 818,570 1,610,260 794,196 752,468
Net gain on sale or exchange of assets
(Note 26) (518,604) (359,915)  (1,350,403) (496,864) (359,915)  (1,350,403)
Loss (gain) on mark-to-market of financial
assets and liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL)
(Notes 8 and 18) 184,465 (314,340) 97,803 179,878 (314,340) 97,803
Loss (gain) on mark-to-market of
derivatives (Notes 8 and 23) (28,829) (81,511) 34,338 (28,829) (81,511) 34,338
Loss (gain) on mark-to-market of held for
trading securities 267,643 (46,281) (36,730) 267,732 (45,769) (36,840)
Amortization of transaction costs
(Notes 17 and 21) 34,191 21,733 32,561 34,191 21,733 32,561
Share in net income of an associate
(Note 11 and 26) (4,975) (10,309) (68,954) - - -
Realized trading gain on sale of held-to-
maturity (HTM) investments (Note 8) - - (141,274) - - (141,274)
Gain from step-up acquisition (Note 26) (63,605) - - - - -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in amounts of:
Financial assets at FVPL (1,382,294) 3,124,369 9,085,160 2,682,098 3,179,367 9,031,531
Loans and receivables (40,657,456) (20,406,367) (18,483,800) (35,798,270) (19,544,204) (17,734,026)
Other assets 64,881 1,215,745 780,578 (1,055,896) 1,722,961 446,246
Increase (decrease) in amounts of:
Financial liabilities at FVPL (2,504,889) - - (6,671,815) - -
Deposit liabilities 80,313,458 3,310,937 11,083,477 76,373,073 2,935,486 11,559,377
Accrued taxes, interest and other
expenses (14,876) 602,203 (840,128) (156,016) 11,389 (1,122,582)
Other liabilities 8,261,602 1,386,506 746,558 3,192,096 794,646 1,736,128
Net cash generated from (used in) operations 49,710,092 (9,227,643) 4,715,404 44,447,236 (9,574,948) 6,249,019
Income taxes paid (1,183,440) (974,179) (856,916)  (1,033,856) (900,935) (743,275)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities 48,526,652  (10,201,822) 3,858,488 43,413,380 (10,475,883) 5,505,744
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of:
AFS investments 145,269,935 244,636,344 185,507,498 143,591,731 239,720,793 185,348,678
Investment properties 3,021,651 2,669,604 3,909,976 2,678,954 2,727,503 3,505,960
Property and equipment (Note 10) 155,831 300,107 121,959 185,970 285,389 95,542
Proceeds from maturity of HTM investments - - 2,611,603 - - 2,611,603
Proceeds from sale of HTM investments - - 2,586,113 - - 2,586,113
Collection of receivables from SPV 258,348 575,000 - 258,348 575,000 -

(Forward)
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

)
(In Thousands) Consolidated Parent Company
Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011
(As Restated - (As Restated - (As Restated - (As Restated —
2013 Note 2) Note 2) 2013 Note 2) Note 2)
Proceeds from redemption of placements with
the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) - P20,200,000  £9,800,000 - P20,200,000  £9,800,000
Placements with the BSP (Note 35) - - (20,200,000) - - (20,200,000)

Acquisition of:
AFS investments

(141,313,335) (254,009,801) (164,299,207) (140,290,305)

(248,911,324) (164,006,652)

Net cash acquired from merger (Note 13) 64,444,868 - - 53,204,473 - -
Property and equipment (Note 10) (960,326) (704,327) (512,048) (852,784) (636,651) (413,451)
Software cost (Note 15) (118,236) (120,215) (69,122) (82,808) (119,576) (66,416)
Additional investments in
subsidiaries/associate - - - - - (115,455)
Closure of subsidiaries — — — (38,267) 32,042 64,447
Net cash provided by investing activities 70,758,736 13,546,712 19,456,772 58,655,312 13,873,176 19,210,369
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bills and acceptances payable 65,997,725 48,061,417 40,190,569 64,736,812 47,023,325 36,695,559
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debt - 3,474,112 6,447,754 — 3,474,112 6,447,754
Settlement of bills and acceptances payable (69,053,466) (43,442,941) (43,736,282) (67,061,984) (41,622,872) (42,233,862)
Transaction cost of issuance of shares arising
from business combination (84,792) - - (84,792) - -
Redemption of subordinated debt (Note 21) (4,500,000) - (5,500,000)  (4,500,000) - (5,500,000)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest — — (115,455) — — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities (7,640,533) 8,092,588 (2,713,414)  (6,909,964) 8,874,565 (4,590,549)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 111,644,855 11,437,478 20,601,846 95,158,728 12,271,858 20,125,564
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR
Cash and other cash items 5,599,088 5,404,110 5,457,186 5,548,325 5,303,112 5,309,611
Due from BSP 37,175,399 17,952,795 14,485,986 36,531,047 17,292,594 14,473,986
Due from other banks 4,042,769 6,423,981 5,141,549 3,293,782 4,906,698 3,945,632
Interbank loans receivable 11,498,756 17,097,648 12,691,967 11,498,756 17,097,648 12,245,259
Securities held under agreements to resell 18,300,000 18,300,000 6,800,000 18,300,000 18,300,000 6,800,000
76,616,012 65,178,534 44,576,688 75,171,910 62,900,052 42,774,488
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR
Cash and other cash items 11,804,746 5,599,088 5,404,110 9,700,005 5,548,325 5,303,112
Due from BSP (Note 35) 153,169,330 37,175,399 17,952,795 146,079,249 36,531,047 17,292,594
Due from other banks (Note 35) 14,881,541 4,042,769 6,423,981 6,146,134 3,293,782 4,906,698
Interbank loans receivable 8,405,250 11,498,756 17,097,648 8,405,250 11,498,756 17,097,648
Securities held under agreements to resell — 18,300,000 18,300,000 - 18,300,000 18,300,000
£188,260,867 P76,616,012 P65,178,534 £170,330,638 £75,171,910 $£62,900,052
OPERATIONAL CASH FLOWS FROM
INTEREST AND DIVIDENDS
Interest paid P4,451,487 P4381,425  P5416,185  P4,345,141  P4,332906  P5,373,255
Interest received 16,245,262 12,232,534 12,938,408 15,261,646 11,978,131 12,712,686
Dividends received 3,399 2,418 1,680 81,562 25,219 231,576

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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1. Corporate Information

Philippine National Bank (the Parent Company) was established in the Philippines in 1916 and
started commercial operations that same year. On May 27, 1996, the Parent Company was
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) with a corporate term
of 50 years. Its principal place of business is at PNB Financial Center, President Diosdado
Macapagal Boulevard, Pasay City. As of December 31, 2013, the Lucio Tan Group Inc. (LTG)
held indirect ownership of 56.48% of the Parent Company’s shares through its various
subsidiaries, while 20.22% of the Parent Company’s shares are held by various companies
associated with or who issue proxies/special powers of attorney in favor of Director Lucio C. Tan
and the latter owns directly 1.19% of the Parent Company’s shares. The remaining 22.11% of the
Parent Company’s shares are held by other stockholders. As of December 31, 2012, the
companies and persons affiliated/associated to or who issue proxies/special powers of attorney in
favor of Director Lucio C. Tan held a total of about 68.85% of the Parent Company while the
remaining 31.15% was held by the public.

The Parent Company provides a full range of banking and other financial services to corporate,
middle-market and retail customers, the National Government (NG), local government units
(LGUs) and government-owned and controlled corporations (GOCCs) and various government
agencies. The Parent Company’s principal commercial banking activities include deposit-taking,
lending, bills discounting, foreign exchange dealing, investment banking, fund
transfers/remittance servicing and a full range of retail banking and trust services through its

655 and 338 domestic branches as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.
The Parent Company has the largest overseas network among Philippine banks with 81 and 78
branches, representative offices, remittance centers and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, respectively, in 16 locations in the United States, Canada, Europe, the Middle
East and Asia.

The subsidiaries of the Parent Company are engaged in a number of diversified financial and
related businesses such as remittance, life and non-life insurance, merchant banking, leasing, stock
brokerage, foreign exchange trading and/or related services.

The Parent Company previously operated under a rehabilitation program pursuant to the
memorandum of agreement signed by the Republic of the Philippines, the Philippine Deposit
Insurance Corporation (PDIC) and the LTG on May 3, 2002. In May 2007, the Parent Company
concluded its 5-year Rehabilitation Plan as approved by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP).

Merger with Allied Banking Corporation

The respective shareholders of the Parent Company and Allied Banking Corporation (ABC),
representing at least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock of both banks, approved the
amended terms of the Plan of Merger of the two banks on March 6, 2012. The original plan of the
merger which was effected via a share-for-share exchange was approved by the affirmative vote of
ABC and the Parent Company’s respective shareholders, representing at least two-thirds of the
outstanding capital stock of both banks, on June 24, 2008. Under the approved amended terms,
the Parent Company will be the surviving entity. It will issue to ABC shareholders 130 Parent
Company common shares for every ABC common share and 22.763 Parent Company common
shares for every ABC preferred share. Merger and business combination are terms used
interchangeably within the accompanying financial statements and have the same meaning.
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On March 26, 2012, the Parent Company submitted to the BSP and PDIC applications for consent
to the merger. On April 12, 2012, the application for the merger was filed with the Philippine
SEC. The PDIC, the Monetary Board (MB) of the BSP and the Philippine SEC gave consent and
approved the merger on July 25, 2012, August 2, 2012 and January 17, 2013, respectively. In
addition, with respect to ABC’s overseas subsidiaries, the Parent Company has also filed notices
in relation to the merger with various relevant foreign regulatory agencies; and as of February 9,
2013 had received all necessary approvals and complied with conditions to effectuate the merger.

On February 9, 2013, the Parent Company concluded its planned merger with ABC as approved
and confirmed by the Board of Directors (BOD) of the Parent Company and of ABC on
January 22 and 23, 2013, respectively. The purchase consideration as of February 9, 2013, the
acquisition date, amounted to £41.5 billion which represents 423,962,500 common shares at the
fair value of £97.90 per share in exchange for the 100.00% voting interest in ABC at the share
swap ratio of 130 Parent Company common shares for one ABC share and 22.763 Parent
Company common shares for one ABC preferred share. The fair value of the shares is the
published price of the shares of the Parent Company as of February 9, 2013. There are no
contingent considerations arrangements as part of the merger.

The merger of the Parent Company and ABC will enable the two banks to advance their long-term
strategic business interests as they capitalized on their individual strengths and markets.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (the Group)
have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), and available-for-sale (AFS) investments, that are measured at fair
value, and land and building that are measured at revalued amount. Amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented to the nearest thousand pesos (P000) unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In
addition, the Group presents an additional statement of financial position at the beginning of the
earliest period presented when there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a
retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in financial statements. An additional
statement of financial position as at January 1, 2012 is presented in these financial statements due
to retrospective application of certain accounting policies as discussed in the ‘Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures’ section of this note.

The financial statements of the Parent Company and Allied Savings Bank (ASB) reflect the
accounts maintained in the Regular Banking Unit (RBU) and Foreign Currency Deposit Unit
(FCDU).

The functional currency of RBU and FCDU is Philippine pesos (Php) and United States Dollar
(USD), respectively. For financial reporting purposes, FCDU accounts and foreign currency-
denominated accounts in the RBU are translated into their equivalents in Philippine pesos (see
accounting policy on Foreign Currency Translation). The financial statements individually
prepared for these units are combined and inter-unit accounts and transactions are eliminated.
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Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The respective
functional currencies of the subsidiaries are presented under the ‘Basis of Consolidation’.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS).

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for
the following new, amendments and improvements to PFRS which became effective as of
January 1, 2013. Changes in the accounting policies that did not have any significant impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group follows:

New and Revised Standards and Interpretations

e PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

e Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)
e PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011)

Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle)

e PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS - Borrowing Costs

e PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Clarification of the requirements for
comparative information

e PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of servicing equipment

e PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Tax effect of distribution to holders of equity
instruments

e PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Interim financial reporting and segment information
for total assets and liabilities

Standards that have been adopted and are deemed to have an impact on the financial statements or
performance of the Group are described below:

PFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and related
arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new disclosures are required for all recognized
financial instruments that are set off in accordance with PAS 32. These disclosures also apply to
recognized financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or
‘similar agreement’, irrespective of whether they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32. The
amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format, unless another format is more
appropriate, the following minimum quantitative information. This is presented separately for
financial assets and financial liabilities recognized at the end of the reporting period:
a) The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;
b) The amounts that are set off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining the
net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
¢) The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
d) The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that
are not otherwise included in (b) above, including:
i.  Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of the
offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
ii. Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and
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e) The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.

The amendments affect disclosures only and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or
performance. The additional disclosures required by the amendments are presented in Note 34 to
the financial statements.

PERS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

PFRS 10 replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues raised in
Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) No. 12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities.

PFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose
entities. The changes introduced by PFRS 10 requires management to exercise significant
judgment to determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated
by a parent, compared with the requirements in PAS 27. Refer to Note 3 for the significant
judgment made by management in identifiying entities for consolidation.

Deconsolidation of Investment in SPV - Opal Portfolio Investments (SPV-AMC), Inc. (OPII)
Before the effectivity of PFRS 10, OPII is consolidated by PNB based on the provisions of

SIC 12. Under SIC 12, control over an SPE may exist even in cases where an entity owns little or
none of the SPE’s equity, such as when an entity retains majority of the residual risks related to
the SPE in order to obtain benefits from its activities. Beginning January 1, 2013, the Group
adopted PFRS 10 which supersedes SIC 12. PFRS 10 establishes control as the basis for
determining which entities are consolidated in the consolidated financial statements.

Based on management’s assessment, the Parent Company should no longer consolidate OPII since
it failed to demonstrate control over OPII following the control model under PFRS 10.

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests with Other Entities

PFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated
financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31 and
PAS 28. These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and structured entities. The Group has no significant interests in joint arrangements,
associates and structured entities that require disclosures. Refer to Basis of Consolidation and
Notes 3 and 11 for disclosures related to subsidiaries and associate.

PERS 13, Fair Value Measurement

PFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under PFRSs for all fair value measurements.
PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance
on how to measure fair value under PFRS. PFRS 13 defines fair value as an exit price. PFRS 13
also requires additional disclosures.

As aresult of the guidance in PFRS 13, the Group re-assessed its policies for measuring fair
values, in particular, its valuation inputs such as non-performance risk for fair value measurement
of liabilities. The Group has assessed that the application of PFRS 13 has not materially impacted
the fair value measurements of the Group. Additional disclosures, where required, are provided in
the individual notes relating to the assets and liabilities whose fair values were determined. Refer
to Note 5 for the additional disclosures required by this standard.
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PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income or OCI (Amendments)

The Group applied amendments to PAS 1 and changed the grouping of items presented in OCI
as follows:

e items that can be reclassified (or “recycled”) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for
example, upon derecognition or settlement). These include ‘Accumulated Translation
Adjustment’, ‘Net Unrealized Gain (Loss) on AFS Investments’ and ‘Equity in Net Unrealized
Gain on AFS Investment of an Associate’.

e items that will never be recycled to profit or loss. These include ‘Remeasurement (Losses)
Gains on Retirement Plan’ and ‘Revaluation Increment on Land and Building’.

The amendments affect presentation only and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or
performance.

PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Revised)

Amendments to PAS 19 range from fundamental changes such as removing the corridor
mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and
rewording. The revised standard also requires new disclosures such as, among others, a sensitivity
analysis for each significant actuarial assumption, information on asset-liability matching
strategies, duration of the defined benefit obligation, and disaggregation of plan assets by nature
and risk.

The adoption of PAS 19 (Revised) which required restrospective application, resulted in the
restatement of previously reported retirement obligation/asset of the Group. The adjustment
amounts were determined by the Group with the assistance of an external actuary. The Parent
Company and certain subsidiaries had chosen to close under ‘Surplus’ the net effect of all
transition adjustments as at January 1, 2011 (the transition date) upon retrospective application of
PAS 19 (Revised). The Group will retain the remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive
income and will not transfer these to other items in equity.

The effects of retrospective application of PAS 19 (Revised), PFRS 10 and reclassifications are
detailed below:

Consolidated
December 31, 2012

Effect of Effect of
retroactive retroactive
As previously application of application of
Reported PAS 19R PFRS 10 Reclassifications As Restated
Increase (Decrease)
Statement of financial position
Assets
Loans and receivables - net £144,707,509 P P (P476,844) £144,230,665
Investment in subsidiaries and an
associate 2,905,294 - - (514,039) 2,391,255
Intangible assets - - - 377,022 377,022
Investment properties 14,478,348 — — 1,014,678 15,493,026
Other assets - net 2,994,425 429 (816,217) (400,817) 1,777,820
Liabilities
Other liabilities 16,846,393 450,807 (11,949) = 17,285,251
Equity
Remeasurement losses on
retirement plan - (781,900) = = (781,900)
Surplus 6,888,348 331,500 46,219 - 7,266,067
Non-controlling interests 904,693 22 (850,487) - 54,228
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Consolidated
January 1, 2012
Effect of Effect of
retroactive retroactive
As previously application of application of
Reported PAS 19R PFRS 10 Reclassifications As Restated
Increase (Decrease)
Statement of financial position
Assets
Loans and receivables - net £126,249,035 P P (P618,265) £125,630,770
Investment in subsidiaries and an
associate 2,901,780 - - (5,062) 2,896,718
Intangible assets - - - 410,357 410,357
Investment properties 16,100,113 = - 2,419,610 18,519,723
Other assets - net 3,897,388 (1,216) (514,002) (2,206,640) 1,175,530
Liabilities
Other liabilities 14,015,965 681,915 (29,641) - 14,668,239
Equity
Remeasurement losses on
retirement plan - (1,004,057) - (1,004,057)
Surplus 2,246,213 320,965 - - 2,567,178
Non-controlling interests 531,247 39) (484,361) - 46,847
Consolidated
January 1, 2011
Effect of Effect of
retroactive retroactive
As previously application of application of
Reported PAS 19R PFRS 10 Reclassifications As Restated
Increase (Decrease)
Statement of financial position
Equity
Surplus (P2,414,870) £367,087 P- B (P2,047,783)
Non-controlling interests 560,362 (42) (406,474) - 153,846
Parent Company
December 31, 2012
Effect of
retroactive
As previously application of
Reported PAS I9R  Reclassifications As Restated
Increase (Decrease)
Statement of financial position
Assets
Loans and receivables - net £140,136,848 P (P613,174) £139,523,674
Investment in subsidiaries and an associate 6,776,872 - (377,709) 6,399,163
Intangible assets - - 371,505 371,505
Investment properties 14,411,199 — 1,014,678 15,425,877
Other assets - net 1,859,983 - (395,300) 1,464,683
Liabilities
Other liabilities 12,962,336 436,547 - 13,398,883
Equity
Remeasurement losses on retirement plan - (773,837) - (773,837)
Surplus 4,951,651 337,290 - 5,288,941
Parent Company
January 1, 2012
Effect of
retroactive
As previously application of
Reported PAS 19R Reclassifications As Restated
Increase (Decrease)
Statement of financial position
Assets
Loans and receivables - net £122,652,951 P (P618,265) £122,034,686
Investment in subsidiaries and an associate 7,305,644 - (5,062) 7,300,582
Intangible assets - - 403,055 403,055
Investment properties 16,030,203 — 2,419,610 18,449,813
Other assets - net 2,977,626 - (2,199,338) 778,288
Liabilities
Other liabilities 11,471,621 672,974 - 12,144,595
Equity
Remeasurement losses on retirement plan - (1,000,543) = (1,000,543)
Surplus 406,474 327,569 = 734,043
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Parent Company

January 1, 2011
Effect of
retroactive
As previously application of
Reported PAS 19R  Reclassifications As Restated
Statement of financial position
Surplus (P4,300,344) £380,538 P (B3,919,806)

As an effect of retrospective application of PFRS 10 to the Group, other income, other expenses,
provision for income tax and income attributable to non-controlling interests decreased by
£989.4 million, £623.3 million, £46.2 million, and £366.1 million in 2012 and £762.8 million,
£651.9 million, 33.0 million and £77.9 million in 2011.

As an effect of retrospective application of PAS 19 (Revised) to the Group and Parent Company,
operating expenses decreased by £10.9 million and £9.7 million, respectively, in 2012 and
increased by £43.0 million and £53.0 million, respectively, in 2011. Provision for income tax of
the Group increased by £0.3 million in 2012 and £3.1 million in 2011.

OCI of the Group and Parent Company increased by £222.2 million and £226.7 million,
respectively, in 2012 and decreased by £1.0 billion in 2011.

As of and for the period ended December 31, 2013, the effect of the application of PAS 19
(Revised) resulted in increase in other liabilities and beginning surplus of the Group and the
Parent Company by £1.7 billion and £331.5 million, respectively, and decrease in its OCI of
P£781.9 million.

Reclassification

In order to maintain comparability and consistency with the 2013 financial statements, the Group
restated certain comparative balances as presented in the above table. The reclassifications were
made to better present the nature of these transactions.

Also, starting 2013, market valuation gain or loss on currency forwards and spots is presented
under ‘Foreign exchange gain - net’ to match the FX volatility arising from revaluation of foreign-
currency denominated assets. Presentation of prior years financial statements were restated to
conform and be comparable with the 2013 presentation. The market valuation loss on currency
forwards and spots reclassified from ‘Trading and investment and securities - gain’ to ‘Foreign
exchange gains - net’ in 2012 and 2011 amounted to £231.3 million and £17.9 million,
respectively.
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Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and
the following subsidiaries:

As of December 31, 2013

Percentage
Country of of Ownership Functional
Subsidiaries Nature of Business Incorporation Direct  Indirect Currency
ASB Banking Philippines 100.00 - Php
PNB Capital and Investment Corporation
(PNB Capital) Investment -do - 100.00 — Php
PNB Forex, Inc. FX trading -do- 100.00 - Php
PNB Holdings Corporation (PNB Holdings) Investment -do - 100.00 - Php
PNB General Insurers, Inc. (PNB Gen) © Insurance -do - — 100.00 Php
PNB Securities, Inc. (PNB Securities) Securities Brokerage -do - 100.00 - Php
PNB Corporation — Guam Remittance USA 100.00 - USD
PNB International Investments Corporation
(PNB IIC) Investment -do - 100.00 - USD
PNB Remittance Centers, Inc. (PNB RCC) Remittance -do - — 100.00 USD
Holding Company
PNB RCI Holding Co. Ltd. ® of PNB RCC -do - - 100.00 uUsD
Great Britain
Allied Bank Philippines (UK) Plc (ABUK)* Banking United Kingdom 100.00 —  Pound (GBP)
PNB Europe PLC Banking -do - 100.00 - GBP
Canadian Dollar
PNB Remittance Co. (Canada)© Remittance Canada - 100.00 (CAD)
PNB Global Remittance & Financial Co. Hong Kong
(HK) Ltd. (PNB GRF) Remittance Hong Kong 100.00 —  Dollar (HKD)
PNB Italy SpA (PISpA) Remittance Italy 100.00 - Euro
People’s Republic
Allied Commercial Bank (ACB)* Banking of China 90.41 - USD
Japan - PNB Leasing and Finance Corporation
(Japan-PNB Leasing) Leasing/Financing Philippines 90.00 - Php
Japan -PNB Equipment Rentals Corporation® Rental -do - - 90.00 Php
PNB Life Insurance, Inc. (PNB LII) * Insurance -do - 80.00 - Php
Allied Leasing and Finance Corporation (ALFC) Rental -do - 57.21 - Php
ACR Nominees Limited © * Banking Hong Kong - 51.00 HKD
Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong)
Limited (ABCHKL) * Banking -do - 51.00 - HKD
British Virgin
Oceanic Holding (BVI) Ltd. (OHBVI) * Holding Company Islands 27.78 - UsD
* Subsidiaries acquired as a result of the merger with Allied Banking Corporation
As of December 31, 2012
Percentage
Country of of Ownership Functional
Subsidiaries Nature of Business Incorporation Direct Indirect  Currency
PNB Capital Investment Philippines 100.00 - Php
PNB Forex, Inc. FX trading -do- 100.00 - Php
PNB Holdings Investment -do- 100.00 - Php
PNB Gen® Insurance -do - - 100.00 Php
PNB Securities Securities Brokerage -do- 100.00 - Php
PNB Corporation — Guam Remittance USA 100.00 - USD
PNB IIC Investment -do- 100.00 - USD
Holding Company of
PNB RCI Holding Co. Ltd. ® PNB RCC -do- - 100.00 USD
PNB Remittance Co. (Canada) © Remittance Canada - 100.00 CAD
PNB GRF Remittance Hong Kong 100.00 - HKD
PNB Italy SpA Remittance Italy 100.00 - Euro
PNB Europe PLC Banking United Kingdom 100.00 - GBP
Japan-PNB Leasing Leasing/Financing Philippines 90.00 = Php
(J ?pan -PNB Equipment Rentals Corporation'” Rental -do - - 90.00 Php

Owned through PNB Holdings
®  Owned through PNB IIC
© Owned through PNB RCI Holding Co. Ltd.
@ Owned through Japan - PNB Leasing
©  Owned through ABCHKL
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The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared on the same reporting period as the
Parent Company using consistent accounting policies. All significant intra-group balances,
transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in the consolidation.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
Control is achieved where the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable return from its
involvement with an entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over the entity when it has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities (i.e., activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns).
Consolidation of subsidiaries ceases when control is transferred out of the Group or Parent
Company. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the
consolidated statement of income from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as
appropriate.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest

Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity

Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive
income (OCI) to profit or loss or surplus, as appropriate

The Group accounts for its investments in OHBVI as a subsidiary although the Group holds less
than 50.00% of OHBVI’s issued share capital on the basis of the voting rights of 42.78% assigned
by certain stockholders to the Parent Company. The Group has the ability to control the relevant
activities and to affect its returns in OHBVI on the basis of the combined voting rights arising
from its direct ownership and assigned voting rights of 70.56%.

Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held by the
Group and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of income, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position, separately from equity attributable to the Parent Company. Acquisitions of non-
controlling interests are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby the difference between the
consideration paid and the share in the net assets acquired is recognized in equity.

Significant Accounting Policies

Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions and balances

The books of accounts of the RBU are maintained in Php, while those of the FCDU are
maintained in USD.

As at reporting date, foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities in the RBU are
translated in Philippine peso based on the Philippine Dealing System (PDS) closing rate prevailing
at end of the year and for foreign currency-denominated income and expenses, at the exchange
rates prevailing at transaction dates. Foreign exchange differences arising from restatements of
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foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities of the RBU are credited to or charged against
operations in the year in which the rates change. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the
initial transactions.

FCDU and Overseas subsidiaries

As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of the FCDU and overseas subsidiaries are
translated into the Parent Company’s presentation currency (the Philippine peso) at the closing
rate prevailing at the reporting date, and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rate for the year. Exchange differences arising on translation are taken directly to OCI
under ‘Accumulated translation adjustment’. On disposal of a foreign entity or upon actual
remittance of FCDU profits to RBU, the deferred cumulative amount recognized in OCI relating
to the particular foreign operation is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Group (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders
if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a
general guideline, the Group determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing
benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also
transfer financial risk.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for
the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period,
unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expire. Investment contracts can, however, be
reclassified as insurance contracts after inception if insurance risk becomes significant.

Insurance and investment contracts are further classified as being with or without discretionary
participation features (DPF).

DPF is a contractual right to receive, as a supplement to guaranteed contracts, additional benefits
that are likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits, whose amount or timing
is contractually at the discretion of the issuer, and that are contractually based on the performance
of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract, realized and or unrealized
investment returns on a specified pool of assets held by the issuer, or the profit or loss of the
company, fund or other entity that issues the contract.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk. Financial risk is
the risk of a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, security price,
commodity price, foreign currency exchange rate, index of price or rates, a credit rating or credit
index or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not
specific to a party to the contract.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as financial assets at FVPL and AFS investments
at fair value at each reporting date while land and building under Property and equipment are
carried at revalued amounts. Also, fair values of financial instruments measured at amortized cost
and investment properties are disclosed in Note 5.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

e in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

Date of recognition

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on settlement date.
Derivatives are recognized on trade date basis (i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell). Deposits, amounts due to banks and customers and loans are recognized when cash is
received by the Group or advanced to the borrowers.

Initial recognition of financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value. Except for financial instruments at
FVPL, the initial measurement of financial instruments includes transaction costs. The Group
classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, HTM
investments, AFS investments, and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market.
Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date. Financial
liabilities are classified into financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities at amortized
cost.
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As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group has no HTM investments.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial asset out of the held-for-
trading (HFT) category if the financial asset is no longer held for purposes of selling it in the near
term and only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely
to recur in the near term. In addition, the Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that
would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the HFT or AFS investments categories
if the Group has the intention and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity at the date of reclassification.

The Group may also reclassify certain AFS investments to HTM investments when there is a
change of intention and the Group has the ability to hold the financial instruments to maturity.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date which then becomes the new
cost or amortized cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded before
reclassification date are subsequently made. Effective interest rates (EIR) for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and HTM categories are determined at the reclassification
date. Further increases in estimates of cash flows adjust the EIR prospectively.

Derivatives recorded at FVPL

The Parent Company and some of its subsidiaries are counterparties to derivative contracts, such
as currency forwards, currency swaps, interest rate swaps and warrants. These derivatives are
entered into as a service to customers and as a means of reducing or managing their respective
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures, as well as for trading purposes. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value on the date at which the derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from
changes in fair values of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of income and are included
in ‘Trading and investment securities gains - net’ except for currency forwards, where fair value
changes are included under ‘Foreign exchange gains - net’. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Embedded derivatives

The Group has certain derivatives that are embedded in host financial (such as structured notes,
debt investments, and loans receivables) and non-financial (such as purchase orders and service
agreements) contracts. These embedded derivatives include credit default swaps (which are linked
either to a single reference entity or a basket of reference entities); conversion options in loans
receivables; call options in certain long-term debt, and foreign-currency derivatives in debt
instruments, purchase orders and service agreements. Embedded derivatives are bifurcated from
their host contracts and carried at fair value with fair value changes being reported through profit
or loss, when the entire hybrid contracts (composed of both the host contract and the embedded
derivative) are not accounted for as financial assets at FVPL, when their economic risks and
characteristics are not clearly and closely related to those of their respective host contracts, and
when a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative. The Group assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be
separated from the host contracts when the Group first becomes a party to the contract.
Reassessment of embedded derivatives is only done when there are changes in the contract that
significantly modifies the contractual cash flows.
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Other financial assets or financial liabilities held-for-trading

Other financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading (classified as ‘Financial assets at
FVPL’ or ‘Financial liabilities at FVPL’) are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair
value. Changes in fair value relating to the held-for-trading positions are recognized in ‘Trading
and investment securities gains - net’. Interest earned or incurred is recorded in ‘Interest income’
or ‘Interest expense’, respectively, while dividend income is recorded in ‘Miscellaneous income’
when the right to receive payment has been established.

Included in this classification are debt and equity securities which have been acquired principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Designated financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL
Financial assets or financial liabilities classified in this category are designated by management on
initial recognition when any of the following criteria are met:

e The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them
on a different basis; or

o The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy; or

e The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it
would not be separately recorded.

Designated financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the statement of
financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Trading and investment
securities gains - net’. Interest earned or incurred is recorded in ‘Interest income’ or ‘Interest
expense’, respectively, while dividend income is recorded in ‘Miscellaneous income’ according to
the terms of the contract, or when the right of payment has been established.

HTM investments

HTM investments are quoted, non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities for which the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. Where the Group sells or reclassifies other than an insignificant amount of HTM
investments before maturity (other than in certain specific circumstances), the entire category
would be tainted and reclassified as AFS investments. Once tainted, the Group is prohibited from
classifying investments under HTM for three years starting from the date of tainting.

After initial measurement, these investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the
EIR. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of income when the HTM investments are
derecognized and impaired, as well as through the amortization process. The losses arising from
impairment of such investments are recognized in the statement of income under ‘Provision for
impairment, credit and other losses’. The effects of revaluation on foreign currency-denominated
HTM investments are recognized in the statement of income.

Loans and receivables

Significant accounts falling under this category are loans and receivables, amounts due from BSP
and other banks, interbank loans receivable and securities held under agreements to resell.
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These are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities and are not
quoted in an active market. They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-
term resale and are not classified as financial assets at FVPL or designated as AFS investments.

Loans and receivables also include receivables arising from transactions on credit cards issued
directly by the Parent Company. Furthermore, ‘Loans and receivables’ include the aggregate
rental on finance lease transactions and notes receivables financed by Japan - PNB Leasing and
ALFC. Unearned income on finance lease transactions is shown as a deduction from ‘Loans and
receivables’ (included in ‘Unearned and other deferred income’).

After initial measurement, ‘Loans and receivables’, ‘Due from BSP’, ‘Due from other banks’,
‘Interbank loans receivable’ and ‘Securities held under agreements to resell’ are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the
statement of income. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in ‘Provision for
impairment, credit and other losses’ in the statement of income.

AFS investments

AFS investments are those which are designated as such or do not qualify to be classified as
‘Financial assets at FVPL’, ‘HTM investments’ or ‘Loans and receivables’. They are purchased
and held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions. They include debt and equity instruments.

After initial measurement, AFS investments are subsequently measured at fair value. The
effective yield component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatement on foreign
currency-denominated AFS debt securities, is reported in the statement of income. The unrealized
gains and losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS investments are excluded, net of tax, from
reported income and are reported as ‘Net unrealized gain (loss) on AFS investments’ in the
statement of comprehensive income.

When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
recognized as ‘Trading and investment securities gains - net’ in the statement of income. Interest
earned on holding AFS debt investments are reported as ‘Interest income’ using the EIR.
Dividends earned on holding AFS equity investments are recognized in the statement of income as
‘Miscellaneous income’ when the right of payment has been established. The losses arising from
impairment of such investments are recognized as ‘Provision for impairment, credit and other
losses’ in the statement of income.

Other financial liabilities

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at FVPL, are classified
as deposit liabilities, bills and acceptances payable, subordinated debt and other appropriate
financial liability accounts, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the
Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to
satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. The components of issued financial instruments
that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted for separately, with the equity
component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a whole the
amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.
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After initial measurement, other financial liabilities not qualified as and not designated at FVPL
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an
integral part of the EIR.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial
assets) is derecognized when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained the risk and rewards of the asset but has transferred control over the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control over the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of income.

Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future date (‘repos’) are not
derecognized from the statement of financial position. The corresponding cash received, including
accrued interest, is recognized in the statement of financial position as a loan to the Group,
reflecting the economic substance of such transaction.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified future date (‘reverse
repos’) are not recognized in the statement of financial position. The Group is not permitted to
sell or repledge the securities in the absence of default by the owner of the collateral. The
corresponding cash paid, including accrued interest, is recognized on the consolidated statement of
financial position as ‘Securities held under agreements to resell’, and is considered a loan to the
counterparty. The difference between the purchase price and resale price is treated as interest
income and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the effective interest method.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more

88 PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
)

events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event”) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and where observable data indicate that there is
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized costs such as loans and receivables, HTM investments,
due from BSP and other banks, interbank loans receivable and securities held under agreements to
resell, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current EIR, adjusted for the original credit risk premium. The calculation of the present value of
the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may
result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable.

If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment. Those characteristics
are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of
the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment for impairment.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of such credit risk characteristics as industry, collateral type, past-due status and term. Future cash
flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in
the Group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect
the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss
experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist
currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent with
changes in related observable data from period to period (such as changes in property prices,
payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the Group and their
magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account and the amount
of loss is charged to the statement of income. Interest income continues to be recognized based on
the original EIR of the asset. Loans and receivables, together with the associated allowance
accounts, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
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been realized. If subsequently, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of
an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, any
amounts formerly charged are credited to the ‘Provision for impairment, credit and other losses’
account.

Restructured loans

Where possible, the Group seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral.
This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions.
Once the terms have been renegotiated, the loan is no longer considered past due. Management
continuously reviews restructured loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments
are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment
assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR. The difference between the recorded value
of the original loan and the present value of the restructured cash flows, discounted at the original
EIR, is recognized in ‘Provision for impairment, credit and other losses’ in the statement of
income.

AFS investments

For AFS investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. In case of equity
investments classified as AFS investments, this would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the investments below its cost.

Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognized in the statement of income - is removed from equity and recognized in the
statement of income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the
statement of income. Increases in fair value after impairment are recognized directly in OCI.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS investments, impairment is assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or
loss. Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued based on the
rate of interest used to discount future cash flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss.
Such accrual is recorded as part of ‘Interest income’ in the statement of income. If subsequently,
the fair value of a debt instrument increased and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the statement of income, the impairment
loss is reversed through the statement of income.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statement of financial position.

Residual Value of [L.eased Assets and Deposits on Finance Leases

The residual value of leased assets, which approximates the amount of guaranty deposit paid by
the lessee at the inception of the lease, is the estimated proceeds from the sale of the leased asset at
the end of the lease term. At the end of the lease term, the residual value of the leased asset is
generally applied against the guaranty deposit of the lessee when the lessee decides to buy the
leased asset.
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Financial Guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the Group gives financial guarantees consisting of letters of
credit, letters of guarantees, and acceptances. Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the
financial statements at fair value under ‘Other liabilities’. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are each measured at the higher of the initial fair value
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization calculated to recognize the fee in the statement of
income in ‘Service fees and commission income’, over the term of the guarantee, and the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle any financial obligation arising as a result of the
guarantee.

Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees is taken to the consolidated statement
of income in ‘Provision for impairment, credit and other losses’. Any financial guarantee liability
remaining is recognized in the statement of income in ‘Service fees and commission income’,
when the guarantee is discharged, cancelled or has expired.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements
against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has
concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements except for their
brokerage transactions. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognized:

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial instruments
classified as HFT and AFS investments, interest income is recorded at the EIR, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment options), includes any fees or incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit
losses. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original EIR. The change in
carrying amount is recorded as income. Once the recorded value of a financial asset or group of
similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impairment loss, interest income continues to
be recognized using the original EIR applied to the new carrying amount.

Service fees and commission income
The Group earns fee and commission income from diverse range of services it provides to its
customers. Fee income can be divided into the following two categories:

a) Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time
Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period.
These fees include investment fund fees, custodian fees, fiduciary fees, commission income,
credit-related fees, trust fees, portfolio and other management fees, and advisory fees.

However, loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred
(together with any incremental costs) and recognized as an adjustment to the EIR of the loan.

b) Fee income from providing transaction services
Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third
party - such as the arrangement of the acquisition of shares or other securities or the purchase
or sale of businesses - are recognized on completion of the underlying transaction.
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Fees or components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognized after
fulfilling the corresponding criteria. These fees include underwriting fees, corporate finance
fees, remittance fees, brokerage fees, deposit-related and other credit-related fees. Loan
syndication fees are recognized in the statement of income when the syndication has been
completed and the Group retains no part of the loans for itself or retains part at the same EIR
as for the other participants.

Interchange fee and awards revenue on credit cards

Discounts lodged under ‘Interchange fees’ are taken up as income (presented under ‘Service fees
and commission income’) upon receipt from member establishments of charges arising from credit
availments by the Group’s cardholders. These discounts are computed based on certain agreed
rates and are deducted from amounts remitted to the member establishments.

The Group operates a loyalty points program which allows customers to accumulate points when
they purchase from member establishments using the issued card of the Group. The points can
then be redeemed for free products subject to a minimum number of points being obtained.
Consideration received is allocated between the discounts earned, interchange fee and the points
earned, with the consideration allocated to the points equal to its fair value. The fair value is
determined by applying statistical analysis. The fair value of the points issued is deferred and
recognized as revenue when the points are redeemed. The deferred balance is included under
‘Other liabilities’ in the statement of financial position.

Commissions earned on credit cards

Commissions earned are taken up as income upon receipt from member establishments of charges
arising from credit availments by credit cardholders. These commissions are computed based on
certain agreed rates and are deducted from amounts remittable to member establishments.
Purchases by the credit cardholders, collectible on installment basis, are recorded at the cost of the
items purchased plus certain percentage of cost. The excess over cost is credited to ‘Unearned and
other deferred income’ account and is shown as a deduction from ‘Loans and receivables’ in the
statement of financial position. The unearned and other deferred income is taken up to income
over the installment terms and is computed using the effective interest method.

Commission earned on reinsurance

Reinsurance commissions are recognized as revenue over the period of the contracts. The portion
of the commissions that relates to the unexpired periods of the policies at the end of the reporting
period is accounted for as ‘Other liabilities’ in the statement of financial position.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Trading and investment securities gains - net

Trading and investment securities gains - net includes results arising from trading activities, all
gains and losses from changes in fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL and
gains and losses from disposal of AFS investments.

Rental income
Rental income arising on leased properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms on ongoing leases and is recorded in the statement of income under ‘Miscellaneous income’.

Income on direct financing leases and receivables financed

Income of the Group on loans and receivables financed is recognized using the effective interest
method.
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Unearned discounts included under ‘Unearned and other deferred income’ which are amortized
over the term of the note or lease using the effective interest method consist of:

e Transaction and finance fees on finance leases and loans and receivables financed with long-
term maturities; and

e Excess of the aggregate lease rentals plus the estimated residual value of the leased equipment
over its cost.

Premiums Revenue

Gross insurance written premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period of
cover provided by contracts entered into during the accounting period. Premiums include any
adjustments arising in the accounting period for premiums receivable in respect of business
written in prior periods. Premiums from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as
revenue over the period of the contracts using the 24th method except for marine cargo where the
provision for unearned premiums pertains to the premiums for the last two months of the year.
The portion of the premiums written that relate to the unexpired periods of the policies at end of
reporting period are accounted for as provision for unearned premiums and presented as part of
‘Other liabilities’ in the statement of financial position. The related reinsurance premiums ceded
that pertain to the unexpired periods at the end of the reporting periods are accounted for as
deferred reinsurance premiums shown as part of ‘Other assets’ in the statement of financial
position. The net changes in these accounts between end of the reporting periods are credited to or
charged against the statement of income for the period.

Other income

Income from sale of services is recognized upon rendition of the service. Income from sale of
properties is recognized upon completion of the earning process and when the collectibility of the
sales price is reasonably assured.

Expenses
Expenses encompass losses as well as those expenses that arise in the course of the ordinary

activities of the Group. Expenses are recognized when incurred.

Taxes and licenses

This includes all other taxes, local and national, including gross receipts taxes (GRT),
documentary stamp taxes, real estate taxes, licenses and permit fees that are recognized when
incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and other cash items
(COCI), amounts due from BSP and other banks, interbank loans receivable and securities held
under agreements to resell that are convertible to known amounts of cash, with original maturities
of three months or less from dates of placements and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in fair value.

Investments in Subsidiaries and Associate

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries pertain to entities over which the Group has control. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible and qualitative criteria are
considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity (see Basis of Consolidation).
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Investment in an associate

An associate pertains to an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20.00% and 50.00% of the voting rights. In
the consolidated financial statements, investment in an associate is accounted for under the equity
method of accounting.

Under the equity method, investment in an associate is carried in the statement of financial
position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associate, less impairment in value, if any. The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognized in the consolidated statement of income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in the associate’s equity reserves or other adjustments is recognized
directly in equity. When the Group’s share of losses in associates equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

In the Parent Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and an
associate are carried at cost, less any impairment in value.

Policy Loans
Policy loans included under loans and receivables are carried at their unpaid balances plus accrued

interest and are fully secured by the policy values on which the loans are made.

Reinsurance

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business. Reinsurance assets represent
balances due from reinsurance companies. Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner
consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance with the reinsurance
contract.

An impairment review is performed at each end of the reporting period or more frequently when
an indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when objective
evidence exists that the Group may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the
contract and when the impact on the amounts that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
measured reliably. The impairment loss is charged against the consolidated statement of income.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders.

The Group also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for insurance contracts.
Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized as income and expenses in the same
manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account
the product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due
to ceding companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the associated
reinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or
expired or when the contract is transferred to another party.

Deferred Acquisition Cost (DAC)

Commission and other acquisition costs incurred during the financial period that vary with and are
related to securing new insurance contracts and/or renewing existing insurance contracts, but
which relates to subsequent financial periods, are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable
out of future revenue margins. All other acquisition costs are recognized as an expense when
incurred.
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Subsequent to initial recognition, these costs are amortized using the 24th method except for
marine cargo where the DAC pertains to the commissions for the last two months of the year.
Amortization is charged to the consolidated statement of income. The unamortized acquisition
costs are shown as ‘Deferred acquisition costs’ in the assets section of the consolidated statement
of financial position.

An impairment review is performed at each end of the reporting period or more frequently when
an indication of impairment arises. The carrying value is written down to the recoverable amount
and the impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement of income. The DAC is also
considered in the liability adequacy test for each reporting period.

Property and Equipment
Depreciable properties such as leasehold improvements, and furniture, fixture and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value.

Land is stated at revalued amounts less any impairment in value while buildings are stated at
revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. The revalued
amounts were determined by professionally qualified, independent appraisers. The revalued
amounts take into account the market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use. The revaluation increment resulting from revaluation is credited
to the ‘Revaluation increment on land and buildings’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, net of applicable deferred income tax.

The Group has elected to transfer the revaluation increment to Surplus, in full, upon disposal of
the asset.

The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import duties,
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditures incurred after items of property and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance are normally charged against operations in the period in which the costs
are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures
are capitalized as an additional cost of property and equipment.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the terms of the

covering leases and the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

The estimated useful lives follow:

Years
Buildings 25-50
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5
Leasehold improvements 3-10

The useful life and the depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to ensure
that the period and the method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.
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An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the statement of income in the period the asset is derecognized.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. An investment
property acquired through an exchange transaction is measured at fair value of the asset acquired
unless the fair value of such an asset cannot be measured in which case the investment property
acquired is measured at the carrying amount of asset given up. Any gain or loss on exchange is
recognized in the statement of income under ‘Net gain on sale or exchange of assets’. Foreclosed
properties are classified under ‘Investment properties’ upon:

a. entry of judgment in case of judicial foreclosure;
b. execution of the Sheriff’s Certificate of Sale in case of extra-judicial foreclosure; or
c. notarization of the Deed of Dacion in case of payment in kind (dacion en pago).

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation (for depreciable investment properties) and impairment in value.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the remaining useful lives from the time of
acquisition of the depreciable investment properties ranging from 25 to 50 years.

Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognized in the statement of income under ‘Net gain on sale or exchange of assets’ in the period
of retirement or disposal.

Expenditures incurred after the investment properties have been put into operations, such as
repairs and maintenance costs, are normally charged against income in the period in which the
costs are incurred.

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use
evidenced by ending of owner occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party
or ending of construction or development. Transfers are made from investment properties when,
and only when, there is a change in use evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or
commencement of development with a view to sale.

Other Properties Acquired

Other properties acquired include chattel mortgage properties acquired in settlement of loan
receivables. These are carried at cost, which is the fair value at recognition date, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment in value.

The Group applies the cost model in accounting for other properties acquired. Depreciation is
computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of five years. The estimated useful
life and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and the
method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items
of other properties acquired.
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The carrying values of other properties acquired are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the
assets are written down to their recoverable amounts (see accounting policy on Impairment of
Nonfinancial Assets).

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in profit
or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the respective useful lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognized in the statement of income as the expense category that is consistent with the function
of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable.

If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income when the asset is derecognized.

Software costs

Software costs, included in ‘Other intangible assets’, are capitalized on the basis of the cost
incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortized over five
years on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful life and the amortization method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the period and the method of amortization are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from the software.

Costs associated with maintaining the computer software programs are recognized as expense
when incurred.

Customer relationship and core deposit intangibles

Customer relationship and core deposit are the intangible assets acquired by the Group through
business combination. These intangible assets are initially measured at their fair value at the date
of acquisition. The fair value of these intangible assets reflects expectations about the probability
that the expected future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Group.
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Following initial recognition, customer relationship and core deposit are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Customer relationship related
to the commercial loans business is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life of 3 years
while core deposit is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life of 10 years.

Business Combinations and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value
and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The Parent Company, the Acquirer, has
elected to measure the non-controlling interests in ABC, the Acquiree, at their proportionate share
in ABC’s net identifiable assets and liabilities. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred
and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group as an acquirer shall report in its financial statements
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. During the measurement
period, the Group as an acquirer shall retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts recognized at
the acquisition date to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as
of the acquisition date and, if known, would have affected the measurement of the amounts
recognized as of that date. During the measurement period, the Group as an acquirer shall also
recognize additional assets or liabilities if new information is obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date and, if known, would have resulted in the recognition of those
assets and liabilities as of that date. The measurement period ends as soon as the Group as an
acquirer receives the information it was seeking about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date or learns that more information is not obtainable. However, the measurement period
shall not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income. Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be
recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of PAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized either
in the consolidated statement of income or as a change to OCI. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of PAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate PFRS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interest over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the gain is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.
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After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned
to those units. Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed
in these circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Where there are business combinations in which all the combining entities within the Group are
ultimately controlled by the same ultimate parent before and after the business combination and that
the control is not transitory (“business combinations under common control”), the Group accounts
such business combinations under the purchase method of accounting, if the transaction was deemed
to have substance from the perspective of the reporting entity. In determining whether the business
combination has substance, factors such as the underlying purpose of the business combination and
the involvement of parties other than the combining entities such as the noncontrolling interest, shall
be considered.

In cases where the business combination has no substance, the Group shall account for the
transaction similar to a pooling of interests. The assets and liabilities of the acquired entities and that
of the Group are reflected at their carrying values. The difference in the amount recognized and the
fair value of the consideration given, is accounted for as an equity transaction, i.e., as either a
contribution or distribution of equity. Further, when a subsidiary is disposed in a common control
transaction, the difference in the amount recognized and the fair value consideration received, is also
accounted for as an equity transaction.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

Property and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and other properties acquired
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that its property and
equipment, investment properties, intangibles and other properties acquired with finite useful lives
may be impaired. When an indicator of impairment exists or when an annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, the Group makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is assessed as
part of the cash generating unit to which it belongs.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss is charged against operations in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is charged to the revaluation
increment of the said asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
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since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of
income unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is

treated as a revaluation increase. After such a reversal, the depreciation and amortization expense
is adjusted in future period to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value,
on a systematic basis over its remaining life.

Investment in subsidiaries and an associate

The Parent Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that its
investment in subsidiaries and an associate may be impaired. If any impairment indication exists,
the Parent Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Goodwill
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated (or to the aggregate carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units to which the
goodwill relates but cannot be allocated), an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the
consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed for
subsequent increases in its recoverable amount in future periods. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill every fourth quarter, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Life Insurance Contract Liabilities

Life insurance liabilities

Life insurance liabilities refer to liabilities of the Group that are recognized due to the obligations
arising from policy contracts issued by PNB LII. The reserves for life insurance contracts are
calculated based on prudent statutory assumptions in accordance with generally accepted actuarial
methods that are compliant with existing regulations.

Insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms

The liability is determined as the expected discounted value of the benefit payments less the
expected discounted value of the theoretical premiums that would be required to meet the benefits
based on the valuation assumptions used. The liability is based on mortality, morbidity and
investment income assumptions that are established at the time the contract is issued.

For unpaid claims and benefits, a provision is made for the estimated cost of all claims and
dividends notified but not settled at the reporting date less reinsurance recoveries, using the
information available at the time.

100 PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
)

Provision is also made for the cost of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) until after the
reporting date based on PNB LII’s experience and historical data. Differences between the
provision for outstanding claims at the reporting date and subsequent revisions and settlements are
included in the statement of income in later years. Policy and contract claims payable forms part
of the liability section of the statement of financial position under ‘Other liabilities - Insurance
contract liabilities’.

Aggregate reserve for life policies represents the accumulated total liability for policies in force on
the reporting date. Such reserves are established at amounts adequate to meet the estimated future
obligations of all life insurance policies in force. The reserves are calculated using actuarial
methods and assumptions in accordance with statutory requirements and as approved by the
Insurance Commission (IC), subject to the minimum liability adequacy test.

Unit-linked insurance contracts

PNB LII issues unit-linked insurance contracts. Considerations received from unit-linked
insurance contracts, in excess of the portion that is placed under a withdrawable segregated
account, are recognized as revenue.

PNB LII’s revenue from unit-linked contracts consists of charges deducted from the
policyholder’s separate account, in accordance with the unit-linked policy contract. Since the
segregated fund assets belong to the unit-linked policyholders, corresponding segregated fund
liabilities are set-up equal to the segregated fund assets less redemptions outside the segregated
funds. The segregated fund assets are valued at market price. Changes in the segregated fund
assets due to investment earnings or market value fluctuations result in the same corresponding
change in the segregated fund liabilities. Such changes in fund value have no effect in the
statement of income. Collections received from unit-linked policies are separated to segregated
fund assets from which PNB LII withdraws administrative and cost of insurance charges in
accordance with the policy provisions of the unit-linked insurance contracts. After deduction of
these charges, the remaining amounts in the segregated fund assets are equal to the surrender value
of the unit-linked policyholders, and are withdrawable anytime.

The equity of each unit-linked policyholder in the fund is monitored through the designation of
outstanding units for each policy. Hence, the equity of each unit-linked insurance contract in the
fund is equal to the total number of outstanding units of the policyholder multiplied by the net
asset value per unit (NAVPU). The NAVPU is the market value of the fund divided by the total
number of outstanding units.

Nonlife Insurance Contract Liabilities

Provision for unearned premiums

The proportion of written premiums, gross of commissions payable to intermediaries, attributable
to subsequent periods or to risks that have not yet expired is deferred as provision for unearned
premiums. Premiums from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the
period of the contracts using the 24th method except for marine cargo where the provision for
unearned premiums pertains to the premiums for the last two months of the year. The portion of
the premiums written that relate to the unexpired periods of the policies at the end of reporting
period are accounted for as provision for unearned premiums and presented as part of ‘Insurance
contract liabilities’ in the liabilities section of the consolidated statement of financial position.
The change in the provision for unearned premiums is taken to the consolidated statement of
income in the order that revenue is recognized over the period of risk. Further provisions are
made to cover claims under unexpired insurance contracts which may exceed the unearned
premiums and the premiums due in respect of these contracts.
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Claims provision and IBNR losses

Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost to all claims incurred but
not settled at the end of the reporting period, whether reported or not, together with related claims
handling costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays can
be experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the ultimate
cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the end of the reporting period. The liability is
not discounted for the time value of money and includes provision for IBNR. No provision for
equalization or catastrophic reserves is recognized. The liability is derecognized when the
contract has expired, is discharged or cancelled.

Liability Adequacy Test

Liability adequacy tests on life insurance contracts are performed annually to ensure the adequacy
of the insurance contract liabilities. In performing these tests, current best estimates of future
contractual cash flows, claims handling and policy administration expenses are used. Any
deficiency is immediately charged against profit or loss initially by establishing a provision for
losses arising from the liability adequacy tests.

For nonlife insurance contracts, liability adequacy tests are performed at the end of each reporting
date to ensure the adequacy of insurance contract liabilities, net of related DAC assets. The
provision for unearned premiums is increased to the extent that the future claims and expenses in
respect of current insurance contracts exceed future premiums plus the current provision for
unearned premiums.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset. A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

(b) A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;

(c) There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;
or

(d) There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Group as lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments and included in
‘Property and equipment’ account with the corresponding liability to the lessor included in ‘Other
liabilities’ account. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of
the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are charged directly to ‘Interest expense’.

Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets

or the respective lease terms, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term.
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Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the
consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as lessor

Finance leases, where the Group transfers substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item to the lessee, are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under ‘Loans and receivables’ account. A lease receivable is recognized at an amount
equivalent to the net investment (asset cost) in the lease. All income resulting from the receivable
is included in ‘Interest income’ in the statement of income.

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the assets are classified as operating leases. Lease payments received are recognized as an income
in the statement of income on a straight line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized
over the lease term on the same basis as the rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Retirement Benefits

Defined benefit plan

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets and adjusted
for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling, if any. The asset ceiling is
the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

(a) service cost;

(b) net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset; and
(c) remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset.

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on high quality corporate bonds to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or
income in profit or loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly
to the Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market
price is available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash
flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the
maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period
until the settlement of the related obligations).

The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized as a liability when they are accrued to the
employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting period is recognized for services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of assets embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
consolidated statement of income, net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as
an interest expense.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of assets embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are
not recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits
is probable.

Income Taxes

Income tax on profit and loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
determined in accordance with tax laws and is recognized in the consolidated statement of income,
except to the extent that it relates to items directly recognized in OCI.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

104 PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences at
the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset
revaluations. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
carryforward of unused tax credits from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT)
over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT), and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO),
to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and carryforward of unused tax credits from MCIT and unused
NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred tax, however, is not recognized on temporary differences that
arise from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable
income.

Deferred tax liabilities are not provided on non-taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in domestic subsidiaries and an associate. With respect to investments in foreign
subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax liabilities are recognized except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable income will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are applicable to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in OCI are also recognized in
OCI and not in the statement of income.

In the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred taxes
related to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Parent Company Shares Held by a Subsidiary

Own equity instruments which are acquired by subsidiaries (treasury shares) are deducted from
equity and accounted for at weighted average cost. No gain or loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Parent
Company’s own equity instruments.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income for the period attributable to
common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period after giving retroactive effect to stock dividends declared and stock rights exercised during
the period, if any.
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Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the aggregate of net income attributable to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period
adjusted for the effects of any dilutive shares.

Dividends

Dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when
approved by the respective BOD of the Parent Company and subsidiaries. Dividends for the
period that are approved after the reporting date are dealt with as an event after the reporting date.

Debt Issue Costs

Issuance, underwriting and other related expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of debt
instruments (other than debt instruments designated at FVPL) are deferred and amortized over the
terms of the instruments using the effective interest method. Unamortized debt issuance costs are
included in the measurement of the related carrying value of the debt instruments in the statement
of financial position.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the year in which these costs are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest expense calculated using the effective interest method
calculated in accordance with PAS 39 that the Group incurs in connection with borrowing of
funds.

Events after the Reporting date

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s position at the
reporting date (adjusting event) is reflected in the financial statements. Post-year-end events that
are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material to the financial statements.

Segment Reporting

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature
of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets. Refer to Note 6 for the detailed
disclosure on segment information.

Fiduciary Activities

Assets and income arising from fiduciary activities together with related undertakings to return
such assets to customers are excluded from the financial statements where the Parent Company
acts in a fiduciary capacity such as nominee, trustee or agent.

Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the shares are
sold at a premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to ‘Capital
paid-in excess of par value’ account. Direct costs incurred related to equity issuance, such as
underwriting, accounting and legal fees, printing costs and taxes are chargeable to ‘Capital paid-in
excess of par value’ account. If the ‘Capital paid-in excess of par value’ is not sufficient, the
excess is charged against the ‘Surplus’.

‘Surplus’ represents accumulated earnings (losses) of the Group less dividends declared.
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Equity Reserves
The reserves recorded in equity in the statement of financial position include:

‘Revaluation increment on land and building” which comprises changes in fair value of land and
building.

‘Remeasurement losses on retirement plan” which pertains to remeasurement comprising actuarial
losses on the present value of the retirement obligation, net of return on plan assets.

‘Accumulated translation adjustment” which is used to record exchange differences arising from
the translation of the FCDU accounts and foreign operations to Philippine peso.

‘Net unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments’ reserve which comprises changes in
fair value of AFS investments.

Future Changes in Accounting Policies

The Group will adopt the Standards and Interpretations enumerated below when these become
effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Group does not expect the adoption of these new and
amended PFRS and Philippine Interpretations to have significant impact on its financial
statements.

Effective 2014

Investment Entities (Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27)

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. They
provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an
investment entity under PFRS 10. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to
account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. It is not expected that this amendment
would be relevant to the Group since none of the entities in the Group would qualify to be an
investment entity under PFRS 10.

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amendments)

The amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and
also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as central
clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultancous. The
amendments affect presentation only and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or
performance. The amendments to PAS 32 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014.

PAS 36, Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(Amendments)

These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PFRS 13 on the disclosures required
under PAS 36. In addition, these amendments require disclosure of the recoverable amounts for
the assets or cash-generating units (CGUs) for which impairment loss has been recognized or
reversed during the period. These amendments are effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014 with earlier application permitted, provided PFRS 13 is also
applied. The amendments affect disclosures only and have no impact on the Group’s financial
position or performance.
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PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments)

These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. These amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies

IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be anticipated
before the specified minimum threshold is reached. IFRIC 21 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The Group does not expect that [FRIC 21 will have
material financial impact in future financial statements.

Effective 2015 onwards

PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments)

The amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans.
Contributions that are set out in the formal terms of the plan shall be accounted for as reductions
to current service costs if they are linked to service or as part of the remeasurements of the net
defined benefit asset or liability if they are not linked to service. Contributions that are
discretionary shall be accounted for as reductions of current service cost upon payment of these
contributions to the plans. The amendments to PAS 19 are to be applied retrospectively. The
Group does not expect that the Amendments to PAS 19 will have material financial impact on the
financial statements.

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

PFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as defined in PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. PFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes two measurement categories for financial assets: amortized
cost and fair value. The classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. PFRS 9 introduces a new requirement in respect of
financial liabilities designated under the fair value option to present fair value changes that are
attributable to the liability’s credit risk in OCI rather than in profit or loss. The guidance of

PAS 39 on classification and measurement of financial liabilities, impairment of financial assets
and hedge accounting continues to apply.

The mandatory effective date of PFRS 9 is not specified but will be determined when the
outstanding phases are finalized. PFRS 9 may be applied before the completion of the limited
amendments to the classification and measurement model and impairment methodology.

An evaluation was conducted to determine the impact of early adoption of PFRS and the accounts
affected are ‘Available-for-sale investments’ and ‘Loans and receivables’. As at
December 31, 2013, the Group opted not to early adopt PFRS 9.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreement for Construction of Real Estate

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The SEC and the
Financial Reporting Standards Council have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the
final Revenue standard is issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and an
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evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine
real estate industry is completed. Adoption of the interpretation when it becomes effective will not
have any impact on the financial statements of the Group.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:

PERS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition

The amendment revised the definitions of vesting condition and market condition and added the
definitions of performance condition and service condition to clarify various issues. This
amendment shall be prospectively applied to share-based payment transactions for which the grant
date is on or after July 1, 2014. This amendment does not apply to the Group as it has no share-
based payments.

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination

The amendment clarifies that a contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial
instrument should be classified as a financial liability or as equity in accordance with PAS 32.

Contingent consideration that is not classified as equity is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope of PFRS 9 (or PAS 39, if PFRS 9 is
not yet adopted). The amendment shall be prospectively applied to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after July 1, 2014. The Group shall consider this amendment
for future business combinations.

PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the
Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets

The amendments require entities to disclose the judgment made by management in aggregating
two or more operating segments. This disclosure should include a brief description of the
operating segments that have been aggregated in this way and the economic indicators that have
been assessed in determining that the aggregated operating segments share similar economic
characteristics. The amendments also clarify that an entity shall provide reconciliations of the
total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets if such amounts are regularly provided
to the chief operating decision maker. These amendments are applied retrospectively. The
amendments affect disclosures only and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or
performance.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Short-term Receivables and Payables
The amendment clarifies that short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates can
be held at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial.

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of
Accumulated Depreciation

The amendment clarifies that, upon revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment, the
carrying amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and the asset shall be treated
in one of the following ways:

a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of the
carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount of
the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.

b. The accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.
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The amendment shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual period.
The Group does not expect that the Improvements to PAS 16 will have material financial impact
on the financial statements.

PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel

The amendments clarify that an entity is a related party of the reporting entity if the said entity, or
any member of a group for which it is a part of, provides key management personnel services to
the reporting entity or to the parent company of the reporting entity. The amendments also clarify
that a reporting entity that obtains management personnel services from another entity (also
referred to as management entity) is not required to disclose the compensation paid or payable by
the management entity to its employees or directors. The reporting entity is required to disclose
the amounts incurred for the key management personnel services provided by a separate
management entity. The amendments are applied retrospectively. The amendments affect
disclosures only and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization

The amendments clarify that, upon revaluation of an intangible asset, the carrying amount of the
asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and the asset shall be treated in one of the
following ways:

a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of the
carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated amortization at the date of revaluation is
adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount of
the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.

b. The accumulated amortization is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

The amendments also clarify that the amount of the adjustment of the accumulated amortization
should form part of the increase or decrease in the carrying amount accounted for in accordance
with the Standard.

The amendments shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual period.
The amendments have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards - Meaning of ‘Effective
PFRSs’

The amendment clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a new
standard that is not yet mandatory, but that permits early application, provided either standard is
applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the entity’s first PFRS financial
statements. This amendment is not applicable to the Group as it is not a first-time adopter of
PFRS.

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements

The amendment clarifies that PFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of a joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is applied
prospectively.
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PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception

The amendment clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be applied to financial assets,
financial liabilities and other contracts. The amendment is applied prospectively. The amendment
has no significant impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

PAS 40, Investment Property

The amendment clarifies the interrelationship between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when classifying
property as investment property or owner-occupied property. The amendment stated that
judgment is needed when determining whether the acquisition of investment property is the
acquisition of an asset or a group of assets or a business combination within the scope of PFRS 3.
This judgment is based on the guidance of PFRS 3. This amendment is applied prospectively.
The amendment has no significant impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Group to make
judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Future events may occur
which will cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any
change in estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably
determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Judgments
(a) Leases

Operating lease
Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment properties and
certain motor vehicles and items of machinery.

The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the lease
agreements (i.e., the lease does not transfer ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of
the lease term, the lessee has no option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be
sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date the option is exercisable and the lease term is
not for the major part of the asset’s economic life), that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts for these leases as operating leases.

Group as lessee

The Group has entered into lease on premises it uses for its operations. The Group has
determined, based on the evaluation of the terms and conditions of the lease agreement (i.e.,
the lease does not transfer ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term and
lease term is not for the major part of the asset’s economic life), that the lessor retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties.
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Finance leases

The Group has entered into lease arrangements on real estate, various machineries and other
types of equipment. The Group has determined that it transfers all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts for these leases as finance lease.

(b) Fair value of financial instruments
Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models (see Note 5).
The input to these models is taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments
include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as correlation and volatility for
longer dated derivatives.

(¢) Financial assets not quoted in an active market
The Group classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted
or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in
an active market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly
available, and whether those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

(d) Embedded derivatives
Where a hybrid instrument is not classified as financial assets at FVPL, the Group evaluates
whether the embedded derivative should be bifurcated and accounted for separately.
This includes assessing whether the embedded derivative has a close economic relationship to
the host contract.

(e) Contingencies
The Group is currently involved in legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable cost for
the resolution of claims has been developed in consultation with the aid of the outside legal
counsels handling the Group’s defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of
potential results. Management does not believe that the outcome of these matters will affect
the results of operations. It is probable, however, that future results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating
to the proceedings (see Note 33).

(f) Functional currency
PAS 21 requires management to use its judgment to determine the entity’s functional currency
such that it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions,
events and conditions that are relevant to the entity.

In making this judgment, the Group considers the following:

a) the currency that mainly influences prices for financial instruments and services (this will
often be the currency in which prices for its financial instruments and services are
denominated and settled);

b) the currency in which funds from financing activities are generated; and

c) the currency in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained.
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The Group classified its unit-linked products as insurance contracts due to the significant
insurance risk at issue. All of the Group’s unit-linked products are classified and treated as
insurance contracts.

(h) Assessment of control over entities for consolidation
Where the Parent Company does not have majority of the voting interest over an investee, it
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has control over the
investee. This may include a contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee or rights arising from other contractual arrangements which gives power to the Parent
Company over the investee to affect its returns.

The Parent Company determined that it controls OHBVI through its combined voting rights of
70.56% which arises from its direct ownership of 27.78% and voting rights of 42.78%
assigned by certain stockholders of OHBVI to the Parent Company through a voting trust
agreement.

On the other hand, the Parent Company assessed that there are no rights arising from its
contractual arrangement with OPII that gives the Parent Company control over OPII.
Accordingly, OPII is no longer consolidated in the Group's financial statements.

(i) Assessment of significant influence over an associate
The Parent Company concluded that it only has significant influence over ACB as of
December 31, 2012 through its 39.41% voting interest in the latter. The Parent Company also
concluded that it has no de facto control over ACB as another stockholder holds the majority
interest in ACB.

Estimates

(a) Credit losses on loans and receivables
The Group reviews its impaired loans and receivables at each reporting date to assess whether
additional provision for credit losses should be recorded in the consolidated statement of
income. In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of required allowance.
Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may
differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance.

In addition to specific allowance against individually significant loans and receivables, the
Group also makes a collective impairment allowance against exposures which, although not
specifically identified as requiring a specific allowance, have a greater risk of default than
when originally granted. This collective allowance takes into consideration any deterioration
in the loan or investment rating from the time the account was granted or amended, and such
other factors as any deterioration in country risk, industry, and technological obsolescence, as
well as identified structural weaknesses or deterioration in cash flows and underlying property
prices, among others.

Refer to Notes 9 and 15 for the carrying values of loans and receivables and receivable from
SPVs, respectively.
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(b) Fair values of structured debt instruments and derivatives
The fair values of structured debt instruments and derivatives that are not quoted in active
markets are determined using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques are used to
determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the area that created them. All models are reviewed before they are used, and
models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices.

To the extent practicable, models use only observable data, however, areas such as credit risk
(both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require management to make
estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair value of
financial instruments. Refer to Notes 5 and 23 for information on the fair values of these
instruments.

(¢) Valuation of unquoted AFS equity investments
The Group’s investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost. Refer to
Note 8 for the carrying value of unquoted AFS securities.

(d) Impairment of AFS debt investments
The Group reviews its debt investments classified as AFS investments at each reporting date
to assess whether they are impaired. This requires similar judgment as applied to the
individual assessment of loans and receivables.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, no allowance for impairment losses was provided on AFS
debt investments. Refer to Note 8 for the carrying value of AFS debt investments.

(e) Impairment of AFS equity investments
The Group treats AFS equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of
impairment exists. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires
judgment. The Group treats ‘significant’ generally as 20.00% or more and ‘prolonged’ greater
than 12 months. In addition, the Group evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in
share price for quoted equities and the future cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted
equities.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, allowance for impairment losses on AFS equity
investments amounted to £928.4 million for the Group and Parent Company. Refer to Note 8
for the information on the carrying amounts of these investments.

(f) Recognition of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses and temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the losses
can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable income together with future tax planning strategies.

The Group and Parent Company’s estimates of future taxable income indicate that certain

temporary differences will be realized in the future. The amounts of recognized and
unrecognized deferred tax assets are disclosed in Note 29.
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Fair valuation in business combination

The Group determines the acquisition-date fair values of identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities assumed from the acquiree without quoted market price based on the following:

e for assets and liabilities that are short term in nature, carrying values approximate fair
values

e for financial assets and liabilities that are long term in nature, fair values are estimated
through the discounted cash flow methodogy, using the appropriate market rates (e.g.,
current lending rates)

e for nonfinancial assets such as property and equipment and investment properties, fair
values are determined based an appraisal valuation which follows sales comparison
approach and depreciated replacement cost approach

e for deferred tax assets and liabilities, fair values are based on the tax benefit arising from
future taxable income from the enlarged operations of the Parent Company

Refer to Note 13 for the details of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
assumed from business combination.

Present value of retirement obligation

The cost of defined benefit pension plan and other post employment benefits is determined
using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about
discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the
long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

The present value of retirement obligation and fair value of plan assets are disclosed in
Note 27.

Revaluation of property and equipment

The Group measures the land and buildings under property and equipment at revalued
amounts with changes in fair value being recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The Group engaged independent valuation specialists to determine
the fair value of land and buildings as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. Refer to Note 10 for
the carrying values of land and buildings.

Impairment of nonfinancial assets

Property and equipment, investment in subsidiaries and an associate, investment properties,
other properties acquired and intangibles

The Parent Company assesses impairment on its investments in subsidiaries and associate
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset
may not be recoverable. Among others, the factors that the Parent Company considers
important which could trigger an impairment review on its investments in subsidiaries and
associate include the following:

e deteriorating or poor financial condition;

e recurring net losses; and

e significant changes on the technological, market, economic, or legal environment which
had an adverse effect on the subsidiary or associate during the period or in the near future,
in which the subsidiary or associate operates.
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The Group also assesses impairment on its nonfinancial assets (e.g., investment properties,
property and equipment, other acquired properties and intangibles) and considers the
following impairment indicators:

significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results;

significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

significant negative industry or economic trends.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. Except for investment properties and land and building where
recoverable amount is determined based on fair value less cost to sell, the recoverable amount
of all other nonfinancial assets is determined based on the asset’s value in use computation
which considers the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
from the continued use of the asset or group of assets. The Group is required to make
estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the carrying amount of the asset or group
of assets being assessed.

The carrying values of the Group’s investments in subsidiaries and associate and other
nonfinancial assets are disclosed in Notes 10, 11, 12, 14 and 15.

(k) Impairment of goodwill

The Group conducts an annual review for any impairment in the value of goodwill. Goodwill
is written down for impairment where the net present value of the forecasted future cash flows
from the business is insufficient to support their carrying value. The Group estimates the
discount rate used for the computation of the net present value by reference to industry cost of
capital. Future cash flows from the business are estimated based on the theoretical annual
income of the relevant CGUs. Average growth rate is derived from the long-term Philippine
growth rate. The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a three-year period. Key assumptions in value-in-use calculation of
CGUs are most sensitive to discount rates and growth rates used to project cash flows.

The carrying values of the Group’s goodwill and key assumptions used in determining
value-in-use are disclosed in Notes 13 and 14.

() Aggregate reserves for life insurance

116

In determining the aggregate reserves for life policies, estimates are made as to the expected
number of deaths, illness or injury for each of the years in which PNB LII is exposed to risk.
These estimates are based on standard mortality and morbidity tables as required by the
Insurance Code (IC or the Code). The estimated number of deaths, illness or injury
determines the value of possible future benefits to be paid out, which will be factored into
ensuring sufficient cover by reserves, which in return is monitored against current and future
premiums. Estimates are also made as to future investment income arising from the assets
backing life insurance contracts. These estimates are based on current market returns, as well
as expectations about future economic and financial developments.
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In accordance with the provision of the Code, estimates for future deaths, illness or injury and
investment returns are determined at the inception of the contract and are used to calculate the
liability over the term of the contract. The interest rate used to discount future liabilities does
not exceed 6.00% as required by the Code. Likewise, no lapse, surrender and expense
assumptions are factored in the computation of the liability.

(m) Valuation of insurance contracts
Estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at reporting
date and for the expected ultimate cost of IBNR at the reporting date. It can take a significant
period of time before the ultimate claim costs can be established with certainty.
Nonlife insurance contract liabilities are not discounted for the time value of money.
The main assumption underlying the estimation of the claims provision is that a company’s
past claims development experience can be used to project future claims development and
hence ultimate claims costs. Historical claims development is mainly analyzed by accident
years as well as by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are usually
separately addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or
separately projected in order to reflect their future development.

(n) Estimated useful lives of property and equipment, investment properties, intangibles and other

properties acquired
The Group estimates the useful lives of its property and equipment, investment properties,
intangibles, and other properties acquired.

This estimate is reviewed periodically to ensure that the period of depreciation and
amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from the items of
property and equipment, investment properties, intangibles, and other properties acquired.

Refer to Note 2 for the estimated useful lives of property and equipment, investment
properties, intangibles, and other properties acquired.

Refer to Notes 10, 12, 14 and 15 for the carrying values of property and equipment,
investment properties, intangibles, and other properties acquired, respectively.

4. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Introduction

The Group’s activities are principally related to the development, delivery, servicing and use of
financial instruments. Risk is inherent in these activities but it is managed through a process of
ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls.
This process of risk management is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability.

The Group monitors its processes associated with the following overall risk categories:

Credit Risk

Market Risk

Liquidity Risk

Operational Risk

Information Security and Technology Risk
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Further, the Group is also cognizant of the need to address various other risks through the primary
divisions presented above. The following are also taken into consideration as part of the overall
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework:

Counterparty Risk

Business Risk

Strategic Risk

Compliance Risk

Legal Risk

Reputational Risk

Concentration Risk

Country Risk

Risks arising from the Group’s shareholdings and equity interests

Managing the level of these risks as provided for by the Parent Company’s ERM framework is
critical to its continuing profitability. The Risk Oversight Committee (ROC) of the Parent
Company’s BOD determines the risk policy and approves the principles of risk management,
establishment of limits for all relevant risks, and the risk control procedures. The ROC of the
Parent Company is also responsible for the risk management of the Group.

The RMG provides the legwork for the ROC in its role of formulating the risk management
strategy, the management of regulatory capital, the development and maintenance of the internal
risk management framework, and the definition of the governing risk management principles.
The mandate of the RMG involves:

e Implementing the risk management framework of identifying, measuring, controlling and
monitoring the various risk taking activities of the Group, inherent in all financial institutions;

e Providing services to the risk-taking units and personnel in the implementation of risk
mitigation strategies; and

e Establishing recommended limits based on the results of its analysis of exposures.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the non-recovery of credit exposures (on-and-off balance sheet exposures).
Managing credit risk also involves monitoring of migration risk, concentration risk, country risk
and settlement risk. The Group manages its credit risk at various levels (i.e., strategic level,
portfolio level down to individual transaction).

The credit risk management of the entire loan portfolio is under the direct oversight of the ROC
and Executive Committee. Credit risk assessment of individual borrower is performed by the
business sector and remedial sector. Risk management is embedded in the entire credit process,
i.e., from credit origination to remedial management (if needed).

Among the tools used by the Parent Company in identifying, assessing and managing credit risk
include:

e Documented credit policies and procedures: sound credit granting process, risk asset
acceptance criteria, target market and approving authorities;

System for administration and monitoring of exposure;

Pre-approval review of loan proposals;

Post approval review of implemented loans;

Work out system for managing problem credits;

Regular review of the sufficiency of valuation reserves;
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e Monitoring of the adequacy of capital for credit risk via the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
report;

Monitoring of breaches in regulatory and internal limits;

Credit Risk Management Dashboard;

Diversification;

Internal Risk Rating System for corporate accounts;

Credit Scoring for retail accounts; and

Active loan portfolio management undertaken to determine the quality of the loan portfolio
and identify the following:

portfolio growth

movement of loan portfolio (cash releases and cash collection for the month)

loss rate

recovery rate

trend of nonperforming loans (NPLs)

concentration risk (per classified account, per industry, clean exposure, large exposure,
contingent exposure, currency, security, facility, demographic, etc)

mo e o

The Parent Company has moved one step further by collecting data on risk rating of loan
borrowers with an asset size of £15.0 million and above as initial requirement in the Parent
Company’s model for internal Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD).

Credit-related commitments
The exposures represent guarantees, standby letters of credit (LCs) issued by the Parent Company
and documentary/commercial LCs which are written undertakings by the Parent Company.

To mitigate this risk the Parent Company requires hard collaterals, as discussed under Collateral
and other credit enhancement, for standby LCs lines while commercial LCs are collateralized by
the underlying shipments of goods to which they relate.

Derivative financial instruments
Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with
positive fair values, as recorded in the statement of financial position.

Collateral and other credit enhancement

As a general rule, character is the single most important consideration in granting loans. However,
collaterals are requested to mitigate risk. The loan value and type of collateral required depend on
the assessment of the credit risk of the borrower or counterparty. The Group follows guidelines on
the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters.

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

e For corporate accounts - cash, guarantees, securities, physical collaterals (e.g., real estate,
chattels, inventory, etc.); as a general rule, commercial, industrial and residential lots are
preferred

e For retail lending - mortgages on residential properties and vehicles financed

e For securities lending and reverse repurchase transactions - cash or securities

The disposal of the foreclosed properties is handled by the Asset Management Sector which
adheres to the general policy of disposing assets at the highest possible market value.
Management regularly monitors the market value of the collateral and requests additional
collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement. The existing market value of the
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collateral is considered during the review of the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses.
Generally, collateral is not held over loans and advances to banks except for reverse repurchase
agreements. The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral held over loans and
advances to counterparty banks and BSP in the absence of default by the owner of the collateral.

The table below shows the maximum exposure for loans and receivable to credit risk (amounts in
millions):

Consolidated

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Maximum Exposure Maximum Exposure
After After
Financial Financial
Effect of Effect of
Collateral or Collateral or
Before Credit Before Credit
Collateral Enhancement Collateral Enhancement

Securities Held Under Agreements to Resell
(Note 34) P P P18,300 P
Loans and receivables:
Receivable from customers*:

Business loans 187,155 132,026 83,053 41,146
Consumers 25,917 7,068 11,197 4,794

GOCCs and National Government Agencies
(NGAs) 25,709 17,508 24,411 27,753
LGUs 8,511 7,275 7,157 2,337
Fringe benefits 585 159 644 168
Unquoted debt securities 7,296 4,746 3,859 1,662
Other receivable 18,698 785 13,581 7,492
P273,871 P169,567 P162,202 P85,352

The Group follows the BOD approved policy on the generic classification of loans based on the type of borrowers and the
purpose of the loan
*Receivables from customers exclude residual value of the leased asset.

Parent Company

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Maximum Exposure Maximum Exposure
After After
Financial Financial
Effect of Effect of
Collateral or Collateral or
Before Credit Before Credit
Collateral Enhancement Collateral Enhancement

Securities Held Under Agreements to Resell
(Note 34) P P 218,300 P
Loans and receivables:
Receivable from customers:

Business loans 177,551 127,762 80,968 55,877

GOCCs and National Government Agencies
(NGAs) 25,709 17,508 24,411 17,179
Consumers 23,746 6,872 11,102 4,751
LGUs 8,511 7,275 7,158 6,288
Fringe benefits 571 149 630 165
Unquoted debt securities 6,913 4,746 3,859 1,118
Other receivable 12,435 785 11,396 8,879
P255,436 165,097 P157,824 P94,257

The Group follows the BOD approved policy on the generic classification of loans based on the type of borrowers and the
purpose of the loan
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For the Group, fair values of collateral held for securities held under agreements to resell and
loans and receivables amounted to nil and £267.8 billion, respectively, as of December 31, 2013
and £18.9 billion and £234.7 billion, respectively, as of December 31, 2012.

The maximum credit risk, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral and netting
agreements, is limited to the amounts on the statement of financial position plus commitments to
customers such as unused commercial letters of credit, outstanding guarantees and others as
disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements.

Excessive risk concentration

Credit risk concentrations can arise whenever a significant number of borrowers have similar
characteristics. The Parent Company analyzes the credit risk concentration to an individual
borrower, related group of accounts, industry, geographic, internal rating buckets, currency, term
and security. For risk concentration monitoring purposes, the financial assets are broadly
categorized into (1) loans and receivables and (2) trading and financial investment securities.

To mitigate risk concentration, the Parent Company constantly checks for breaches in regulatory
and internal limits. Clear escalation process and override procedures are in place, whereby any

excess in limits are covered by appropriate approving authority to regularize and monitor breaches

in limits.

a. Limit per Client or Counterparty
For loans and receivables, the Parent Company sets an internal limit for group exposures
which is equivalent to 100.00% of the single borrower’s limit (SBL) for loan accounts with
credit risk rating (CRR) 1 to CRR 5 or 50.00% of SBL if rated below CRR 5.

For trading and investment securities, the Group limits investments to government issues and

securities issued by entities with high-quality investment ratings.

b. Geographic Concentration

The table below shows the credit risk exposures, before taking into account any collateral held
or other credit enhancements, categorized by geographic location (in millions):

Consolidated Parent Company
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Philippines P523,518 P275,640 P502,718 P269,568
Asia (excluding the Philippines) 32,197 6,616 7,464 5,712
USA and Canada 6,810 4,276 3,450 3,013
Other European Union Countries 5,920 3,706 5,783 3,676
United Kingdom 1,439 5,355 150 5,113
Middle East 308 2 308 2
£570,192 P295,595 P519,873 P287,084
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Concentration by Industry

The tables below show the industry sector analysis of the Group’s and Parent Company’s
financial assets at amounts before taking into account the fair value of the loan collateral held
or other credit enhancements (amounts in millions).

Consolidated Parent Company
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Loans and Receivables
Receivable from customers*:
Primary target industry:
Wholesale and retail P42,597 £20,682 £40,593 £20,378
Electricity, gas and water 38,427 18,104 38,380 18,104
Manufacturing 30,629 11,637 27,615 10,984
Public administration and
defense 24,090 22,623 23,734 22,595
Financial intermediaries 21,327 10,172 21,208 10,158
Transport, storage and
communication 17,554 16,335 16,540 16,034
Agriculture, hunting and
forestry 1,860 2,774 1,768 2,580
Secondary target industry:
Real estate, renting and
business activities 34,098 9,568 30,149 9,859
Construction 6,917 2,345 6,391 2,145
Others** 30,378 12,222 29,710 11,432
Unquoted debt securities:
Government 7,150 3,699 6,801 3,699
Financial intermediaries - - - -
Manufacturing 146 160 112 160
7,296 3,859 6,913 3,859
Other receivables 18,698 13,581 12,435 11,396
273,871 143,902 255,436 139,524
Trading and Investment
Securities
Government 60,859 57,865 58,332 56,159
Financial intermediaries 14,754 7,096 6,233 6,807
Others 9,088 2,351 6,132 2,175
Real estate, renting and business
activities 5,185 1,225 4,697 1,118
Electricity, gas and water 1,542 2,461 1,030 2,451
Manufacturing 585 22 141 19
92,013 71,020 76,565 68,729
(Forward)
Other Financial Assets***
Financial intermediaries P176,456 271,017 £160,630 £69,624
Others 27,852 9,656 27,242 9,207
204,308 80,673 187,872 78,831
£570,192 P295,595 P519,873 P287,084

*Receivables from customers exclude residual value of the leased asset.

**QOthers include the following sectors - Other community, social and personal services, private household, hotel and restaurant,
education, mining and quarrying, and health and social work.

***QOther financial assets include the following financial assets: ‘Due from BSP’, ‘Due from other banks’, ‘Interbank loans receivable’,
‘Securities held under agreements to resell’, ‘Receivable from SPV’, ‘Miscellaneous COCI” and ‘Commitments’.

The internal limit of the Parent Company based on the Philippine Standard Industry Classification
(PSIC) sub-industry is 12.00% for priority industry, 8.00% for regular industry and 30.00% for
power industry, versus total loan portfolio.
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Credit quality per class of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets is assessed and managed using external and internal ratings.
For receivable from customers classified as business loans, the credit quality is generally
monitored using the 14-grade Credit Risk Rating (CRR) System which is integrated in the credit
process particularly in loan pricing and allocation of valuation reserves. The model on risk ratings
is assessed and updated regularly.

Validation of the individual internal risk rating is conducted by the Credit Management Division
to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across the credit portfolio. The rating system has
two parts, namely, the borrower’s rating and the facility rating. It is supported by a variety of
financial analytics, combined with an assessment of management and market information such as
industry outlook and market competition to provide the main inputs for the measurement of credit
or counterparty risk.

The CRRs of the Parent Company’s Receivables from customers (applied to loans with asset size
of £15.0 million and above) are defined below:

CRR 1 - Excellent

Loans receivables rated as excellent include borrowers which are significant in size, with long and
successful history of operations, an industry leader, with ready access to all equity and debt
markets and have proven its strong debt service capacity.

CRR 2 - Super Prime
Loans receivables rated as super prime include borrowers whose ability to service all debt and
meet financial obligations remains unquestioned.

CRR 3 - Prime
Under normal economic conditions, borrowers in this rating have good access to public market to
raise funds and face no major uncertainties which could impair repayment.

CRR 4 - Very Good

Loans receivables rated as very good include borrowers whose ability to service all debts and meet
financial obligations remain unquestioned, but current adverse economic conditions or changing
circumstances have minimal impact on payment of obligations.

CRR 5 - Good

Loans receivables rated as good include borrowers with good operating history and solid
management, but payment capacity could be vulnerable to adverse business, financial or economic
conditions.

CRR 6 - Satisfactory
These are loans receivables to borrowers whose ability to service all debt and meet financial
obligations remains unquestioned, but with somewhat lesser capacity than in CRR 5 accounts.

CRR 7 - Average
These are loans receivables to borrowers having ability to repay the loan in the normal course of
business activity, although may not be strong enough to sustain a major setback.

CRR 8 - Fair

These are loans receivables to borrowers possessing the characteristics of borrowers rated as
CRR7 with slightly lesser quality in financial strength, earnings, performance and/or outlook.
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CRR 9 - Marginal

These are performing loans receivables from borrowers not qualified as CRRs 1-8. The borrower
is able to withstand normal business cycles, although any prolonged unfavorable economic and/or
market period would create an immediate deterioration beyond acceptable levels.

CRR 10 - Watchlist

This rating includes borrower where the credit exposure is not at risk of loss at the moment but the
performance of the borrower has weakened and, unless present trends are reversed, could
eventually lead to losses.

CRR 11 - Special Mention

These are loans that have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention. These
potential weaknesses, if left uncorrected, may affect the repayment of the loan and thus increase
credit risk to the Parent Company.

CRR 12 - Substandard
These are loans or portions thereof which appear to involve a substantial and unreasonable degree
of risk to the Parent Company because of unfavorable record or unsatisfactory characteristics.

CRR 13 - Doubtful

These are loans or portions thereof which have the weaknesses inherent in those classified as

CRR 12 with the added characteristics that existing facts, conditions and values make collection or
liquidation in full highly improbable and in which substantial loss is probable.

CRR 14 - Loss
These are loans or portions thereof which are considered uncollectible or worthless.

The Parent Company is using the Credit Scoring for evaluating borrowers with assets size below
P£15.0 million. Credit scoring details the financial capability of the borrower to pay for any future
obligation.

GOCCs and LGUs are rated using the “means and purpose” test whereby borrowers have to pass
the two major parameters, namely:

e “Means” test - the borrower must have resources or revenues of its own sufficient to service
its debt obligations.

e “Purpose” test - the loan must be obtained for a purpose consistent with the borrower’s general
business.

LGU loans are backed-up by assignment of Internal Revenue Allotment. Consumer loans are
covered by mortgages in residential properties and vehicles financed and guarantees from Home
Guaranty Corporation. Fringe benefit loans are repaid through automatic salary deductions and
exposure is secured by mortgage on house or vehicles financed.
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The table below shows the Group’s and Parent Company’s receivable from customers, gross of
allowance for credit losses and unearned and other deferred income, for each CRR as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012 (in millions) but net of residual values of leased assets.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, residual value of leased assets of the Group amounted to
P404.8 million and £329.2 million, respectively, while it is nil for the Parent Company.

Consolidated
December 31, 2013
Neither Past Due Past Due or
nor Individually Individually
Impaired Impaired Total
Rated Receivable from Customers
1 - Excellent P2,632 B- P2,632
2 - Super Prime 57,314 - 57,314
3 - Prime 33,358 14 33,372
4 - Very Good 4,364 38 4,402
5 - Good 19,464 7 19,471
6 - Satisfactory 24,373 139 24,512
7 - Average 29,590 213 29,803
8 - Fair 8,791 23 8,814
9 - Marginal 3,831 8 3,839
10 - Watchlist 12,907 16 12,923
11 - Special Mention 2,662 330 2,992
12 - Substandard 1,468 1,314 2,782
13 - Doubtful 5 2,429 2,434
14 - Loss - 2,253 2,253
200,759 6,784 207,543
Unrated Receivable from Customers
Consumers 18,202 1,972 20,174
Business Loans 11,897 506 12,403
LGUs 7,925 688 8,613
GOCCs and NGAs 2,196 1,786 3,982
Fringe Benefits 511 105 616
40,731 5,057 45,788
£241,490 P11,841 P253,331
Consolidated
December 31, 2012
Neither Past Due Past Due or
nor Individually Individually
Impaired Impaired Total
Rated Receivable from Customers
1 - Excellent £10,948 P £10,948
2 - Super Prime 33,489 - 33,489
3 - Prime 11,261 - 11,261
4 - Very Good 6,418 - 6,418
5 - Good 16,464 2 16,466
6 - Satisfactory 4,897 - 4,897
7 - Average 6,728 19 6,747
8 - Fair 2,646 1 2,647
9 - Marginal 1,820 5 1,825
10 - Watchlist 4,353 6 4,359
11 - Special Mention 2,321 9 2,330
12 - Substandard 271 764 1,035
13 - Doubtful - 2,449 2,449
14 - Loss — 2,665 2,665
101,616 5,920 107,536
(Forward)
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Consolidated
December 31, 2012
Neither Past Due Past Due or
nor Individually Individually
Impaired Impaired Total
Unrated Receivable from Customers
Consumers P£10,687 R770 P11,457
Business Loans 2,562 237 2,799
LGUs 6,868 419 7,287
GOCCs and NGAs 1,391 1,651 3,042
Fringe Benefits 622 37 659
22,130 3,114 25,244
P123,746 £9,034 £132,780
Parent Company
December 31, 2013
Neither Past Due Past Due or
nor Individually Individually
Impaired Impaired Total
Rated Receivable from Customers
1 - Excellent £2,632 P- £2,632
2 - Super Prime 57,314 - 57,314
3 - Prime 33,292 - 33,292
4 - Very Good 4,335 - 4,335
5 - Good 19,447 5 19,452
6 - Satisfactory 18,097 69 18,166
7 - Average 26,213 211 26,424
8 - Fair 8,776 23 8,799
9 - Marginal 3,827 6 3,833
10 - Watchlist 12,815 16 12,831
11 - Special Mention 2,662 330 2,992
12 - Substandard 1,468 1,182 2,650
13 - Doubtful 5 2,429 2,434
14 - Loss - 2,170 2,170
190,883 6,441 197,324
Unrated Receivable from Customers
Consumers 18,108 1,953 20,061
Business Loans 9,944 506 10,450
LGUs 7,925 688 8,613
GOCCs and NGAs 2,196 1,786 3,982
Fringe Benefits 497 105 602
38,670 5,038 43,708
£229,553 P11,479 £241,032
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December 31, 2012

Neither Past Due Past Due or
nor Individually Individually
Impaired Impaired Total
Rated Receivable from Customers
1 - Excellent £10,948 P £10,948
2 - Super Prime 33,489 - 33,489
3 - Prime 11,261 - 11,261
4 - Very Good 6,418 - 6,418
5 - Good 16,464 2 16,466
6 - Satisfactory 5,461 - 5,461
7 - Average 4,250 19 4,269
8 - Fair 2,646 1 2,647
9 - Marginal 1,820 5 1,825
10 - Watchlist 4,353 6 4,359
11 - Special Mention 2,321 9 2,330
12 - Substandard 271 578 849
13 - Doubtful - 2,449 2,449
14 - Loss — 2,658 2,658
99,702 5,727 105,429
Unrated Receivable from Customers

Consumers 10,595 752 11,347
Business Loans 2,230 237 2,467
LGUs 6,868 419 7,287
GOCCs and NGAs 1,391 1,651 3,042
Fringe Benefits 608 37 645
21,692 3,096 24,788

P121,394 £8,823 £130,217

Under PFRS 7, a financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment
when contractually due. The table below shows the aging analysis of past due but not impaired

loans receivables per class (in millions).

Consolidated
December 31,2013
Less than More than
30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 days 180 days Total
Business loans P151 P165 P565 P419 £1,300
Consumers 148 142 105 125 520
LGUs 341 69 - 11 421
GOCCs and NGAs - - 44 _ 44
Fringe benefits 1 1 1 6 9
Total P641 P377 P715 P561 £2,294
Consolidated
December 31, 2012
Less than More than
30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 days 180 days Total
Business loans 26 239 £207 £252 £504
Consumers 53 57 21 191 322
LGUs 133 - - - 133
GOCCs and NGAs - — — _ _
Fringe benefits 1 1 = 11 13
Total £193 £97 £228 P454 £972
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Parent Company

December 31,2013
Less than More than
30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 days 180 days Total
Business loans P151 P165 P404 P419 £1,139
Consumers 145 142 104 125 516
LGUs 341 69 - 11 421
GOCCs and NGAs - - 44 - 44
Fringe benefits 1 1 1 6 9
Total P638 P377 P553 P561 £2,129

Parent Company
December 31,2012

Less than More than

30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 days 180 days Total
Business loans P26 239 R14 £252 B311
Consumers 51 57 21 191 320
LGUs 133 - - - 133
GOCCs and NGAs - - - - -
Fringe benefits 1 1 — 11 13
Total 2191 297 P35 P454 2777

Below are the financial assets of the Group and the Parent Company, excluding receivable from
customers, which are monitored using external ratings (in millions).

Consolidated
December 31,2013
Rated
Baal
Aaa to Aa3 Al to A3 and below Subtotal Unrated® Total
Due from BSP " P- P- P- P- P153,169 P153,169
Due from other banks 1,580 4,131 4,836 10,547 4,335 14,882
Interbank loans receivables 399 4,490 3,285 8,174 231 8,405
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:
Government securities - - 2,835 2,835 236 3,071
Derivative assets” 7 30 20 57 201 258
Equity securities - - - - 250 250
Private debt securities - - 8 8 261 269
Designated at FVPL:
Segregated fund assets - 7,861 - 7,861 - 7,861
Loans and receivables:
Unquoted debt securities® - - 50 50 7,246 7,296
Others” 1 - 196 197 18,501 18,698
AFS investments”’:
Government securities 1,510 227 57,320 59,057 191 59,248
Other debt securities 898 1,044 5,098 7,040 12,177 19,217
Quoted equity securities 172 172 1,506 1,678
Unquoted equity securities - - - - 162 162
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Consolidated
December 31,2012
Rated
Baal
Aaa to Aa3 Al to A3 and below Subtotal Unrated®’ Total
Due from BSP P P P P P37,175 P37,175
Due from other banks 89 1,316 973 3,188 855 4,043
Interbank loans receivables 2,143 6,730 1,847 10,720 779 11,499
Securities held under agreements to
resell” - - - - 18,300 18,300
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:
Government securities - - 907 907 1,064 1,971
Derivative assets” 2 274 114 390 65 455
Equity securities - - - - 250 250
Private debt securities - - - - 99 99
Designated at FVPL:
Private debt securities - - - - 1,248 1,248
Loans and receivables:
Ungquoted debt securities® - - 31 31 3,828 3,859
Others” - - - - 13,581 13,581
AFS investments’”:
Government securities 748 — 44,771 45,519 10,039 55,558
Other debt securities 1,434 - 3,255 4,689 6,231 10,920
Quoted equity securities 13 - 134 147 293 440
Unquoted equity securities - - - - 79 79

of the Parent Company.
the BSP through a memorandum.

valuation of freestanding derivatives (see Note 23).

‘Due from BSP’ is composed of interest-earning short-term placements with the BSP and a demand deposit account to support the regular operations
Securities held under agreements to resell represent overnight lending to the BSP collateralized by securities. The interest rate applicable is fixed by
Derivative assets represent the value of credit derivatives embedded in host contracts issued by financial intermediaries and the mark-to-market

Unquoted debt securities represent investments in bonds and notes issued by financial intermediaries, government and private entities that are not

quoted in the market, net of allowances amounting to 3,958.7 million and £3,958.9 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 9).

receivables, net of allowances amounting to 3,865.5 million and £3,865.5 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 9).

AFS investments is presented net of allowances (see Note 8).

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, financial assets that are unrated are neither past due nor impaired.

Parent Company

Loans and receivables - Others is composed of Accrued interest receivable, Accounts receivable, Sales contracts receivable and other miscellaneous

December 31,2013
Rated
Baal
Aaa to Aa3 Al to A3 and below Subtotal Unrated® Total
Due from BSP P- P- P- P- £146,079 £146,079
Due from other banks 827 2,657 1,094 4,578 1,568 6,146
Interbank loans receivables 400 4,489 3,285 8,174 231 8,405
Securities held under agreements to
resell” - - - - - -
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:
Government securities - - 2,835 2,835 236 3,071
Derivative assets” 7 30 20 57 201 258
Equity securities - - - - 248 248
Private debt securities - 8 8 261 269
Designated at FVPL:
Private debt securities - - - - - -
Loans and receivables:
Ungquoted debt securities” - - 50 50 6,863 6,913
Others” - - - - 12,435 12,435
AFS investments”:
Government securities 1,079 5 53,900 54,984 191 55,175
Other debt securities 771 830 5,027 6,628 9,998 16,626
Quoted equity securities = = = = 756 756
Unquoted equity securities = = = = 162 162
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Parent Company
December 31,2012

Rated
Baal
Aaa to Aa3 Al to A3 and below Subtotal Unrated” Total
Due from BSP ' P P P P £36,531 £36,531
Due from other banks 774 1,316 349 2,439 855 3,294
Interbank loans receivables 2,143 6,730 1,847 10,720 779 11,499
Securities held under agreements to
resell” - - - - 18,300 18,300
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:
Government securities - - 907 907 1,064 1,971
Derivative assets” 2 274 114 390 65 455
Equity securities - - - - 192 192
Private debt securities - - - - 99 99
Designated at FVPL:
Private debt securities - - - - 1,248 1,248
Loans and receivables:
Unquoted debt securities” - - 31 31 3,828 3,859
Others” - - - - 11,396 11,396
AFS investments”:
Government securities 219 - 43,798 44,017 9,806 53,823
Other debt securities 1,087 - 3,245 4332 6,220 10,552
Quoted equity securities - - - - 310 310
Unquoted equity securities - - - - 79 79

‘Due from BSP’ is composed of interest-earning short-term placements with the BSP and a demand deposit account to support the regular operations
of the Parent Company.

Securities held under agreements to resell represent overnight lending to the BSP collateralized by securities. The interest rate applicable is fixed by
the BSP through a memorandum.

Derivative assets represent the value of credit derivatives embedded in host contracts issued by financial intermediaries and the mark-to-market
valuation of freestanding derivatives (see Note 23).

Unquoted debt securities represent investments in bonds and notes issued by financial intermediaries, government and private entities that are not
quoted in the market, net of allowances amounting to £3,958.7 million and £3,958.9 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 9).

Loans and receivables - Others is composed of Accrued interest receivable, Accounts receivable, Sales contracts receivable and other miscellaneous
receivables, net of allowances amounting to £3,594.4 million and £3,191.8 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 9).

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, financial assets that are unrated are neither past due nor impaired.

AFS investments is presented net of allowances (see Note 8).

4

5/

7

Impairment assessment

The Group recognizes impairment or credit losses based on the results of specific (individual) and
collective assessment of its credit exposures. A possible impairment has taken place when there
are presence of known difficulties in the payment of obligation by counterparties, a significant
credit rating downgrade takes place, infringement of the original terms of the contract has
happened, or when there is an inability to pay principal or interest overdue beyond a certain
threshold (e.g., 90 days). These and other factors, either singly or in tandem with other factors,
constitute observable events and/or data that meet the definition of an objective evidence of
impairment.

The two methodologies applied by the Group in assessing and measuring impairment or credit
losses include:

a. Specific (individual) assessment
The Group assesses each individually significant credit exposure or advances for any objective
evidence of impairment.

Among the items and factors considered by the Group when assessing and measuring specific
impairment/credit allowances are:

the going concern of the borrower’s business;

the ability of the borrower to repay its obligations during financial crises;
the projected receipts or expected cash flows;

the availability of other sources of financial support;
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e the existing realizable value of collateral; and
e the timing of the expected cash flows.

The impairment or credit allowances, if any, are evaluated every quarter or as the need arises
in view of favorable or unfavorable developments.

b. Collective assessment
Loans and advances that are not individually significant (e.g., credit cards, housing loans, car
loans, development incentives loans, fringe benefit loans) and individually significant loans
and advances where there is no apparent evidence of individual impairment are collectively
assessed for impairment. A particular portfolio is reviewed every quarter to determine its
corresponding appropriate allowances.

Impairment losses are estimated by taking into consideration the following information:

historical losses of the portfolio;

current adverse economic conditions that have direct impact on the portfolio;
losses which are likely to occur but has not yet occurred; and

expected receipts and recoveries once impaired.

See Note 16 for more detailed information on the allowance for credit losses on loans and
receivables and other financial assets.

Liquidity Risk and Funding Management

Liquidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising
from the Parent Company’s inability to meet its obligations when they come due without incurring
unacceptable losses or costs.

The Parent Company’s liquidity management involves maintaining funding capacity to
accommodate fluctuations in asset and liability levels due to changes in the Parent Company’s
business operations or unanticipated events created by customer behavior or capital market
conditions. The Parent Company seeks to ensure liquidity through a combination of active
management of liabilities, a liquid asset portfolio composed substantially of deposits in primary
and secondary reserves, and the securing of money market lines and the maintenance of
repurchase facilities to address any unexpected liquidity situations.

Liquidity risk is monitored and controlled primarily by a gap analysis of maturities of relevant
assets and liabilities reflected in the maximum cumulative outflow (MCO) report, as well as an
analysis of available liquid assets. The MCO focuses on a 12-month period wherein the 12-month
cumulative outflow is compared to the acceptable MCO limit set by the BOD. Furthermore, an
internal liquidity ratio has been set to determine sufficiency of liquid assets over deposit liabilities.

Liquidity is monitored by the Parent Company on a daily basis through the Treasury Group.

Likewise, the RMG monitors the static liquidity via the MCO under normal and stressed
scenarios.
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The table below shows the financial assets and financial liabilities’ liquidity information which
includes coupon cash flows categorized based on the expected date on which the asset will be
realized and the liability will be settled. For other assets, the analysis into maturity grouping is
based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date
or if earlier, the expected date the assets will be realized (in millions).

Consolidated
December 31, 2013
Up to 1to 3to 6 to Beyond
1 month 3 months 6 months 12 months 1 year Total
Financial Assets
COClI P11,805 - - B B P11,805
Due from BSP and other banks 165,656 1,853 5,478 208 215 173,410
Interbank loans receivable 8,378 150 - - - 8,528
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:
Government securities 36 16 36 78 4,418 4,584
Equity securities 250 - - - - 250
Private debt securities — 2 4 7 316 329
Derivative assets
Pay (4,250) (850) (1,141) (216) 31 (6,488)
Receive 4,273 859 1,168 222 31 6,553
23 9 27 6 — 65
Financial assets designated at FVPL — — — — 7,862 7,862
Loans receivables - gross 78,052 43,096 16,442 15,044 235,612 388,246
Unquoted debt securities - gross 90 2,823 11 94 8,921 11,939
Other receivables - gross 2,431 3,524 2,127 482 14,323 22,887
AFS investments 1,152 649 946 3,729 103,094 109,570
Total financial assets P267,873 P52,122 £25,071 £19,648 P374,761 £739,475
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities:
Demand P127,461 B B B B P127,461
Savings 235,918 24,423 8,593 4,839 13,142 286,915
Time 13,290 13,360 4,439 6,939 20,387 58,415
Financial liability at FVPL 50 - - - 7,862 7,912
Derivative liabilities:
Pay 9,771 1,995 694 - 1,391 13,851
Receive (9,655) (1,979) (676) - (1,391) (13,701)
116 16 18 - - 150
Bills and acceptances payable 6,231 2,360 1,077 438 3,083 13,189
Subordinated debt - 147 147 294 13,039 13,627
Accrued interest payable and other
liabilities 12,890 4,557 - 134 2,183 19,764
Total financial liabilities £395,956 P44,863 P14,274 P12,644 £59,696 £527,433
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Consolidated
December 31, 2012
Up to 1 to 3 to 6 to Beyond
1 month 3 months 6 months 12 months 1 year Total

Financial Assets
COCI £5,599 P- P- P- P- 5,599
Due from BSP and other banks 39,692 435 - 1,101 - 41,228
Interbank loans receivable 11,129 251 119 - - 11,499
Securities held under agreements to

resell 18,304 - - - 18,304
Financial assets at FVPL:

Held-for-trading:

Government securities 1,978 14 19 36 677 2,724

Equity securities 251 - - - 251

Private debt securities 100 1 1 3 29 134

Derivative assets

Pay (6,056) (716) (22) (67) (52) (6,913)
Receive 6,079 788 24 153 222 7,266
23 72 2 86 170 353
Designated at FVPL:

Private debt securities 4 8 1,255 - - 1,267
Loans receivables — gross 24,188 13,517 5,862 2,125 125,258 170,950
Unquoted debt securities - gross 3,962 44 9 17 3,950 7,982
Other receivables — gross 18,934 - - - - 18,934
AFS investments 557 2,643 2,773 1,487 100,702 108,162
Total financial assets P124,721 P16,985 210,040 P4,855 £230,786 £387,387
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities:

Demand P28,164 P P P P P28,164

Savings 151,002 17,838 7,979 4,892 12,636 194,347

Time 7,524 2,821 1,481 1,784 6,325 19,935
Financial liabilities at FVPL:

Financial liability designated at

FVPL 43 85 6,311 — — 6,439

Derivative liabilities:

Pay 9,798 1,162 476 608 213 12,257
Receive (9,677) (1,123) (452) (518) (52) (11,822)
121 39 24 90 161 435
Bills and acceptances payable 7,753 4,182 806 40 309 13,090
Subordinated debt - 147 147 294 13,635 14,223
Accrued interest payable and other
liabilities 10,828 390 1 374 3,486 15,079
Total financial liabilities P205,435 P25,502 P16,749 P7,474 P36,552 P291,712
Parent Company
December 31, 2013
Up to 1to 3 to 6 to Beyond
1 month 3 months 6 months 12 months 1 year Total
Financial Assets
COCI £9,700 P- P- P- P- 29,700
Due from BSP and other banks 152,252 - - - - 152,252
Interbank loans receivable 8,378 150 - - - 8,528
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:

Government securities 36 16 36 78 4,418 4,584

Equity securities 248 - - - - 248

Private debt securities — 2 4 7 316 329

Derivative assets

Pay (2,953) (850) (1,141) (216) (31) (5,191)
Receive 2,976 859 1,168 222 31 5,256
23 9 27 6 — 65
(Forward)
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Parent Company
December 31, 2013
Up to 1to 3to 6 to Beyond
1 month 3 months 6 months 12 months 1 year Total
Loans receivables - gross £76,854 B42,616 216,063 P14,180 £229,107 £378,820
Unquoted debt securities - gross 3 2,823 11 94 8,626 11,557
Other receivables - gross 2,031 3,250 1,842 273 8,913 16,309
AFS investments 637 618 864 3,623 95,893 101,635
Total financial assets £250,162 £49,484 P18,847 P18,261 P347,273 £684,027
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities:
Demand P119,572 P- P- P- P- P119,572
Savings 232,850 24,42 8,59 4,839 13,14 283,847
Time 11,483 10,402 2,461 6,465 20,387 51,198
Derivative liabilities:
Pay 9,770 1,995 694 - 1,391 13,850
Receive (9,655) (1,979) (676) — (1,391) (13,701)
115 16 18 — — 149
Bills and acceptances payable 8,825 2,089 835 - 1,751 13,500
Subordinated debt - 147 147 294 13,039 13,627
Accrued interest payable and other
liabilities 11,294 2,200 — 134 2,067 15,695
Total financial liabilities P384,139 £39,277 P12,054 P11,732 £50,386 £497,588
Parent Company
December 31, 2012
Up to 1 to 3 to 6 to Beyond
1 month 3 months 6 months 12 months 1 year Total
Financial Assets
COCI P5,548 P- P- P- P- P5,548
Due from BSP and other banks 39,825 - - - - 39,825
Interbank loans receivable 11,129 251 119 - - 11,499
Securities held under agreements to
resell 18,304 - - - - 18,304
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:

Government securities 1,978 14 19 36 677 2,724

Equity securities 193 - - - - 193

Private debt securities 100 1 1 3 29 134

Derivative assets

Pay (6,056) (716) (22) (67) (52) (6,913)
Receive 6,079 788 24 153 222 7,266
23 72 2 86 170 353
Designated at FVPL:

Private debt securities 4 8 1,255 - - 1,267
Loans receivables - gross 24,572 12,919 5,447 1,435 123,205 167,578
Unquoted debt securities - gross 3,962 44 9 17 3,950 7,982
Other receivables - gross 16,076 - - - - 16,076
AFS investments 541 2,630 2,767 1,470 97,479 104,887
Total financial assets P122,255 215,939 29,619 23,047 £225,510 £376,370
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities:

Demand P28.417 P P P P P28,417

Savings 151,034 17,838 7,97 4,89 12,636 194,379

Time 7,779 2,821 1,481 1,784 6,325 20,190
Financial liability at FVPL 43 85 6,311 — — 6,439
Derivative liabilities:

Pay 9,798 1,162 476 608 213 12,257

Receive (9,677) (1,123) (452) (518) (52) (11,822)

121 39 24 90 161 435

Bills and acceptances payable 7,725 4,176 805 24 2 12,732
Subordinated debt - 147 147 294 13,635 14,223
Accrued interest payable and other

liabilities 8,234 390 1 193 3,222 12,040
Total financial liabilities P203,353 P25,496 P16,748 B7,277 £35,981 P288,855
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Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk to earnings or capital arising from adverse movements in factors that affect
the market value of instruments, products, and transactions in an institutions’ overall portfolio.
Market Risk arises from market making, dealing, and position taking in interest rate, foreign
exchange and equity markets. The succeeding sections provide discussion on the impact of
market risk on the Parent Company’s trading and structural portfolios.

Trading market risk

Trading market risk exists in the Parent Company as the values of its trading positions are
sensitive to changes in market rates such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.
The Parent Company is exposed to trading market risk in the course of market making as well as
from taking advantage of market opportunities. The Parent Company adopts the Parametric
Value-at-Risk (VaR) methodology (with 99% confidence level, and one day holding period for FX
and equity price risks VaR and ten day holding period for interest rate risk VaR) to measure the
Parent Company’s trading market risk. Volatilities are updated monthly and are based on
historical data for a rolling 260-day period. The RMG reports the VaR utilization and breaches to
limits to the risk taking personnel on a daily basis and to the ALCO and Risk Oversight
Committee (ROC) on a monthly basis. All risk reports discussed in the ROC meeting are noted by
the BOD. The VaR figures are backtested to validate the robustness of the VaR model.

Objectives and limitations of the VaR methodology

The VaR models are designed to measure market risk in a normal market environment.

The models assume that any changes occurring in the risk factors affecting the normal market
environment will follow a normal distribution. The use of VaR has limitations because it is based
on historical volatilities in market prices and assumes that future price movements will follow a
statistical distribution. Due to the fact that VaR relies heavily on historical data to provide
information and may not clearly predict the future changes and modifications of the risk factors,
the probability of large market moves may be under estimated if changes in risk factors fail to
align with the normal distribution assumption. VaR may also be under- or over- estimated due to
the assumptions placed on risk factors and the relationship between such factors for specific
instruments. Even though positions may change throughout the day, the VaR only represents the
risk of the portfolios at the close of each business day, and it does not account for any losses that
may occur beyond the 99.00% confidence level.

VaR assumptions/parameters

VaR estimates the potential loss on the current portfolio assuming a specified time horizon and
level of confidence at 99.00%. The use of a 99.00% confidence level means that, within a one day
horizon, losses exceeding the VaR figure should occur, on average, not more than once every one
hundred days.

VaR limits

Since VaR is an integral part of the Parent Company’s market risk management, VaR limits have
been established annually for all financial trading activities and exposures. Calculated VaR
compared against the VaR limits are monitored. Limits are based on the tolerable risk appetite of
the Parent Company. VaR is computed on an undiversified basis; hence, the Parent Company
does not consider the correlation effects of the three trading portfolios.

Foreign Interest Equities
Trading Portfolio Exchange* Rate Price  Total VaR**
December 31, 2013 P4.28 P159.37 P12.22 P175.88
Average Daily 8.81 148.81 9.89 167.51
Highest 24.71 497.11 12.97 413.55
Lowest 0.65 30.24 6.69 70.60
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Foreign Interest Equities
Trading Portfolio Exchange* Rate Price Total VaR**
December 31, 2012 P4.84 Pg0.22 P7.80 P92.86
Average Daily 6.61 131.09 8.95 146.64
Highest 16.85 340.31 11.17 354.65
Lowest 0.40 60.87 6.00 77.86

* FX VaR is the bankwide foreign exchange risk
** The high and low for the total portfolio may not equal the sum of the individual components as
the highs and lows of the individual trading portfolios may have occurred on different trading days

The table below shows the interest rate VaR for AFS investments (in millions):

2013 2012
End of year P2,283.45 P2,317.22
Average Daily 1,963.52 2,176.61
Highest 2,909.73 2,743.57
Lowest 1,008.20 1,522.48

Structural Market Risk

Non-trading Market Risk

Interest rate risk

The Parent Company seeks to ensure that exposure to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within
acceptable limits. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may be reduced or
may create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise.

Repricing mismatches will expose the Parent Company to interest rate risk. The Parent Company
measures the sensitivity of its assets and liabilities to interest rate fluctuations by way of a
“repricing gap” analysis using the repricing characteristics of its financial instrument positions
tempered with approved assumptions. To evaluate earnings exposure, interest rate sensitive
liabilities in each time band are subtracted from the corresponding interest rate assets to produce a
“repricing gap” for that time band. The difference in the amount of assets and liabilities maturing
or being repriced over a one year period would then give the Parent Company an indication of the
extent to which it is exposed to the risk of potential changes in net interest income. A negative
gap occurs when the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities exceeds the amount of interest rate
sensitive assets. Vice versa, positive gap occurs when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets
exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities.

During a period of rising interest rates, a company with a positive gap is better positioned because
the company’s assets are refinanced at increasingly higher interest rates increasing the net interest
margin of the company over time. During a period of falling interest rates, a company with a
positive gap would show assets repricing at a faster rate than one with a negative gap, which may
restrain the growth of its net income or result in a decline in net interest income.

For risk management purposes, the repricing gap covering the one year period is multiplied by an
assumed change in interest rates to yield an approximation of the change in net interest income
that would result from such an interest rate movement. The Parent Company’s BOD sets a limit
on the level of earnings at risk (EaR) exposure tolerable to the Parent Company. Compliance to
the EaR limit is monitored monthly by the RMG. This EaR computation is accomplished
monthly, with a quarterly stress test.
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The following table sets forth the repricing gap position of the Group and the Parent Company
(in millions):

Consolidated
December 31, 2013
Uptol 1to3 3to6 6to 12 Beyond
Month Months Months months 1 year Total
Financial Assets*
Due from BSP and other banks £110,636 P- P- P- P- £110,636
Interbank loans receivable 6,188 149 - - - 6,337
Receivable from customers and
other receivables - gross** 83,078 41,796 8,611 9,077 42,987 185,549
Total financial assets £199,902 P41,945 B8,611 £9,077 £42,987 £302,522
Financial Liabilities*
Deposit liabilities:
Savings 291,078 £17,726 210,075 B5,979 P4,182 £129,040
Time 14,999 8,913 4,237 2,154 5,747 36,050
Bills and acceptances payable 9,220 902 242 438 1,279 12,081
Total financial liabilities P115,297 £27,541 P14,554 £8,571 P11,208 R177,171
Repricing gap £84,605 P14,404 (P5,943) B506 B31,779 P125,351
Cumulative gap 84,605 99,009 93,066 93,572 125,351 —

*Financial instruments that are not subject to repricing/rollforward were excluded.
**Receivable from customers excludes residual value of leased assets.

Consolidated
December 31, 2012
Uptol 1to3 3t06 6to 12 Beyond
Month Months Months months 1 year Total

Financial Assets*
Due from BSP and other banks £12,737 P P P P R12,737
Interbank loans receivable 10,265 - - - - 10,265
Securities held under agreements

to resell 18,300 - - - - 18,300
Receivable from customers and

other receivables - gross** 52,554 21,205 7,058 6,174 16,504 103,495
Total financial assets £93,856 £21,205 £7,058 26,174 £16,504 £144,797
Financial Liabilities*
Deposit liabilities:

Savings £63,839 214,859 B4,517 B3,156 £7,083 £93,454

Time 8,289 3,807 851 866 26 13,839
Bills and acceptances payable 8,565 1,187 340 404 2,591 13,087
Total financial liabilities £80,693 219,853 25,708 £4,426 £9,700 £120,380
Repricing gap £13,163 21,352 21,350 P1,748 26,804 £24.417
Cumulative gap 13,163 14,515 15,865 17,613 24,417 —

*Financial instruments that are not subject to repricing/rollforward were excluded.
**Receivable from customers excludes residual value of leased assets.
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Parent Company
December 31, 2013
Uptol 1to3 3to6 6 to 12 Beyond
Month Months Months months 1 year Total
Financial Assets*
Due from BSP and other banks £89,542 P P P P £89,542
Interbank loans receivable 6,188 149 - - - 6,337
Receivable from customers and
other receivables - gross** 82,844 41,312 8,495 8,895 42,265 183,811
Total financial assets P178,574 B41,461 P8,495 £8,895 £42,265 £279,690
Financial Liabilities*
Deposit liabilities:
Savings £91,078 £17,726 210,075 £5,979 £4,182 £129,040
Time 13,271 5,892 2,254 1,677 5,747 28,841
Bills and acceptances payable 8,732 571 — — 7 9,310
Total financial liabilities P113,081 P24,189 P12,329 P7,656 29,936 P167,191
Repricing gap £65,493 P17,272 (P3,834) £1,239 £32,329 £112,499
Cumulative gap 65,493 82,765 78,931 80,170 112,499 —
*Financial instruments that are not subject to repricing/rollforward were excluded.
**Receivable from customers excludes residual value of leased assets.
Parent Company
December 31, 2012
Uptol 1to3 3t06 6to 12 Beyond
Month Months Months months 1 year Total
Financial Assets*
Due from BSP and other banks £9,821 P P P P £9,821
Interbank loans receivable 10,265 - - - - 10,265
Securities held under agreements to
resell 18,300 - - - - 18,300
Receivable from customers and
other receivables - gross** 52,410 20,647 6,695 5,568 11,752 97,072
Total financial assets £90,796 £20,647 £6,695 £5,568 P11,752 P135,458
Financial Liabilities*
Deposit liabilities:
Savings 263,839 P14,859 P4,517 P3,156 P7,083 P93.,454
Time 8,289 3,807 851 866 26 13,839
Bills and acceptances payable 8,481 1,038 109 23 1,649 11,300
Total financial liabilities 280,609 219,704 P5,477 P4,045 28,758 £118,593
Repricing gap P10,187 P943 P1,218 P1,523 P£2,994 P16,865
Cumulative gap 10,187 11,130 12,348 13,871 16,865 —

*Financial instruments that are not subject to repricing/rollforward were excluded.
**Receivable from customers excludes residual value of leased assets.
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The following table sets forth, for the year indicated, the impact of changes in interest rates on the
Group’s and the Parent Company’s repricing gap for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
(in millions):

Consolidated

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Statement Statement
of Income Equity of Income Equity
+50bps P442 P442 B57 P57
-50bps (442) (442) (57) (57)
+100bps 885 885 114 114
-100bps (885) (885) (114) (114)
Parent Company
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Statement Statement
of Income Equity of Income Equity
+50bps P370 B370 P74 P74
-50bps (370) (370) (74) (74)
+100bps 741 741 147 147
-100bps (741) (741) (147) (147)

As one of the long-term goals in the risk management process, the Parent Company has set the
adoption of the economic value approach in measuring the interest rate risk in the banking books
to complement the earnings approach currently used.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange is the risk to earnings or capital arising from changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange
rates on its financials and cash flows.

Foreign currency liabilities generally consist of foreign currency deposits in the Parent Company’s
FCDU books, accounts made in the Philippines or which are generated from remittances to the
Philippines by Filipino expatriates and overseas Filipino workers who retain for their own benefit
or for the benefit of a third party, foreign currency deposit accounts with the Parent Company and
foreign currency-denominated borrowings appearing in the regular books of the Parent Company.
Foreign currency deposits are generally used to fund the Parent Company’s foreign currency-
denominated loan and investment portfolio in the FCDU. Banks are required by the BSP to match
the foreign currency liabilities with the foreign currency assets held through FCDUs. In addition,
the BSP requires a 30.00% liquidity reserve on all foreign currency liabilities held through
FCDUs. Outside the FCDU, the Parent Company has additional foreign currency assets and
liabilities in its foreign branch network.

The Group's policy is to maintain foreign currency exposure within acceptable limits and within
existing regulatory guidelines. The Group believes that its profile of foreign currency exposure on
its assets and liabilities is within conservative limits for a financial institution engaged in the type
of business in which the Group is involved.
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The table below summarizes the exposure to foreign exchange rate risk. Included in the table are
the financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by currency (amounts in
millions and in Philippine peso equivalent).

140

Consolidated
December 31, 2013
USD Others Total
Assets
COCI and due from BSP £1,017 P485 £1,502
Due from other banks 9,719 3,589 13,308
Interbank loans receivable and securities held under
agreements to resell 1,005 1,000 2,005
Loans and receivables 10,268 5,269 15,537
AFS investments 4,255 2,078 6,333
Total assets 26,264 12,421 38,685
Liabilities
Deposit Liabilities 7,621 5,159 12,780
Bills and acceptances payable 6,437 141 6,578
Accrued interest payable 1,599 201 1,800
Other liabilities 4,677 493 5,170
Total liabilities 20,334 5,994 26,328
Net Exposure 25,930 26,427 P12.357
Consolidated
December 31,2012
USD Others Total
Assets
COCI and due from BSP R644 B176 2820
Due from other banks 2,216 622 2,838
Interbank loans receivable and securities held under
agreements to resell 1,338 - 1,338
Loans and receivables 5,269 150 5,419
AFS investments 3,315 1,205 4,520
Total assets 12,782 2,153 14,935
Liabilities
Deposit Liabilities 2,702 1,583 4,285
Bills and acceptances payable 5,454 89 5,543
Accrued interest payable 1,561 1 1,562
Other liabilities 1,614 69 1,683
Total liabilities 11,331 1,742 13,073
Net Exposure P1,451 P411 £1,862
Parent Company
December 31, 2013
USD Others Total
Assets
COCI and due from BSP P868 P242 P1,110
Due from other banks 1,762 2,257 4,019
Interbank loans receivable and securities held under
agreements to resell 1,005 1,000 2,005
Loans and receivables 7,434 229 7,663
AFS investments 1,980 2,078 4,058
Total assets 13,049 5,806 18,855

(Forward)
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Parent Company
December 31, 2013

USD Others Total
Liabilities
Deposit Liabilities £2,133 £2,952 P5,085
Bills and acceptances payable 6,477 100 6,577
Accrued interest payable 1,564 - 1,564
Other liabilities 580 197 777
Total liabilities 10,754 3,249 14,003
Net Exposure P2,295 P2,557 P4,852

Parent Company
December 31, 2012

USD Others Total
Assets
COCI and due from BSP P644 B176 2820
Due from other banks 2,177 616 2,793
Interbank loans receivable and securities held under

agreements to resell 1,338 - 1,338

Loans and receivables 4,673 61 4,734
AFS investments 3,315 1,205 4,520
Total assets 12,147 2,058 14,205
Liabilities
Deposit Liabilities 2,702 1,583 4,285
Bills and acceptances payable 5,241 3 5,244
Accrued interest payable 1,560 1 1,561
Other liabilities 1,613 69 1,682
Total liabilities 11,116 1,656 12,772
Net Exposure £1,031 P402 £1,433

Information relating to the Parent Company’s currency derivatives is contained in Note 23.

The Parent Company has outstanding foreign currency spot transactions (in equivalent peso
amounts) of 1.8 billion (sold) and £1.9 billion (bought) as of December 31, 2013 and £2.1billion
(sold) and 1.4 billion (bought) as of December 31, 2012.

Capital management and management of insurance and financial risks

Governance framework

The Group has established a risk management function with clear terms of reference and with the
responsibility for developing policies on market, credit, liquidity, insurance and operational risks.
It also supports the effective implementation of policies at the overall company and individual
business unit levels. The Chief Financial Officer and Internal Audit Department perform
procedures to identify various risks. The results of the procedures are reported to the BOD and
necessary actions are taken to mitigate the risks identified.

The policies define the Group’s identification of risk and its interpretation, limit structure to

ensure the appropriate quality and diversification of assets, alignment of underwriting and
reinsurance strategies to the corporate goals and specific reporting requirements.
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Regulatory framework

Regulators are interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and maintain close vigil to
ensure that the Group is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the
regulators are also interested in ensuring that the Group maintains appropriate solvency position to
meet liabilities arising from claims and that the risk levels are at acceptable levels.

The Group has an insurance business which is subject to the regulatory requirements of the IC.
Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose certain
restrictive provisions (e.g., margin of solvency to minimize the risk of default and insolvency on
the part of the insurance companies to meet the unforeseen liabilities as these arise, fixed
capitalization requirements, risk-based capital requirements).

Capital management
The Group maintains a certain level of capital to ensure sufficient solvency margins and to
adequately protect the policyholders.

To ensure compliance with these externally imposed capital requirements, it is the Group’s policy
to assess its position against set minimum capital requirements.

Under the requirements of the IC and the Code, the Group should meet the minimum levels set for
the following capital requirements: Margin of Solvency (MOS), Minimum Statutory Net Worth
and Paid-up Capital, and the Risk-Based Capital (RBC).

Since PNB LII is now 100.00% Filipino-owned, the capital requirements have been reduced
significantly and PNB LII’s current capital now well exceeds the minimum requirements.

The required investments in government bonds and securities of at least 25.00% of the Minimum
Paid-up Capital, under the Section 203 of the Insurance Code, are free from liens and
encumbrances.

The Group manages the capital of its subsidiaries in accordance with the capital requirements of
the relevant regulatory agency, such as the IC, the SEC and PSE. The Group has fully complied
with the relevant capital requirements for the year ended December 31, 2013 and

December 31, 2012.

5. Fair Value Measurement

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, except for the following financial instruments, the carrying
value of the Group’s and Parent Company’s financial assets and liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position and related notes approximate their respective fair

values:
Consolidated
December 31, 2013 December 31,2012
Carrying Fair Market Carrying Fair Market
Value Value Value Value
Financial Assets
Loans and Receivables:
Receivables from customers:
Business loans £187,560,017 £194,747,449 $£83,382,445 P£84,566,445
GOCCs and NGAs 25,709,132 25,746,571 24,410,497 24,410,497
Consumers 25,917,560 26,903,405 11,196,835 11,483,394

(Forward)
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Consolidated
December 31,2013 December 31,2012
Carrying Fair Market Carrying Fair Market
Value Value Value Value
LGUs £8,510,620 £8,596,190 £7,157,470 £7,215,785
Fringe benefits 585,548 599,576 643,608 648,299
Unquoted debt securities 7,295,531 8,733,369 3,859,268 5,131,586
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Deposit liabilities:
Time 51,464,182 51,350,907 19,908,821 20,134,885
Subordinated debt 9,953,651 10,584,755 9,938,816 10,956,745
Parent Company
December 31,2013 December 31,2012
Carrying Fair Market Carrying Fair Market
Value Value Value Value
Financial Assets
Loans and Receivables
Receivables from customers:
Business loans £177,550,499 £184,608,235 £80,968,053 £82,152,054
GOCCs and NGAs 25,709,132 25,746,571 24,410,497 24,410,497
Consumers 23,746,276 24,732,121 11,102,326 11,388,885
LGUs 8,510,620 8,596,190 7,157,470 7,215,785
Fringe benefits 571,374 585,402 629,871 634,560
Unquoted debt securities 6,912,909 8,350,923 3,859,268 5,131,586
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Deposit liabilities:
Time 47,698,807 47,585,532 20,164,420 20,390,484
Bills and acceptances payable:
Foreign banks 1,992,874 1,997,099 2,571,194 2,571,194
Subordinated debt 9,953,651 10,584,755 9,938,816 10,956,745

The methods and assumptions used by the Group in estimating the fair value of its financial
instruments follow:

Cash equivalents - Carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the relatively short-term
maturity of these investments.

Debt securities - Fair values are generally based upon quoted market prices. If the market prices
are not readily available, fair values are obtained from independent parties offering pricing
services, estimated using adjusted quoted market prices of comparable investments or using the
discounted cash flow methodology.

Equity securities - Fair values of quoted equity securities are based on quoted market prices.

While unquoted equity securities are carried at their original cost less impairment if any, since the
fair value could not be reliably determined due to the unpredictable nature of future cash flows and
the lack of suitable methods of arriving at a reliable fair value.

Loans and receivables - For loans with fixed interest rates, fair values are estimated by discounted
cash flow methodology, using the Group’s current market lending rates for similar types of loans.
For loans with floating interest rates, with repricing frequencies on a quarterly basis, the Group
assumes that the carrying amount approximates fair value. Where the repricing frequency is
beyond three months, the fair value of floating rate loans is determined using the discounted cash
flow methodology. The discount rate used in estimating the fair value of loans and receivables is
3.0% in 2013 and 0.3% to 9.3% in 2012 for peso-denominated receivables. For foreign currency-
denominated receivables, discount rate used is 1.0% and 3.3% in 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Liabilities - Except for time deposit liabilities and subordinated debt, the carrying values
approximate fair values due to either the presence of a demand feature or the relatively short-term
maturities of these liabilities.

Derivative instruments - Fair values are estimated based on quoted market prices or acceptable
valuation models.

Time deposit liabilities and subordinated debt including designated at FVPL - Fair value is
determined using the discounted cash flow methodology. The discount rate used in estimating the
fair values of the subordinated debt and time deposits ranges from 1.1% to 4.2% and from 1.4% to
3.6% as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group has assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the
statement of financial position after initial recognition. Recurring fair value measurements are
those that another PFRS requires or permits to be recognized in the statement of financial position
at the end of each reporting period. These include financial assets and liabilities at FVPL, AFS
investments and land and buildings measured at revalued amount.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of assets and
liabilities by valuation technique. These levels are based in the inputs that are used to determine
the fair value and can be summarized in:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that
are not based on observable market data.

The Group and the Parent Company held the following financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value and at cost but for which fair values are disclosed and their corresponding level in fair
value hierarchy:

Consolidated
December 31,2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value:
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVPL:
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:
Government securities £1,977,066 £1,093,608 P £3,070,674
Derivative assets - 92,834 165,863 258,697
Private debt securities 217,808 50,963 - 268,771
Equity securities 249,518 - - 249,518
Designated at FVPL:
Segregated fund assets 2,481,635 = 5,380,053 7,861,688
£4,926,027 £1,237,405 P5,545,916 £11,709,348
(Forward)
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Consolidated
December 31, 2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AFS investments:
Government securities £33,571,430 £25,676,335 P- £59,247,765
Other debt securities 19,150,981 65,762 - 19,216,743
Equity securities™ 1,678,007 — — 1,678,007
$54,400,418 £25,742,097 £80,142,515
Non-financial Assets
Property and equipment
Land P o P14,957,751 P14,957,751
Buildings — — 6,197,300 6,197,300
P £21,155,051 £21,155,051
Liabilities measured at fair value:
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at FVPL:
Designated at FVPL:
Segregated fund liabilities** £2,481,635 P- $£5,380,053 £7,861,688
Derivative liabilities — 163,101 — 163,101
£2,481,635 £163,101 $£5,380,053 £8,024,789
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed:
Financial Assets
Loans and Receivables
Receivables from customers P- P- £256,593,191 £256,593,191
Unquoted debt securities — — 8,733,369 8,733,369
P P £265,326,560 £265,326,560
Non-financial Assets
Investment property™**
Land P $24,176,727 $24,176,727
Buildings and improvements — — 3,394,550 3,394,550
P-— P27,571,277 $27,571,277
Liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed:
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Time deposits P o £51,350,907 £51,350,907
Subordinated debt — — 10,584,755 10,584,755
P P £61,935,662 £61,935,662
*  Excludes unquoted available-for-sale securities
**  Excludes cash component
*** Based on the fair values from appraisal reports which is different from their carrying amounts which are carried at cost.
Consolidated
December 31, 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:
Government securities £1,880,673 $£90,081 P 21,970,754
Derivative assets - 395,457 59,044 454,501
Private debt securities 99,502 - - 99,502
Equity securities 250,552 - — 250,552
Designated at FVPL:
Private debt securities - 1,247,756 - 1,247,756
£2,230,727 1,733,294 £59,044 P£4,023,065

(Forward)
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Consolidated
December 31, 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AFS investments:
Government securities P53,610,841 1,947,686 P P55,558,527
Other debt securities 8,979,888 1,940,245 - 10,920,133
Equity securities 440,230 — — 440,230
£63,030,959 3,887,931 P £66,918,890
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at FVPL:
Designated at FVPL P P $£6,196,070 6,196,070
Derivative liabilities - 283,751 - 283,751
P— P283,751 £6,196,070 6,479,821
*  Excludes unquoted available-for-sale securities
**  Excludes cash component
*** Based on the fair values from appraisal reports which is different from their carrying amounts which are carried at cost.
Parent Company
December 31, 2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value:
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:
Government securities £1,977,066 £1,093,608 P- £3,070,674
Derivative assets - 92,750 165,863 258,613
Private debt securities 217,808 50,963 - 268,771
Equity securities 247,615 - - 247,615
£2,442,489 £1,237,321 P165,863 £3,845,673
AFS investments:
Government securities £29,498,345 £25,676,335 P- P55,174,680
Other debt securities 16,560,227 65,762 - 16,625,989
Equity securities™® 757,119 - - 757,119
P46,815,691 $25,742,097 P P72,557,788
Non-financial Assets
Property and equipment
Land P- P14,589,026 P14,589,026
Buildings - - 5,986,312 5,986,312
P P- £20,575,338 £20,575,338
Liabilities measured at fair value:
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at FVPL:
Derivative liabilities - 163,084 - 163,084
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed:
Financial Assets
Loans and Receivables
Receivables from customers - P- $244,268,519 $244,268,519
Unquoted debt securities - - 8,350,923 8,350,923
P P $252,619,442 $252,619,442
Non-financial Assets
Investment property™**
Land o P- £23,798,941 £23,798,941
Buildings and improvements — — 3,163,809 3,163,809
P P £26,962,750 £26,962,750
(Forward)
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Parent Company
December 31,2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed:
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Time Deposits - - £47,585,532 £47,585,532
Subordinated debt - — 10,584,755 10,584,755
P P £58,170,287 £58,170,287

*  Excludes unquoted available-for-sale securities

**  Excludes cash component
*** Based on the fair values from appraisal reports which is different from their carrying amounts which are carried at cost.

Parent Company
December 31, 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:
Government securities 21,880,673 £90,081 P 21,970,754
Derivative assets - 395,457 59,044 454,501
Private debt securities 99,502 - - 99,502
Equity securities 192,585 - - 192,585
Designated at FVPL:
Private debt securities - 1,247,756 - 1,247,756
£2,172,760 1,733,294 £59,044 3,965,098
AFS investments:
Government securities £51,875,243 P£1,947,686 P £53,822,929
Other debt securities 8,611,469 1,940,245 - 10,551,714
Equity securities 310,808 — — 310,808
£60,797,520 £3,887,931 P 264,685,451
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at FVPL:
Designated at FVPL P P £6,196,070 £6,196,070
Derivative liabilities - 283,751 - 283,751
P £283,751 6,196,070 26,479,821

*  Excludes unquoted available-for-sale securities

**  Excludes cash component
*** Based on the fair values from appraisal reports which is different from their carrying amounts which are carried at cost.

When fair values of listed equity and debt securities, as well as publicly traded derivatives at the
reporting date are based on quoted market prices or binding dealer price quotations, without any
deduction for transaction costs, the instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include net present value techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which
market observable prices exist and other revaluation models.

Significant input used in determining fair values of financial instruments under Level 2 comprises
of interpolated market rates of benchmark securities.

Instruments included in Level 3 include those for which there is currently no active market.

In applying the discounted cash flow analysis to determine the fair value of financial liabilities
designated at FVPL, the Group and the Parent Company used discount rate ranging from 1.38% to
3.63% and from 1.20% to 4.99% as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair
value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

The following table shows a reconciliation of the beginning and closing amount of Level 3
financial assets and liabilities which are recorded at fair value:

Consolidated Parent Company
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Financial assets
Balance at beginning of year £59,044 £91,719 £59,044 £91,719
Add acquisition arising from business
combination 2,616,316 - - -
Add acquisition arising from purchase of
investments 2,692,915 - 20,738 -
Add total gain (loss) recorded in profit
or loss 177,641 (32,675) 86,081 (32,675)
Balance at end of year P£5,545,916 £59,044 £165,863 £59,044
Financial liabilities
Balance at beginning of year £6,196,070 P6,479,170 £6,196,070 P6,479,170
Add acquisition arising from business
combination 2,616,316 - - -
Add acquisition arising from purchase of
investments 2,672,177 - - -
Less total gain recorded in profit
and loss (104,510) (283,100) (196,070) (283,100)
Redemption of unsecured subordinated
notes (6,000,000) - (6,000,000) -
Balance at end of year 5,380,053 £6,196,070 P £6,196,070

The table below sets forth, the potential effect of reasonably possible change in interest rates
(alternative valuation assumption) on the Group’s valuation of Level 3 financial instruments:

December 31, 2013

Fair Values as of Significant Fair Value Measurement
Type of Financial December 31, Valuation Unobservable Range of Sensitivity to
Instrument 2013 Technique Input Estimates Unobservable Input
Equity and/or £5,380,053 Statistically- Credit Spread of 2% - 3% Significant increase in
Credit-Linked Based the credit spread would result
Notes Simulation Counterparties in lower fair values.
Technique Significant reduction
would result in higher fair
values.
Subordinated 61,935,662 Discounted Risk-adjusted Spread of 1% A significant increase in
Debt Instruments Cash Flow Discount Rate above risk-free  the spread above the risk-
and Time Deposit interest rate of  free rate would result in

0.08% -3.22%  lower fair values.

Equity and/or Credit-Linked Notes are shown as Segregated Fund Assets carried at FVPL.
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December 31, 2012

Statement
of Income Equity
Financial Liability
Subordinated debt designated at FVPL
+50bps P14 B14
- 50bps (14) (14)
+100bps 90 90
-100bps (90) (90)

The fair values of warrants have been determined using price quotes received from a third-party
broker without any pricing adjustments imputed by the Parent Company. The valuation model
and inputs used in the valuation which were developed and determined by the third-party broker
were not made available to the Parent Company. Under such instance, PFRS 13 no longer
requires an entity to create quantitative information to comply with the related disclosure
requirements.

The fair values of the Group and the Parent Company’s land, building and investment properties
have been determined by the appraisal method by independent external and in-house appraisers
based on highest and best use of property being appraised. Valuations were derived on the basis
of recent sales of similar properties in the same areas as the land, building and investment
properties and taking into account the economic conditions prevailing at the time the valuations
were made and comparability of similar properties sold with the property being valued.

Description of the valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation
of the Group and Parent Company’s land, building and investment properties are as follows:

Valuation Techniques
Market Data Approach A process of comparing the subject property being appraised to similar
comparable properties recently sold or being offered for sale.

Replacement Cost It is an estimate of the investment required to duplicate the property in

Approach its present condition. It is reached by estimating the value of the
building “as if new” and then deducting the depreciated cost.
Fundamental to the Cost Approach is the estimate of the improvement’s
Reproduction Cost New.

Significant Unobservable Inputs
Price per square meter Ranges from £800 to 100,000

Reproduction Cost New The cost to create a virtual replica of the existing structure, employing
the same design and similar building materials.

Size Size of lot in terms of area. Evaluate if the lot size of property or
comparable conforms to the average cut of the lots in the area and
estimate the impact of lot size differences on land value.

Shape Particular form or configuration of the lot. A highly irregular shape limits
the usable area whereas an ideal lot configuration maximizes the usable
area of the lot which is associated in designing an improvement which
conforms with the highest and best use of the property.
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Significant Unobservable Inputs

Location Location of comparative properties whether on a main road, or secondary
road. Road width could also be a consideration if data is available. As a
rule, properties located along a main road are superior to properties
located along a secondary road.

Time Element “An adjustment for market conditions is made if general property values
have appreciated or depreciated since the transaction dates due to
inflation or deflation or a change in investors’ perceptions of the market
over time”. In which case, the current data is superior to historic data.

Discount Generally, asking prices in ads posted for sale are negotiable. Discount
is the amount the seller or developer is willing to deduct from the posted

selling price if the transaction will be in cash or equivalent.

Corner influence Bounded by two (2) roads.

6. Segment Information

Business Segments

The Group’s operating businesses are determined and managed separately according to the nature
of services provided and the different markets served with each segment representing a strategic
business unit. The Group’s business segments follow:

Retail Banking - principally handling individual customer’s deposits, and providing consumer
type loans, credit card facilities and fund transfer facilities;

Corporate Banking - principally handling loans and other credit facilities and deposit accounts for
corporate and institutional customers; and

Treasury - principally providing money market, trading and treasury services, as well as the
management of the Group’s funding operations by use of T-bills, government securities and
placements and acceptances with other banks, through treasury and wholesale banking.

These segments are the bases on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

Other operations of the Group comprise of the operations and financial control groups. Interest is
credited to or charged against business segments based on a pool rate which approximates the
marginal cost of funds.

For management purposes, business segment report is done on a quarterly basis.

Business segment information provided to the BOD, chief operating decision maker (CODM) is
based on the Regulatory Accounting Principles (RAP) submitted to the BSP in compliance with
the reportorial requirements under the Financial Reporting Package for banks, which differ from
PFRS. Significant differences arose from the manner of provisioning for impairment and credit
losses, measurement of investment properties and the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The report submitted to CODM represents only the results of operation for each of
the reportable segment.
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Segment assets are those operating assets that are employed by a segment in its operating activities
and that either directly attributable to the segment or can be allocated to the segment on a
reasonable basis.

Segment liabilities are those operating liabilities that result from the operating activities of a
segment and that either are directly attributable to the segment or can be allocated to the segment

on a reasonable basis.

The Group has no significant customer which contributes 10.00% or more of the consolidated
revenue.

Business segment information of the Group follows:

2013
Adjustments
Retail Corporate and
Banking Banking Treasury Others _ Eliminations* Total
Interest income £3,426,769 £10,085,504 £4,215,017 P544,203 £208,540 £18,480,033
Interest expense (2,778,438) (425,713) (1,779,579) (14,533) 266,769 (4,731,494)
Net interest margin 648,331 9,659,791 2,435,438 529,670 475,309 13,748,539
Other income 621,494 2,197,096 7,078,608 2,477,892 (657,048) 11,718,042
Other expenses (5,277,205) (4,575,313) (443,992) (4,030,561) (220,943) (14,548,014)
Segment result (4,007,380) 7,281,574 9,070,054 (1,022,999) (402,682) 10,918,567
Inter-segment
Imputed income 3,654,832 - - - 3,654,832
Imputed cost - (2,860,774) (794,058) - (3,654,832)
Segment result to third party (P352,548) $4,420,800 £8,275,996 (P1,022,999) (P402,682)  P10,918,567
Unallocated expenses 4,530,341
Net income before share in net income
of an associate and income tax 6,388,226
Share in net income of an associate 4,975
Net income before income tax 6,393,201
Income tax (1,171,140)
Net income £5,222,061
Non-controlling interest (98,301)
Net income for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Parent Company $5,123,760
Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures £904,371 £20,728 £723 £313,597 P- £1,239,419
Depreciation and amortization £182,520 £206,627 £7,352 £741,997 £367,138 £1,505,634
Unallocated depreciation and amortization 236,352
Total depreciation and amortization £1,741,986
Provision for impairment, credit and
other losses £294,772 P156,417 P- £71,811 £310,584 £833,584
* The eliminations and adjustments column mainly represent the RAP to PFRS adjustments
As of December 31, 2013
Adjustments
Retail Corporate and
Banking Banking Treasury Others  Eliminations* Total
Segment assets £323,066,129  $210,159,287  £266,730,411  P139,624,331  (P322,900,973) $616,679,185
Unallocated assets 1,386,331
Total assets £618,065,516
Segment liabilities £389,311,223 £46,909,951 P54,329,592 P267,453,559 (P311,648,370) P446,355,955
Unallocated liabilities 87,811,933
Total liabilities P534,167,888

* The eliminations and adjustments column mainly represent the RAP to PFRS adjustments
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2012 (As Restated - Note 2)

Adjustments
Corporate and
Retail Banking Banking Treasury Others  Eliminations* Total

Interest income P1,230,721 P6,590,457 P3,231,110 P197,948 P110,372 P11,360,608
Interest expense (2,128,538) (596,735) (1,714,888) (2,789) 58,048 (4,384,902)
Net interest margin (897.817) 5,993,722 1,516,222 195,159 168,420 6,975,706
Other income 905,734 1,562,453 5,733,577 2,022,222 (352,277) 9,871,709
Other expenses (3,086,619) (3,120,771) (603,858) (1,714,097) 233,082 (8,292,263)
Segment result (3,078,702) 4,435,404 6,645,941 503,284 49,225 8,555,152
Inter-segment

Imputed income 4,511,306 - - - (4,511,306) -

Imputed cost - (2,096,482) (2,414,824) 4,511,306 -
Segment result to third party P£1,432,604 £2,338,922 P4,231,117 £503,284 £49,225 P£8,555,152
Unallocated expenses (2,922,012)
Net income before share in net income

of an associate and income tax 5,633,140
Share in net income of an associate 10,309
Net income before income tax 5,643,449
Income tax (925,058)
Net income £4,718,391
Non-controlling interest (9,831)
Net income income for the year

attributable to equity holders of the

Parent Company £4,708,560
Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures £506,515 £6,119 P£3,131 £170,204 (P284,710) P401,259
Depreciation and amortization £160,741 £170,691 £6,470 £77,616 £216,199 P631,717
Unallocated depreciation and

amortization 236,353
Total depreciation and amortization P868,070

Provision for (reversal of) impairment,
credit and other losses £37,130 £674,855 £249,369 (P149,367) 211,714 £823,701

* The eliminations and adjustments column mainly represent the RAP to PFRS adjustments

As of December 31, 2012 (As Restated - Note 2)

Adjustments

Corporate and
Retail Banking Banking Treasury Others  Eliminations* Total
Segment assets P50,745,189  P95,365,478 P147,433,116 P 38,395,849  (P4,754,067) P327,185,565
Unallocated assets 3,005,186
Total assets £330,190,751
Segment liabilities P£205,217,147  P£32,452,570  £40,985,859  P16,570,501 (P6,489,036) P288,737,041
Unallocated liabilities 2,961,465
Total liabilities £291,698,506
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2011 (As Restated - Note 2)

Adjustments
Corporate and
Retail Banking Banking Treasury Others  Eliminations* Total

Interest income 21,113,053 £6,507,214 £4,103,289 £66,393 £697,688  P12,487,637
Interest expense (1,179,459) (1,984,296) (2,155,485) (4,251) 54,787 (5,268,704)
Net interest margin (66,406) 4,522,918 1,947,804 62,142 752,475 7,218,933
Other income 1,017,801 1,550,080 4,501,903 2,378,784 114,362 9,562,930
Other expenses (2,558,105) (1,043,515) (1,018,412) (1,625,041) 268,761 (5,976,312)
Segment result (1,606,710) 5,029,483 5,431,295 815,885 1,135,598 10,805,551
Inter-segment

Imputed income 3,737,997 - - - (3,737,997) -

Imputed cost — (2,110,281) (1,627,716) — 3,737,997 —
Segment result to third party £2,131,287 £2,919,202 £3,803,579 £815,885 £1,135,598  P10,805,551
Unallocated expenses (5,393,362)
Net income before share in net

income of an associate and

income tax 5,412,189
Share in net income of an associate 68,954
Net income before income tax 5,481,143
Income tax (849,457)
Net income P4,631,686
Non-controlling interest (8,456)
Net income for the year attributable to

equity holders of the Parent

Company £4,623,230
Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures P166,118 P556 P4,676 P182,583 P £353,933
Depreciation and amortization P154,421 £88,936 P£5,468 £12,639 £332,735 £594,199
Unallocated depreciation and

amortization 224371
Total depreciation and amortization £818,570

Provision for (reversal of) impairment
and credit losses 18,072 (P248,993) £809,008 £57,498 £389,590 £1,025,175

* The eliminations and adjustments column mainly represent the RAP to PFRS adjustments

As of January 1, 2012 (As Restated - Note 2)

Adjustments

Retail Corporate and
Banking Banking Treasury Others  Eliminations* Total
Segment assets P£48,015,755 P£124,180,936 P102,414,597  P35,781,723 (P2,356,960) £308,036,051
Unallocated assets 3,515,369
Total assets £311,551,420
Segment liabilities P187,646,586  P32,584,614  P44,265932  P£10,478,857  (P1,129,538) P273,846,451
Unallocated liabilities 3,898,024
Total liabilities £277,744,475

Geographical Segments

Although the Group’s businesses are managed on a worldwide basis, the Group operates in five
(5) principal geographical areas of the world. The distribution of assets, liabilities, credit
commitments items and revenues by geographic region of the Group follows:

Assets Liabilities Capital Expenditure
December 31, January 1, December 31, January 1,
2012 2012 2012 2012
December 31, (AsRestated - (As Restated - December 31, (As Restated -  (As Restated - December 31, December 31,
2013 Note 2) Note 2) 2013 Note 2) Note 2) 2013 2012
Philippines £590,593,475 319,698,926  £300,293,908 $£515,589,812 P284,122,475  P269,832,296 £1,216,764 £399,026
Asia (excluding Philippines) 21,978,224 4,786,765 5,136,569 16,266,046 4,120,423 4,320,174 16,056 1,895
USA and Canada 4,325,575 5,156,870 5,279,980 2,112,914 3,150,382 3,069,855 29 338
United Kingdom 1,109,611 308,233 541,984 10,160 76,051 275,895 6,570 =
Other European Union
Countries 58,631 239,957 298,979 188,956 229,175 246,255 — —
£618,065,516  £330,190,751  P311,551,420 P534,167,888 P291,698,506  £277,744,475 £1,239,419 £401,259
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Credit Commitments Revenues
2012 2011
December 31, December 31, (As Restated-  (As Restated -
2013 2012 2013 Note 2) Note 2)

Philippines £26,392,845 £8,541,332 £28,248,014 £19,737,194 £20,404,920
Asia (excluding Philippines) 1,754,756 515,684 1,245,354 771,601 761,750
USA and Canada 487 37,606 531,803 605,993 632,123
United Kingdom - - 148,592 117,116 144,683
Other European Union Countries — 29,287 10,723 176,045

P28,148,088 P9,094,622  £30,203,050  P21242,627  P22,119,521

The Philippines is the home country of the Parent Company, which is also the main operating
company. The Group offers a wide range of financial services as discussed in Note 1.
Additionally, most of the remittance services are managed and conducted in Asia, Canada, USA
and United Kingdom.

The areas of operations include all the primary business segments.

7. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

This account consists of’

Consolidated Parent Company
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
HFT:

Government securities £3,070,674 £1,970,754 £3,070,674 1,970,754
Private debt securities 268,771 99,502 268,771 99,502
Derivative assets (Notes 23 and 34) 258,697 454,501 258,613 454,501
Equity securities 249,518 250,552 247,615 192,585
3,847,660 2,775,309 3,845,673 2,717,342

Designated at FVPL:
Segregated fund assets (Note 18) 7,861,688 - - -
Private debt securities — 1,247,756 — 1,247,756
P11,709,348 P£4,023,065 P3,845,673 £3,965,098

As of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, unrealized gain (loss) on government and private debt
securities recognized by the Group and Parent Company amounted to (P237.1) million,
£50.1 million and £31.9 million, respectively.

The carrying amount of equity securities includes unrealized gain (loss) of (B30.7) million,
(R3.9) million and £4.8 million as of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,respectively, for the
Group and unrealized gain (loss) of (B30.6) million, (B4.4) million and £4.9 million as of
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, for the Parent Company.

As of December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, the effective interest rates of government securities
range from 0.88% to 5.48%, from 0.67% to 6.72%, and from 1.94% to 6.88%, respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, the effective interest rates of private debt securities
range from 2.38% to 7.38%, from 3.95% to 7.20%, and from 1.94% to 6.88%, respectively.
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Segregated fund assets designated as financial asset at FVPL refer to the considerations received
from unit-linked insurance contracts invested by PNB LII in designated funds.

On March 15, 2005 and June 17, 2005, the IC approved PNB LII’s license to sell single-pay and
regular-pay unit-linked insurance products, respectively.

Segregated fund assets and the corresponding segregated fund liabilities are designated as
financial assets and liabilities at FVPL since they are managed and their performances are
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy. The equity of each policyholder in the segregated fund assets is determined by assigning
a number of units to each policyholder, corresponding to the net amount deposited in relation to
the market value at the time of contribution. The value per unit may increase or decrease
depending on the market value of the underlying assets of the corresponding segregated funds.

As of December 31, 2013, the segregated fund assets consist of £6.0 billion peso funds and
£1.9 billion dollar funds. The segregated fund assets include the following equity-linked notes:

Equity-linked notes Description

Asian Summit A single-pay variable life insurance product which invests the
single premium, net of premium charges, into a five (5)-Year
PHP-Linked USD Participation Note which is linked to the
performance of a basket of five Asian equity indices.

Summit Select A single-pay variable life insurance product which invests the
single premium, net of premium charges, into a five (5)-Year
PHP-Linked USD Participation Note which is linked to the
performance of ING Emerging Markets Consumption VT
10.00% Index.

Dollar Income Optimizer A single-pay variable life insurance product which invests the
single premium, net of premium charges, into UBS
seven (7)-Year Structured Note which is linked to the
performance of a basket of high quality global funds chosen
to offer income and potential for capital appreciation.

Variable Unit-Linked Summit A peso and dollar denominated single-pay five (5)-Year

Peso and Dollar linked life insurance plan that provide the opportunity to
participate in a risk-managed portfolio of six (6) equally-
weighted exchange traded funds of ASEAN member
countries via the ING ASEAN Equities VT 10% index

As of December 31, 2012, private debt securities designated at FVPL represent USD-denominated
investments in CLN. The CLNs are part of a group of financial instruments that together are
managed on a fair value basis in accordance with the documented risk management and
investment strategy of the Parent Company. Unrealized loss from financial assets designated at
FVPL amounted to £16.3 million as of December 31, 2012.

On March 22 and August 17, 2012, the Parent Company pre-terminated investments in CLN
designated at financial assets at FVPL with a total face amount of USD47.5 million or £2.0 billion
and USD15.0 million or £636.3 million, respectively, in which the Parent Company realized
trading gain of USDO.2 million or equivalent to 8.3 million. The carrying amount of the
preterminated securities as of pre-termination dates amounted to USD48.1 million or £2.1 billion
and USD14.8 million or £628.2 million, respectively.
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On May 23, 2013, the remaining investments in CLN designated at FVPL with face value of
USD30.0 milllion (21.29 billion) matured.
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Available-for-Sale Investments

This account consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
AFS investments:
Government securities (Notes 19
and 31) £59,247,765 55,558,527 £55,174,681 53,822,929
Other debt securities 19,216,744 10,920,133 16,625,989 10,551,713
Equity securities - net of allowance for
impairment losses of
£928.4 million (Note 16) 1,839,640 518,819 918,752 389,398
£80,3